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“In last year's review | said ‘lots of little things can make for big change
Since then we've been working hard to improve hundreds of things
every day that, added together, are giving customers a much better
shopping experience.

"How are we doing? We've won back customers, we've increased sales
and we've grown market share. We'll tell you more about our performance
over the following pages, buf we also wanted to show you what we're
doing. | gave ten photographers one roll of film each and asked them to
capture Sainsbury’s in action on one day on our journey inthis Review
you can see the results ~ theirs and ours.” Justin King, Chief Executive

The photographers briefing at Sainsbury s Store Support Centre London the day before the shoot Back row left Lo nght Anders Hald larn Crockart
James Bell Slater King Charlie Fawell Nick Dawe Front row left to nght Nick David Victona Nightingale Justin King Stuart Frankhin Matt Stuart




Group performance

Market share by region (%)

Total market
share 14 7%

Source TNS

Colleagues

153,000 colleagues

32%

Store estate

000sqlt

68%

fulf time part time female

S8% 42%

male

+4q 2540 1525 15 Total

Canvenienge

297 297

Supermarkets

166' 168 88 33 455

Total stores

166' 168 8B 330 752

Centinuing operations 2008 2005
Sales {inc VAT) £17,317m  £16,364m
Sales (ex VAT) £16,061m  £15202m
Underlying operating profi? £342m £325m
Underlying profit before tax? £267m £238m
Profit/tloss) before tax £104m £(238)m
Profit/(loss) after tax ESBm £{187)m
Underlying basic earnings per sharg* 10 50p 8 30p
Basic earnings/(losses) per share 3 80p (17 40p)
Proposed dividend per share® B8 00p 7 80p

Our businesses

J Samnsbury pic comprises Sainsbury s Supermarkets convemence

stores an internet-based home delivery shopping service and Sainsbury s
Bank Samshury s stands for great products at fair prices The Group
continually improves and develops its product ranges and 15 commutted
to grving customers an ever improving shopping experience It aims to
ensure that all colleagues have oppartunities to develop their abibiies
and are well rewarded for therr contribution to the business At the end
of the 2005/06 financial year Samsbury s empioyed 153,000 peopie

Sainsbury's Supermarkets 1s Britain's longest standing major feod retailing
cham A large Sa:nsbury s store offers around 30 000 products, 50 per
cent of which are Sainsbury's own brand products including fresh produce
In addition to a wide range of quality food and graecery products many
stores also offer a range of complementary non food products and services

Samnsbury's Bank, owned by J Sainsbury pic and HBOS, aims to make finance
easier to understand and manage It offers excellent value products with
extra benefits, delivered in a simple and accessible way The current product
range includes savings and lnan products credit cards and a number of
nsurance products

Sainsbury's Onhine 15 the Group s internet-based home delivery shopping
service which currently operates {rom 97 stores Inaddition to foad and
grocery products, the service also offers over 250 0G0 books CDs, DVDs
videos and computer games Flowers, wine gifts kitchen apphances and
electricals are also available onltine

Includes 26 stares aver 55000 sq 1t

Underlying operabing profit underlying praf before lax lrom continuing operations before finance mcome
and Linance costs

Undarlying prohit befare tax from conhinnng operatrons profit belora tax from cantinuing operations belore
any gan or loss on the sale of properties impairment al goodwill finanoing fair value mevements and one
off items that are material and inlrequent in nalure In the current financal year these one alf iterns wese
the Businegss Rewiew costs IT insourging costs and debt restructuning casts Inthe poior financial year these
one of( 1fems were the Business Rewview and Transiormation costs

Underlying basic earangs per share prolit alter taz Irom continuing operations attributable to equily
holgers petore any gain o1 Joss on the 328 of properties mpairment of Gooowill Hinanoing ian value
mevements and one off items that are materiat and mirequent in nature divded by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares m ssue during the year exciuding those held by the £SOP Trusts which are
treated as cancelled

5 Prop dividend per share folat proposed dividend per share in relation io the financeal year

o -

-
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Chairman's statement
Phihp Hampton

This has been a strong year of recovery for Sainsbury s
with a continued focus on the implementation of the plans
outhined in Cctober 2004 Qur performance in the last
year has increased confidence in Sainsbury s prospects
ameng custorners colleaques and, | believe shareholders

Qur underlying profit for the year was £267 milhon® The
Board i1s recommending a final dividend of 5 85 pence per
share anincrease of 35 per cent This will take the full year
dividend o B 00 pence per share an increase of 2 & per
cent compared to last year covered 1 3 times by earnings
The Board does not wish to see the dividend eroded in

real terms and the increase broadly equals inflabion tn the
year However we continue to expect to rebuid dwnidend
cover to at least 1 5 times

The key to recovery 1s ta increase sales We are on rack to
hit our target of £2 5 tilhon additional sales in our recovery
period As we move forward we expect to see financial
rewards to shareholders anising from improved sales
performance and our continued focus on cost reductions

The Board 15 determined to work fowards a successiul
financial recovery while mamtaining the ethical approach
and commitment to high business standards that are a
fundamentat part of Sainsbury s heritage There are arguably
{ew business sectors where customer demands for

value and quality have to be so constantly balanced with
their cencerns for health the environment and the local
community Pages 24 and 25 detal our approach to this

as does Justin King s operatmg review

In March 2006 we completed a major refinancing rarsing
£2 Q7 biltion Thys provided cost effective tong-term finance
by recognising the value in our property portfolio At the
same time we retain ownership of these valuable assets In
conjunction with the refinancing we agreed with Sainsbury’s
pension schemes' trustees that some of the new funds
raised would be used te make a one off contribution of
£350 milhon into the pension schemes Annual contributions
by Sainsbury’s into the schemes will also be increased by
£18 mellion to £38 million per annum Qur defined benefit
schemes remain in place for existing members but to provide
a mare balanced sharing of risk and cost between members
and the Company, changes such as increased contributions
and controls on future benefits are being introduced to
improve the funding of the schemes and increase securty
of beneiits Colleague contributions for those in the defined
benefit schemes will Increase from September 2006 with
options to maintatn current contribution levels or move

to career average or a new scale of retirement heneht

Last year we introduced a long term incentive plan
specifically to support the recovery plan launched in
October 2004 It was a one time arrangement and no
further incentives can be awarded from it

AL our AGM D July we wiil De proposing a new ncentive
framework for arrangements to be put in place over the
next ten years, starting with the 2006/07 financial year It
will build on last year’s plan apptying to around 1,000 senior
managers n order {0 retam and motivaie key talent beyond
the 2008/09 milestone set last year We will afso propose

a new deferred bonus plan for top managers where the
proposed measure 1s based on TSR The plan 1s closely
ahigned with UK best practice and offers strong incentives
for top performance and no rewards for fallure Details

are set out later in this report

Bridget Macaskill will be stepping down as a Non-Executive
Director at our AGM in July and June de Molier retired
from the Board in September 2005 | would ke to take
this opportumity of thanking them for their hard work

and commitment over the past few years especially therr
help » the introduction of recovery rmitiatives

This year we have again strengthened the Board with
significant additional knowledge and diversity of experience
N August 2005 Darren Shapland jomed the executive team
as Chief Financral Officer and John McAdam was appointed
Senior Independent Cirector in September 2005 In May
2006 we welcomed Anna Ford as a Non-Executive Director

The Competition Commission has announced that it s to
conduct an investigation into the UK grocery market

We have established a dedicated team to deal with this
to ensure it will not distract us from our continued
commitment to serve customers in the best possible way

The many activities that have taken place this year give
encouraging signs that our recovery plan s well on course
Once again there has been great change for colleagues

but there 1s a real sense now around the business that
Sainsbury’s has renewed vigour and ambitign This view

1s also being echoed by many stakehoiders and | would hke
to thank them, as i did tast year for their continued support
and the part they are playing in our recovery plan

Moy Bett—

Philip Hampton Chairman

-} Sainsbury gk Annual Regort and Financal Statements 2006




Chief Executive’s operating review

Justin King

We're now serving 16 million customers
each week whichis 15 million more than
this time last year Competition between
retallers is intense, so this 1s a big step
in the night direction

This year we increased sales (inc VAT) by 5 8 per cent
to £17,.317 millon and we increased like-for-like sales
by 37 per cent, delivering a fifth consecutive quarter
of like-for-lke sales growth We also increased our
market share These results are the ¢learest measure
I can think of to show that customers are responding
to the changes we re making

If we exclude revenue from our petrol and banking
businesses, we achieved total sales growth of £722
rmilhon This s a solid start towards achieving an
extra £2 5 bilhon in sales - the goal we announced in
October 2004 1n our Making Samnsbury's Great Again
recovery plan

I wanted to show you some examples of the many
things we've done to improve cur offer, so | asked ten
photograghers to go out and look at our business in
action onjust one day - 19 Aprii 2006 1 briefed them
ta each provide one picture capturing an aspect of
Samnsbury’s, and to tell us a httle about their expertence
of our business

The first picture was taken at 2 30am at our Moortown
store in Leeds Like the majcrity of our supermarkets,

this store now has a night sheft in operation to replenish
shelves ready for the morning Back in 2004 avanabiity

Thinking on our feet

These handsels give colleagues accurale real time
infermation about stock and sales wherever they
aren the store Theresult faster decision making
fewer emply shelves fess wastage

J Samnsbury plc Annual Report and Financiat Statements 2006

was cited as our number one performance I1ssue, but
we've improved significantly Our night shift colleagues
are the unsung heroes of this change Together with
our new store processes they've helped reduce the
gaps an our shelves by 75 per cent, and our availlabihty
15 now back i tine with other supermarkets

We're now working on the other 25 per cent as we want
to improve even further In March 2006, for example
we ccempleted the roll-out of a new hand-held stock
and sales system This provides up-to-the-minute sales
and supply data to colleagues on the shop floor, helping
them to monitor and respond to stock levels faster

Af the same time we have a more accurate picture of
the stock we have versus the stock we need and this
has helped reduce our wastage and therefore cost

We've also made considerable investments in pricing
this year, and it 15 now very competitive across ali
ranges Great food at fair preces Is a strong tradition
at Sainsbury s, and our aim to generate £1 4 illion
extra sales from core grocery products s dependent
on getting the rrght balance of price and quahty

Grocery deflation (the percentage reduction in price
of products sold) of 15 per cent last year was largely
the result of the 8,500 price reductions we made, and
underhines how competitive we have become on price
We now highlight price reductions under the ‘Ways

to save' logo bike the one m the picture opposite, which
we launched in August 2005 This reinforces our
competitiveness by helping customers to identify offers,
promotions and 'price-checked’ products - those that
are the same price or cheaper than competitors




2 30am Night shrft, Moortown store, Leeds

"Everyone here said the same thing - the night shift has made the store much
more efficient and customers love it You just have to look at the shelves,
they said more empty spaces at night, more full shelves in the morning "

Photographer Matt Stuart




7.20am The bakery, Fosse Park store, Leicester

‘It may be early but hundreds of trays of hot bread, buns and doughnuts
are whizzing around, all of it baked here in the store Delicious aromas

waft into the aisles, drawing in the customers Andme ™
Photographer Nick Dawid




Passion for food remains at the heart

of our brand We understand that quality
food, and fresh and seasonal products,
are as important to customers as fair
prices That's why sales of our food
products have outpaced the market
over the past year

We would say that, but there s growing recognition for
our commitment to quality At the industry’s feading
retall Quality Food and Drink Awards last December
30 Sainsbury's products were short-listed the most
irom any retailer Every nomination in the fresh
produce categary was a Samsbury s product We wen
mne category awards and for the thud year runmung
were given the overall award for guahty

Qur bakery departments demonstrate what our focus
on food means in practice We bake fresh bread
throughout the day In fact by the time the photograph
opposite was taken at 7 20am the bakery team at our
Fosse Park store in Leicester had already heen in action
for over {wo hours

We encountered a growing problem this year as we
expanded our bakery departments - bakery skills are
dying cut wn the UK Qur response was to launch an
apprenticeship scheme for new recruits to develop
the reguired expertise and skills The scheme 15 being
piloted m ten stores in the Nerth East of England

We've strengthened our product quahty and innovation
team considerably this year, and introduced new
training and development for store colleagues in

Salad days

We ve started to wash and rninse bagged salads »n
natural spring water Customers tefl us they prefer
their food to be prepared with the mmimum of fuss
Using spring water 15 a simple and natura! way to wash
the salad and a brst tor any supermarket in the UX

subjects such as nutritron We also run food ‘'master
classes' on everything from Thai cockery to omons
and British cheese to chocolate The ciasses provide
an opportunity for product developers to learn
more about mndividuai ingredients so that they can
improve the taste and variety of the products we sell

We're obsessed withingredients and have developed
clear and exacting product standards for all ranges,
together with a new tracking sysiem that ensures these
are adhered to At depots we've improved the way we
check the quahty of products before accepting them
into our supply chain and customers are now giving
us their highest rating for healthy, fresh and tasty food
since we set out on our recovery programme

This year we improved or intraduced around 3 000
food products, and we re-ranged and simphfied every
product cateqgory to ensure the best choice of products
15 In place for customers

‘Basics, our fastest growing own-brand range, appeals
to everyone and covers many different products It has
generated incremential sales, and research shows that
around 50 per cent of custemers buy from both

Basics and our prermium range, ‘Taste the hiference’

New brand standards, such as only usmg free-range
eggs and British-sourced chicken and pork, and the
removal of hydrogenated vegetable oils, have been
apphed to Taste the Difference’ products this year
Hydrogenated vegetable cils, or more precisely trans
fatty acids sometimes ¢contained in them, have been
associated with health issues such as heart disease
They will be removed from all Samsbury s products
by January 2007 and we will be the first major
supermarket 1o achieve tms

J Sansbury ple Annual Report and Financial S{atements 2006




Health and vitahty are at the heart of what
we offer In January we updated our 'Be
Good te Yourself' range, evolving it from
a‘diet’ brand to a broader health brand

The new 'Be Good to Yourself range provides customers
with low fat diet products as well as healthier options,
and plus meals with added ingredients such as
premotics, prootres and Omega 3 There are around
500 products in the range of which 100 were new this
year Many of these were the first product of their kind
In any UK supermarket

What we've done with bread shows that you can offer
healthy choices without affecting taste We invested
£2 milion te produce a bread with higher fibre and 15
per cent less salt It tasted just the same as our existing
best selling bread but with healthier ingredients

And we sell it to customers at the same price as before,
despite the significant investment we've made We
worry about what goes into our products so our
customers don t have to

In February we introduced our Kids' range and became
the first retailer to provide Guideline Dally Amounts
(GDAs) for chiddren aged five to ten years on packaging
We're now rolling out children s GDAS across other
ranges because customers tell us they welcome help
in making heatthy food choices for their children,

and many parents want their children to eat the same
meals as them

This year we re-launched around 300 organic producis
under the *Sainsbury s SO organic’ brand, which sets
very high organic standards Qur larger stores carry

How much i1s enough™

In February we became the first UK supermarket to
incfude Guidehae Daily Amounts {GRAs) for chitdren
aged five to ten years on our product packaging
Now parents can judge the content of their chidrens
food rather than rely on guesswork

J Sainsbury ptc Annual Report and Financral Statements 2006

our full range of over 700 Sainsbury’s and branded
organic products and sales are up 20 per cent,
with particutarly good sales in fresh food areas

In the UK nsing demand for crganic mitk currently
outstrips supply, so we are working with farmers
to cover the costs involved in Conversion, as well as
aifering 12-month supply contracts once the milk

IS argaric

Our commitment to sourcing products from the UK
whenever we can inspired us fo find a local solution
to the supply 1ssue, rather than simply smport organic
milk from abroad We are the onfy supermarket that
has done this Soin May 2006 we achieved another
market first by selling milk fram British farms - like
Chalder Farm, shown here - that are in conversien

to organic standards We call it 'Farm Promise and

It means we pay a premium to cover all the extra
costs involved in conversion

in February we launched Active Kids' for the second
consecutive year This provides schools with actiity
equipment and experiences in return for vouchers
earned in store Last year the scheme attracted

80 per cent of all UK primary and secondary schools,
and we donated equipment worth more than £17 million
On average, each schoocl recetved around £700 of
rewards, a substantial contribution given that the
annual primary school budget for such equipment

1s esbmated at around £200

Over 30,000 schools and nurseries have registered
to take part in *Active Kids’ in 2006 Arcund 95 per
cent of our customers are aware of the scheme and
believe it 1s providing a valuable contribution far the
local community




11.40am Converting to organic, Chalder Farm, Chichester
“There's clearly an excellent understanding between Ahson,

from Sainsbury’s, and Chris, the farmer Both seem interested

in the long-term And the cows seemed pretty interested too ™

Photographer Nick Dawe




1215pm Active kids, Fleetdown Junior School, Dartford
“Arecipe for active kids take one school, choose from
over 30,000 Add £700 worth of activity equipment,

mix with 12 excited school chuldren, photograph and
enjoy, immediately!”

Photographer Jain Crockart




155pm Food Standards Agency, London

"What was obvious from the meeting between Erica from Sainsbury's
and the FSA was a shared desire to make food labelling as clear and honest
for customers as possible There 1s something about this photograph that
captures the way the two organisations are working together”

Photographer James Bell




We're leading standards in UK food
fabelling and have really improved our
understanding of what people want
and what's important to them We're
listening to customers and responding

We are the only large-scale supermarket chain that
placesits priority on food Our focus on fresh food
really sets us apar{, as does the way we help customers
to understand more about the food they buy and the
choices they have We're proud of the work we doin
this area and our customers rate Sainsbury s approach
to healthy eating above thal of every one of our
competitors

Good healthy food s part of our DNA at Sainsbury’s
We've cared about food quahty 1ssues ever since
Sainsbury s opened its very first store in 1869, and
we've gone further than any other supermarket in
communicating with customers about the food they
buy and eat

There is a clear trend of customers wanting more
information about what they eat, and we'fl continue
to innovate and lead 1n this area

Here s an examplie of these commitments inaction

In January 2005 we led the industry on nutntional
labelling by introducing a multiple traffic ght system
called the ‘Wheel of Health' This was developed
following extensive consumer research, together with
input from the Food Standards Agency (FSA) It was
reviewed after six months and received a huge vote

On your marks, get set

Providing a vary ctear calaur cade for the salt

fat saturated lats total sugars and calones na
product 1S much more helpful than bringing
infermation already an the back Lo the front of
the pack Using green amber andredss a bold and
open way 10 help customers make the right choice
for themsetves [t shows we care more about our
custamers$ than sales of an indwidual product

of approval from customers, who found it easy to
understand and helpful when deciding which products
to buy The traffic hght colours of green, amber and
red were universally understood The 'Wheel of Health'
15 now on over 1300 of our products and we continue
to add more

Research conducted in Aprid 2006 found that around
80 per cent of customers have noticed the labelling
and bebheve 1t influences what they buy Praducts

with greens and ambers on the ‘Wheel of Health' are
generally showing positive sales trends in companison
to ssmilar products with ambers and reds

We are convinced that colour coding the sait fat,
saturated fats total sugars and calories in a serving of
each product in grams goes much further in helping
customers than simply maoving GDA information
from the back of packaging to the front Taking the
bold step of putting red’ on a product shows you
care more about your customers than short-term
sales Cur approach was endorsed by the FSA when
it announced its recommendations fer nutritional
labeling in March 2006 We continue to share our
research and findings with the FSA

We are also receiving external recognition for our
commitments to the wellbeing of colleagues In
March Sainsbury’s was voted London s Healthiest
Large Emplover as part of the BBC's Big Challenge
Healthworks tutiative, a nationwide search to find
the healthiest employers across the UK We were
commended for the health initiatives we run for
colfeagues throughout the UK

J Sainsbury pic Annuat Report and Financiat Statements 2006




3.52pm Trying something new, Brighton Beach, Sussex

"Someone shouts ‘Action!” and suddenty the entire beach area
comes alive It's a great British scene - the pier, the people, and
Jamie Oliver being passionate about spinach in anice cream
van as he encourages people to try something new”

Photagrapher Stuarl Frankhn




Our new brandmng, 'Try Something New
Today’, is much more than a slogan
The spirit and success of the campaign
has inspired our entire business, and
customers love it too

The tdea for "Try Somethung New Today came about
because we wanied to encourage people to visit

thewr local store to experience the improvements

we had made The insight behind the campaign was
that although an average supermarket stocks around
30,000 products, customers tend to purchase from
around the same 150 products each week and often
don't notice whal's going on around them in the store

We tested this idea by reworking research arigmally
carried oul by Harvard Umiversity We dressed someone
mn a gorilla suit and sent them into store We then
asked customers if they had noticed anything unusual
white doing their shopping The vast majority had not
and the concept of sieep-shopping was born

So Try Something New Today aims to inspire customers
to think beyond their normal range of products

The campaign provides simple ways to make small

but sigruftcant changes to the food we buy and eat

The campaign has been incredibly well received hy
colleagues and cusiomers

Qur advertising, featuring Jamie Qliver, has putlicised
the campaign to an even wider audience, and safes

of whole nutmeg increased from 1,400 jars to 6,000
a week after Jamie used 1t as seasoning for pasta

Freshdeas

We ve apptied the thinking betund Try Something
New Today to the way we work For example we now
have an email lree day n gur Store Support Centre
Lo encousrage cotleagues to get up from therr desks
and communicale in person

} Sainsbury plc Annyal Report and Finanoial Statements 2006

Colleagues now get to try products and recipes so they
can expertence them first hand and recommend deas
to customers More than seven million customers are
coltecting our *hp cards’, and we've given out more
than 100 multion cards so far

Clearly, the relatienstup between colleagues and
customers can make an enarmous difference and we
take it very seriously Every store colleague received
new customer service traimning last autumn

My Board colleagues and | alse ploted a two-day
tramning course focused on embedding new ways to
lead our busingss, and helped to then deliver that
traiming to 1,000 of our managers from stores and
central teams They, inturn are delivering that training
to a further 9000 managers

We try to be innovative with training and development,

and our Scan School 1s an example of that The school
15 actually two specially fitted double decker buses
that visit our stores to tramn our traming colleagues

Colleagues have to go no further than the store car
park to receive the training The buses have travetled
around the country sc that 90,000 colleagues at
around 500 stores can give customers a faster and
friendher checkout service

We track how engaged with our goal and values
colleagues are, and marked improvements have
been achieved since Seplember 2005 I'm dehghted
that 177,000 colleagues will receive a share of a

£52 million beonus pot - a just reward for the huge
effort they have made this year




4.47pm Scan bus colleague training, Coldhams Lane, Cambridge
“Colleagues from the store were inside the bus, busily learning the

best ways to work with the store technology What a great 1dea

to take the school to the students, rather than the other way round

Simple, but clever”

Photographer Anders Hard




5.14pm Every customer counts, Castle Lane West, Dorset

“Sainsbury’s has a lot more customers now than a year ago and
two things really stood out Every timel asked someone if | could
photograph them they were excited to take part And everyone
at Sainsbury’s talks about customers, not consumers | think both
things sayaliot ™

Phategrapher Victoria Nightingale




Research shows a marked improvement
in customer satisfaction This s the
result of the many changes we are
making every day

In addition to our core offer we've also been working
on non-food ranges which currently account for
around ten per cent of our total sales We concentrate
on things customers now want to find in a supermarket
hke greetings cards, DVDs and clothes and accessortes

Our target 15 to generate £700 rmithon of additional
sales from non-food products The focus this year was
to make the space already dedicated to these products
work harder and we tested new products, fixtures

and layouts in 20 stores

The results were pleasing and we re now introducing
more space for non-food products as stores are
extended and reformatted, and we estimate that
around 50 stores will be altered in this way over the
next 12 months

‘TU", our own label clothing range has been incredibly
successful this year, with sales up by more than 40
per cent As part of our refurtishment and extension
programme we plan to introduce 'TU" into around

40 more stores In 2006 and extend the current ‘“TU
offer in around 60 stores

We have also added 41 pharmacies during the year
taking the total number in our stores to 169 In total

In fashion

Our TU range of adult and children s ¢lothing
and accessories s now available in 202 stores
It s very popular with customers and safes are
up over 40 per cent this year

we grew sales of non food items by etght per cent
which was ahead of the market

Qur Bank s an important part of our customer offer but
it had a difficult year making an underlying operating
loss of £10 million due to additional charges for bad
debt The debt relates largely to loans made two and
three years ago when the Bank was taking on lots of
new customers seeking loans Sainsbury's Bank has
been particularly affected because the type of products
in its offer were those most likely to be affected as the
consumer credit environment worsened this year The
position 1s now stabilising and we have put processes
in place to bighten our credit policy and associated

risk controis

On a maore positive note customer numbers are growing
and accounts were up eight per cent to 2 5 million and
we continue to grow the part of the business for which
we recelve COMmMmIssIon

Tim Pile stepped down as Chief Executive of the Bank
in March 2006 and we appointed Rob Walker as our
new Chief Executive in May 2006 We believe that the
supermarket banking model1s robust and the move
to more commission-based products 1s appropriate
for long term growth and profitabihity

Together with our partner, HBOS, we're commuitted

to the Bank and on working together to return it to
profitabiity Qur target 15 for the Bank to breakeven in
the 2006/07 financial year and return to profitability
in 2007/08

J Sansbury plc Annual Report and Firancial Statements 2006
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Working with local communities is key

to our search for new stores It's not just
what we sell but how and where we sell it
that's important We want to ensure our
stores complement the local environment

The store environment affects everything from the
customer's experience to the efiiciency with which we
can manage stock soupgrading stores s an expensive
but critical actwity In October we earmarked 131
stores for invesiment and by the end of March 2006
we had refurbished 37 of these Ten stores were
extended and 14 new stores were opened, including
nine Sateway stores purchased from Morrisons By the
end of 2005 we had 455 supermarkets in our portfolio

We were able to refurtish and re open the new Safeway
stores in time for Christmas trading In the 14 stores
we acquired from Morrisons earlier in 2005 sales

are up, on average, by around 20 per cent, which
demonstrates the appeal of Sainsbury’'s when we
introduce our brand to new locations

We're now pursuing new sites for supermarkets under
the leadership of Peter Baguley who joined in August
2005 as Property Director Early indecatrons from
councils and developers are encouraging We believe
our commitments fo food quakity and the wider
community are helping to sel us apart from other
large retailers when seeking and developing sites In
Maidenhead pictured opposite, we are bullding a new
55,000 sq {t store as part of the averall regeneration
of the town centre

Our fotus on food sets us apart

We beheve our comrutments to food quatty and
the wider community hefp to set us apart from other
large retailers when seeking and developing sites
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We now have 297 convenience stores, trading under
the brands Sainsbury’s Local, Samnsbury's @ Bells
and Sainsbury s @ Jacksons Last year we opened
20 stores, refurbished 34 Sainsbury's Locals and
60 ‘Samnsbury’'s @ stores

We achieved another goad year in our convenience
stores and expect this part of our bustness to generate
£400 million of the £2 5 bilhon of agdditional sales

set out in our recovery plan

Refurtwshed and converted stores are generating
substantial sales increases and we're improving our
existing stores and integrating acquisitions as quickly
and effectively as we can Customers particularly
value our fresh food otfer and sales of these products
following store conversions have increased by around
100 per cent

Customers are also more satisfied with aur online home
delivery service, where our nvestment in enhancements
has improved sales by more than 25 per cent We put
expansion plans on hold while we fixed the basics

of the operation and we re-launched the website in
September 2005 The service now fully integrated
with our stores, has much better product availabiity

We carried out little marketing activity for the onhne
service this year, yel managed to attract many new
customers We think this demonstrates the power

of word of mouth, with customers responding to our
improved service by recommending us to friends

At the start of 2006 we added new post codes to
our delwery areas and we plan to extend the secvice
to a further 200,000 households this year




6.10pm Maidenhead town centre regeneration

“The thing s, you can't ude a development It's right bang in the
middle of the community and everyone knows what's betng built
People here seemed pleased It was going to be a Sainsbury's ™

Photographer Charlie Fawell
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We've made birg changes in the supply
chatn, reorganising processes to ensure
we get the right products to the right
stores at the nght time

Ulhmately, our recovery s dependent on how we
perform here in the engine room of the business
What goes on inside secmewhere like our Hams Hall
depot makes an enormous difference to our customers
expertence, and so0 to the Sainsbury's brand and
ultimately to our financial performance | hope the
photograph here gets across a flavour of the energy
and momentum behind the scenes at Sainsbury's

Getting the supply chamn right has required decisive
action We transferred our operation at Charlton to

a third party operator closed our depots at Northfleet
and Rotherham and reorganised our Basingstoke and
St Alhans depots into multi-purpose facihties providing
chilled ambient and fresh products to stores We have
used our Buntingiord facihity to provide addiional
capacity at Christmas for the past two years but

will now keep it open (o help us keep pace with sales
growth We worked successiully to win support for
our actions from calleagues and unions

Cur Waltham Point and Hams Hall depots are now
processing an average of two million cases a week,
significantly up on 2004/05

The many changes we've made have saved the
business substantial amounts of money We identified
E400 mulhon of cost reductions in Qctober 2004 and
delivered more than £110 mulhon thus year, primarily
In the areas of steck loss and central costs We expect
to deliver a further E175 mithon savings in the current
year bringing the cumulative total to £285 million
and stretching cur original target to £440 million

Dedivering a profit

atthe start of 2006 new post codes were adged
tothe area served by our online home delivery
operation as more and more people recommeng
the servrce to family and friends
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in January 2006 Roger Burnley joined us as Supply
Chain Director and t.awrence Christensen moved into
a part-time consulting role Roger will now concentrate
on consolidating the numerous changes afready made
Replenmishment orders are being dehvered faster and
in a store-friendly way with products already sorted
according to the aisles in which they are found in stare
and we're working with supphers to help us \improve
avatlabihty even further and reduce costs

We completed the insourcing of IT systems and the
transfer of 470 colleagues, ali assets and third party
contracts back into Sainsbury s in Apnil, just six months
after announcing our decision to terminate our contract
with Accenture We expect torecoup the costs
invelved in ending this outsourcing agreement within
the next two years

It's appropriate we fimsh this review by showing our
supply chain as thus 15 where the Sainsbury s day
really starts and ends At 10 37pm we re working on
tomorrow s dehivenes - and the day after that - to
replemish our stores for another very busy 24 hours
within Sainsbury s

We've made hundreds of small changes as I mentioned
at the beginning, here in the supply chamn and
throughout the entire business, and we're beginning
to see the effect of these changes

Qur recovery s on track, but we re not complacent
We know we have {o keep ynproving things for
customers, increasing sales and reducing costs as we
continue to work on Making Sainsbury's Great Again

WO W
\J Y

Justin King Chief Executive




9.47pm Hams Hall depot, near Birmingham

“What I'l never forget I1s the size of the place It's an amazing
operation I'd never thought about the scale of a supermarket
distribution system before Extraordinary”

Photographer Stater King
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Our commitment to the communities in which we operate

Corporate responsibity 1sn’'t new for us When we opened our first store in 1869 the
guiding principle was to offer good quality products to everyone, including those who
had never had access to healthy and safe food before Today, our commitment to the
communuties in which we operate s still every bit as important and the five principles
below underpin our activities Customers trust us to take care of their concerns, and
that sets us apart from competttors as you will have seen in this Review

In many areas we already lead our industry, but we're committed to innovating and

setting even higher standards We've provided some examples of our activities but our
full corporate responsibility report can be found at www,j-sainsbury co uk/cr

The Best for Food and Health

Our goal s to provide customers with healthy,
safe, fresh and fasty products We want to
make healthy eating easier, enjoyable and more
affordable for everyone

The quality of the information we provide 1s an
important part of this commitment We work closely
with argamisations such as the Food Standards Agency
to develop clear and honest labelling We also help
customers balance their diet by providing a wide
range of food choices and help people learn more
about ingredients, cooking and nutrition

Sourcing with Integrity

We've along tradition of working with supphers
to source, produce and provide excellent food for
customers Qur suppliers are partners - we rely
onthem and respect their expertise

We've been working with some of our supphers for
decades Successful relationships are based on open
dislogue and a shared understanding of customers
concerns and changing tastes and needs We also
demand high ethical standards

Respect for our environment

Ten years ago we were the first major British
food retatler to publish a comprehensive report
on our environmental performance We've built
on that commitment, reporting reguarly on
what we do

The environment 1s integrated into our commercial
decision making and we always work to minumise

any potentially adverse effects of our operations
We're as committed to tnvesting inimproving impacts
such as emissions and energy use, as we are about
more tangible things like carnier bags and packaging
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Making a Positive Difference

to your Community

We believe we're part of your community, not
apart fromit That belief goes back almost 140
years when we had just one shop located right
in the heart of the local area

We ve been involved in all sorts of community
initiatives, from encouraging customers to Grin and
share itt during wartime ratitoning to today s Active
Ktds' scheme and our investment in charitable
actribies Cur policy 1s to consult the local community
when we open a store and to keep talking to local
people onceit's built

A Great Place to Work

Sainsbury’sisn't Just a collection of storesit's a
group of committed, hard-working people - the
colleagues who provide the producis, services,

adwvice and help customers need

Colleagues are more than employees, they're members
of the wider community, they are customers and nme
out of ten live within a mile of their store Many are
atso shareholders We're committed to providing a

safe healthy and productive working environment

We want colleagues to beneht irom therr time at work
and provide a range of training and development
opportunities

This year, donattons to charitable organisations

and other community projects totalled £5 6 milion

tn addition, we made significant contributions to other
community-related mitiatives and our ‘Active Kids'
scheme donated £12 5 mullion {at cost) to schools
Sansbury's coleaques, customers and suppliers
rarsed £3 25 millton for charities such as Home-Start
and the Children’s Society, through events supported
by Samnsbury's




Taste of Success supported by the Department for
Education & Skills teaches chuldren about food and
nutnition It inciudes awards leacher training sessions
and an teractive website We provided more than
£100 000 in funding In 2005/06 We re re branding the
scheme Active Kids Get Cocking to combine healthy
eating with the heaithy lifestyle concept of Active Kids

We've donated food since 1998 Lo charities such as the
Salvation Army FareShare and Food For All The food
1s safe edible and nutritious beyondits display by
date but within its use by date 8y March 2006 270
stores were donating surplus food This year we aim

te link all supermarkets with a charity

We led the industry in January 2005 with our Wheael

ol Health  a multiple traflic ight nutritional fabelhing
system Developed after extensive research and following
input from the Feods Standards Agency around 80 per
cent of custemers have noticed the labeliing and believe
ibinfllugnces whal they buy

We re along standing supporter of the Fairtrade mark and
the UK s leadmng Fairtrade supermarkel We ve introduced
many new products such as the UK s birst Fairtrade

baby food in February we placed the UK s single largest
Farrtrade cotton order for 200 000 T shirts to support
Spaort Rehef

Cur new healthy apple stamp 1s the symbol of health
at Sainsbury s A salesincrease of almest 15 per cent
for products carrying the apple stampndicates the
underlying concept of encouraging healthier choices
has worked in 2005/06

Active Kids provides schools with activity equipment

in return for vouchers earned in store In 2005 we attracted
80 per cent of all UK primary and secondary schools ang
donated activity equipment worth over £17 mibon The
2006 scheme has over 30000 schools and nurseries

now reqistered

We ve supported Comic Relief s Red Nase Day since
1999 and now also support Sport Relief as part of a
S year deal which runs until 2011 Money raised belps
poor and disagvantaged people in the UK and some
of the poorest countries in the world to help make
feng term changes to their lives

Last year customers recycled around 100 million
plastic bags through our recyching collection points
They also buy 120 000 of cur Bag for Life each week
saving an eshimated 50 milhon standard bags a year
in140 stores we re trialling fully compostable GM free
wrap on organic apples and potatoes the first of its
kind in the UK

In @ market hrst we started selling milk from British
farms converting to crganic standards in May 2006
Demand for organic milk outstrips UK supply so we re
working with farmers o cover additional associated
costs dunng conversion and offering 12 month supply
contracts ance the milk 15 organic

We ve invested extensively in energy efficiency
prejects for many years and have triatied state of the
art recyching banks in six London sites which recycle
progucts such as COs and clothes as well as plastic
and glass We re now rolling them out ta around

S0 stores this year

We have industry leading Hish sustainability plans
supported by the Marine Conservation Society
(MCS) which included the removal of skate

and huss in Felruary 2006 We were also

first to sell Manine Stewardship Council (MSO)
approved cod cne of the mast endangered fish species

We sold aver £6 bitlion of British products in our
stores last year and encouraging local producers is a
key part of our sourcing strategy Buying from smailer
suppliers can stimulate local economies and we currently
stock 3 500 jocaily produced products

Qur Local Herpes awards recagnise colleagues who
donate time and eflort Lo good causes outside work
and danated £250 000 1n 2005/06 We match funds
raised with between £200 and £500 Colleagues who
volunteer in their own tyme receive £200 for therr
charity or community group

Talkback ts our internal colleague feedback survey
which now cperates on a roling basis It provides us
with a3 monthiy snapshot of colleague engagement
across all areas ¢f our business We have seen marked
improvements 1n the scores we have achieved during
the past 12 manths

J Sainsbury plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2006
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J Sainsbury plc: Board of Directors

Philip Hampton ¢
Chairman

Appointed 19 July 2004 Philip Hampten was
Group Finance Drrector of Lloyds TSB Group plc
(2002 2004) Group Finance Director of BT
Group plc (2000 2002) Group Finance Director
of the BG Group pic (formerly British Gas ple)
(1995 2000) Group Finance Director of British
Steel pic (1990 1995) Executive director of
Lazards {1581 1990} Non Executive Director

of RMC Group plc (2002 2005} Heled the
Hampton Review for HM Treasury Currently

a Non Executive Director of Belgacom (the
Belgian telecam groug) since 2004 Age 52

Jamie Dundas ¢ ¥
MNon-Executive Director

Appointed | September 2000 Formerly

Chief Executive of MEPE plc which he joined
as Fnance Director in 1997 and prior to that
Finance Director of the Hong Kong Awrport
Authority (1992 1996) Non Executive Director
of Standard Chartered PLC and Drax Group plc
Chairman of Macmilian Cancer Relief Age 55

Bob Stack < <.
Non Executive Director

Appointed | January 2005 Joined Cadbury
Beverages in the US in 1990 and joined the
Cacdbury Schweppes pic Board in May 1996
as Group Human Resources Direclor In
March 2000 he was appointed Chief Human
Resources Officer and took on responsibility
for communicabion and external affars in
additign to HR Age 55

Life President
Lorg Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

Justin King
Chief Executwve

Appainted 29 March 2004 Chairman of the
Operating Board and Director of Sainsbury s
Bank plc Formerly Drrector of Food Marks &
Spencer From 1994 2001 held senior posihions
al ASDA/Wal Martin Tracing HR and Retail
Previously Manaoing Director of Haagen Dazs
UK Early career with Mars Confectionery ang
FPepsiinternational Age 44

Gary Hughes &%
Non Executive Dhrector

Appointed | January 2005 Chief Executive
al CMP Informaticn - a division of United
Busmness Media plc Formerly Group Finance
Director of Emap plc Group Finance Director
of SMG plc Depuly Finance Cirector of Forte
p!c and prior to this held a number of semior
management pasitions with Guinness plcin
the UK and in North America Age 44

Dr John McAdam *¢
Senior Independent Director

Appointed1 September 2005 Currently Chief
Execulive of ICI plc having joined Unitever as
a management Llrainee 1n 1974 where he held

a number of sermior positions in Birds Eye Walls
Quest andUnichema befare the sale of the
Specially Chemical Businesses to IC1in 1997
He is alse a member of the University of Surrey
Business Adwisory Board and the University

af Cambridge Chemustsy Advisory Board
Formerly Non Execubive Director of Severn
Trent pic (2000 2005) Age 58
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Darren Shapland
Chief Financtal Officer

Appointed 1 August 2005 Formeriy Group
finance Cirector of Carpetrignt plc (2002 2005}
and Finance Director of Superdrug Storas

pic {2000 2002) Between 1988 2000 carried
out a3 number of positions at Arcadraplic
(formerly Burton Group) including Jomnt
Managing Director Arcadia Home Shopping
Finance Director of Arcadia brands Finance
Birector Top Shop/Top Man (Burton Group}
and Brrector of Supply Chain Programme
{Burton Group} Age 39

Bridget Macaskill &
Non Executive Director

Appoaintedifebruary 2002 Currently a
Director of the Federal National Morigage
Assaciation and a Non Executive Director
of Prudential pic since 2003 Formerly
Chairman and Chief Executive Qfhicer at
OppenhemmerFunds and Non Executive
Director of Prudential pic (1999 2001 and
Hillsdown Holdings plc (1989 1991} Age 57

Anng Ford <
Nor Executive Director

Appointed 2 May 2006 Retired from the 8BC
in April 2006 atter 30 years of service

She has been atrustee of the Royal Botanical
Gardens in Kew Landon 1s Chancellor of
Manchester University a Fellaw of the Royal
Geographical Society and an Honerary
Bencher of Middle Temple Age 62

Key to Committee Members

& Nomination Committee

* Audit Committee

< Remuneration Committee

& % & Denotes Charman of Committee

Note Gary Hughes became Chawrman of the Audit
Committee on 10 May 2006 taking over {rom Jamue Dundas




The Operating Board is responsible for the day-to-day running of the business
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer are also part of this team

Mike Coupe

Trading Director appainted ta t{he Gperating
Beard in October 2004 Jeined Sainsbury s
from Big Food Group where he was a Board
Director of Big Food Group plc and Managing
Cirector of Iceland Food Stores Freviously
worked for bolh Asda and Tesco plc

Gwyn Burr

Customer Services Director Joined the
Operating Board in 2004 Gwyn has over
20 years business experience including
five with Nestle Rowntree and over 13 with
ASDA/Wal Mart At Asda she held various
Board level pesitions across Own Brand
Marketing Customer Service and Retan

Darren Shapland See page 26

Justin King See page 26

Tim Fallowfietd

Company Secretary since 2001 Tim joined
from Exel ple {(formerly NFC plc) the glabal
logistics company where he was Company
Secretary and Head of Legal Services {1994
2001 Prior to this worked at Clifford Chance
andis a qualified solcitor

Imelda Walsh

HR Directer since October 2001 and appointed
to the Operating Board when it was farmed

in May 2004 Before this was a member of

the Board of Sainsbury $ Supermarkets Ltd
from March 2003 Prior to jeining Samnsbury s
worked as the HR Director for Barciays Relall
Financial Services Previcus roles within the
Barclays Group wnciuded Group Employee Policy
and Planning Director HR Directer Corporate
Banking and Groug HR Development Director
Previously worked for Coca Colaand
Schweppes Beverages

Ken McMerkan
Retail Director appeinted to the Operating

Boardwn February 2005 Kenjoined Sainsbury s

from Tesco plc where he worked for 14 years
He was appointed Chief Executive for Tesco
Japan having previously been appointed
Chief Executive of Admin Stores following
its acquisition by Jesco Before joining Tesco
he warked fer Sears plc for four years

Roger Burnley

Supply Chatn Director appomnted to the
Qperating Board 1n March 2006 Roger

was previously Supply Chain Director at
Matalan He spent tus early career in retait
management and buying at B&Q before joimng
ASDA/Wal Mart where he held a number

of positions before becaming Supply Chain
Drectorin 2001

Photc taken at the Food Centre at Sainsbury s Store Support Centre London where the Operating Board carries out regular sampling of products
From left toright Mike Coupe Gwyn Burr Darren Shaptand Justin King Tim Fallowlield Imelda Walsh Ken McMerkan and Roger Burnley
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Financial review

for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

Summary
The financial results for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006 reflect the first
full year of solid progress on the Making Sainsbury s Great Agasin plan

Sales {inc VAT) from continuing operations up 5 8 per cent te £17 317
million (2004/05 £16 364 million) and up £722 milhon before petrol
and Sainsbury s Bank a sigmficant step towards the commitment to
grow sales by £2 5 hilhon announced in the Making Sainshury s Geeat
Again plan

Sales (ex VAT} from continuing operations up 57 per cent to £16 061
milhon (2004/05 £15 202 million)

Full year Easter adpusted hke for like sales growth excluding petro? up
37 per cent and 41 per cent icluding petrol

Retail underlying operating profit up to £352 million (2004/0%

£308 million), the benehts of operational gearing have started to come
through with the improvement in retail underlying aperating profit
margins reflected in the 14 3 per cent underlying operating profit growth
In 2005/06

Sainsbury s Bank underlying operating loss of £10 million (2004/05
profit of £17 millien} due to increased provisioning for bad and
doubtful debts

Underiying profit betore tax from continuing cperations up 12 2 per cent
at £267 millign (2004/05 £238 million)

One off operating costs of £152 mulllon (2004/05 E£497 mullton) were
incurred during the year relating to the Business Review IT insourcing
and debt restructuring

Prefit before tax from centinuing operations was £104 milhon
(2004/05 £238 million loss)

Underlying basic earnings per share from continuing operations
increased by 26 5 per cent to 10 % pence (2004/05 8 3 pence) and
basic earmings per share from centinuing operatiens increased to
3 8pence (2004/05 17 4 pence loss)

Underlying net debt' improved year on year by £77 million despite
the addhtional one off pension contribution made during the year of
£110 million and the unwinding of the Easter benefit within 2004705

Afinal dividend of 5 85 pence per share 15 proposed up 3 5 per cent
(2004/05 5 65 pence)

Summary income statement

52 weehs to 52 weeks 1o
25 March 26 March

2006 2005
Cantinuing operations £m m % change
Sales (inc VAT)
Retaiing Supermarkets and Convernence 16,987 16,076 57
financial services  Samsbury s Bank 330 288 146
Total sales (inc VAT} 17,317 16 364 58
Sales (ex VAT)
Retaling Supermarkets and Converuence 15,731 4914 55
Financial services  Samnsbury s Bank 330 2B8 14 6
Tatal sales (ex VAT} 16,061 15 202 57
Underlying operating profit
Retaling - Supermarkets and Convenience a52 308 14 3
Financial services - Sainsbury s Bank (10) 17 (158 8)
Total underlying operating profit 342 32% 52
Underlying net finance cosls? (75} (88) 148
Share of post tax profit joint ventures - 1 {100 0)
Underlying prefit before tax 267 238 122
Business Review and Transformation
operating costs (51} (497} 897
IT insourcing costs (63) - n/a
Prald, on sale of prapecties 1 21 (95 2)
Financing fair value movements (12) - nsa
Debt restructuring costs {38) - n/a
Profit/{loss) before tax 104 (238} (143 7}
Inceme tax (expense)/credit (46) 51 (190 2)
Protit/(loss) from centinuing operations 58 {187) (131 0)
Profit attributable to discontinued aperations - 375 {1000
Profit for the financial year 58 188 ©s 1
Underlying basic earmings per share 10 5p B 2p
Basie earnings/(losses) per share from
continuing aperations 3gp (U7 4)p
Basic earnings per share 38p 4 1p
Proposed dividend per share? 8 0p 7 8p

1 Underlying net debt Met debt before 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 adustments

2 Underlying net hinance costs Met fingnce costs pre Tinancing fair value movements and debt
restructuring costs
3 Proposed dividend per share Tatzl proposed ¢ividend per share in relation to the financial year
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Financial review continued

for the 52 weeks 10 25 March 2006

The lollowing key events had a significant impact on the business during
the year

The Group's debt restructuring

On 24 March 2006 the Group repurchased all its outstanding unsecured
bonds totalling £17 billion with the proceeds from an 1ssue of £2 | trihon
of secured debt (the debt restructuring) The long term financing
arrangement has been secured over 127 freehold and leasehold
supermarkets and 1s repayable over 12 and 25 year terms This transaction
has enabled the Group to borrow at lower interest rates and provides a
flexible financing platform for the future Interest savings of £12 mallion
are expected in 2006/07 althcough no benefit has been realised within
2005/06 The one o#f charge associated with the debt restructuring was
£38 milhon

Defined benefit pension changes

Al the same time as the debt restructuring the Group commutted to make
an additional contribution of £350 million into the Group s defined benehit
pensian schemes E10 mullion was paid during the year with the remaining
£240 million to be paid in May 2006 This one off contribution, together
with in¢reasing the annual contributions by £18 millien to £38 milhon per
annum over the next eight years 15 designed to fund the reported deficit
calculated under 1AS {9 as af 8 October 2005

IT inscurcing

On 28 Apri 2006 the Group successiutly completed the migration of IT
services previously proviged by Accenture as announced on 27 Qctober
2005 Thisunvolved the transfer of all assets third party contracts and
approximately 470 colleagues back inte the Group resulting in a one off
charge during the year of £63 milion which future cost savings are
expected {o pay back in less than two years

Business Review and Transformation costs

The frnal costs associated with the Business Review announced on

19 October 2004 were £51 militon in ling with guidance provided at the
last vear end These were pnmanly employee and pension related costs
following further rationalisation of the supply chain The Business Review
Is now coemplete and no further costs wili be incurred in relation to this
one off activity
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Retailing

Sales (inc VAT) increased by 57 per cent to £16 987 million (2004/05
E16 076 milion) and 6 1 per cent on an Easter adjusted basis, with
signiitcant contributions from bike for like growth new space and petrol
Easter adjusted ltke for hke sales excluding petrol were up 37 per

cent with strong performances delivered within food non food and
Convenience The positive sales growth was achieved withincreased
volumes being ofiset by grocery price deftation of 15 per cent as a
result of continued investment 1n the cusiomer offer

KPls
28 weeks to 24 weeks o 52 weeks to 52 weeks lo
8 Oclober 25 March 25 March 26 March
2005 2006 2006 2005
Like tor like sales ex peirot
(Easter adjusted) - % 21 53 37 (¢ 4)
Grocery poce deflabian’ - % 14) {16) (15 (10)
Retail operating margin
(retarl underlying operating profhit
diviged by retal sales ex VAT) + % 2 06 243 224 207

1 Ceflation noted lor 52 weeks 1o 26 March 2005 redates to talal relai deflation escluding petral

The impact of petrol on like for like growth remained positive with Easter
adjusted Like for like sales including petrot up 41 per cent

sales (inc VAT) belore petrol and Sainsbury s Bank increased by £722
milhon This 1s a key indicator of underlying supermarket performance
and the sales measure used within the J Samnsbury plc Share Plan 2005
This perfermance 1s anmportant first step towards the commitment to
grow these sales by £2 5 bullion as part of the Making Sainshury s Great
Again plan

New space provided a sigmificant contnibution te sales growth during
the year, with 367 000 square feel of {loor space added anincrease of

2 2 percent of which O 6 per cent was from extensions Duning the year
14 new supermarkets inctuding a further nine Safeway branded stores
purchased from Morrisons and 20 new convenience stores were opened
live of which related to {he acquisition of SL Shaw Lid The Group made
further investment through the complefion of nine extensions 28
refurbishments and one downsize 1n the supermarket estate and 94
refurbishments and conversions of convenience stores

Supermarkets Lonvenience Total

Number Area  Number Arga  Number Area

000t 000 sq it Qo0 sq ft

As a1l 26 March 2005° 446 15592 28t 718 727 16,370
New stores 14 295 20 60 34 355
Closures 5y (112 (4) [Sg] 9y (129)
Extensions’ - 141 - - - 141
As at 25 March 2006 455 15916 297 821 752 16 737

2 Restated for the transter of Centrals into the converience dvision
3 Includes the impact of downsizes and other s1z¢ adjustments

Retail underlying operating prefit increased to £352 million

(2004/05 £308 rmlhion) Higher sales volumes and cost efficiencies
helped mitigate the impact of invesiment in price and increased store
labour costs as improved pricing and service remain core to mamtaining
focus on what 15 night for the customer




Financial review continued

tor the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

Gross margin during the year continued to reftect the commitment

to invest £400 million in the customer offer (in both price and guality}
outlined in the Making Sainsbury s Great Again plan This helped drive
the sates led recovery by ensuring that $ainsbury s continues 1o offer
great foed at far prices

In 2005/06 the operating ethciencies which underpin the Making
Sainsbury s Great Again plan began to emerge Significant improvements
were noted In the overall level of stock loss, which given that it coincided
with irmproved availlabilily withen stores was even more significant
Following the completion of the Store Support Centre reorganisation
savings were also reahsed within the Group s central costs

In the second half of the year the Group started to see the early henelits
of process efficiency in store and supply chain coming through m lower
casts The Group is an track to deliver the target cost savings identtfied

as part of the recovery plan and plans are in place ta deliver the expected
level of savings 1n 2006/07 However the Group remains sensitive to
increasing external cost pressures on the retallndustry principally
relating to increases inrent rates and general wage pressures Additionally
the Group's fixed energy contract s due to expire in October 2006

This will add an estimated £55 million to energy costs i the second half
of 2006/07 and an additional £20 mullon in the first half of 2007/08

Improved tevels of availabiity and service in stores were also reflected
In the online home delvery operation Sainsbury s Online Onhne sales
wera up over 25 per cent during the year with customer arders up over
20 per cent The service s now being further extended

Financial services - Sainsbury's Bank

Sainsbury s Bank increased total income by 14 6 per cent te £330 millign
(20Q4/05 £288 mukon} cantinuing to 2xpand its customer base through
the sale of its core products persanal loans savings accounts credit cards
and general and life insurance Customer accounts grew by B 3 per cent
duning the year and net operating income was up by id 3 per cent to

£215 mithon prirmarily driven by an increase in fee and commission
ncome as the Group looks to expand and increase revenue streams

Curing a more challenging year for the financial services industry
Sainsbury s Bank delivered an underlying operating loss of £10 million
{2004/05 £17 maliion profit) This was driven dy provisions for bad and
doubtful debts which increased In the year to £106 million (2004/05
£64 milhon) The increase reflects the high valume of business written in
2003 and 2004 which linked to a more indebted economic environment
and with weaker levels of consumer confidence has required addrtonal
provisions to be made Steps have been taken during the year to tighten
credit pohcy on unsecured lending and significant progress has been
made in credit management ol Samnsbury s Bank s lending portfolio

Sainsbury s Bank will continue 10 grow customer numbers with further
investment i ivsurance savings and commssion based products and
with increased control over historic bad and doubtiut debts the Bank s
targeting break even in 2006/07

The prior year comparative has been restated to rellect a reclassiftcation
of interest expense from operating profit into interest payable to ensure
1tis consisient with the treatment for the year ending 25 March 2006
The impact of this rectassification s to increase Sansbury s Bank's
2004/09 underilying operating profit and the Group s finance cosls by

£4 milhon

Underlying net finance costs

Underiying net finance costs decreased by £13 mullion to £79 mution
(2004/05 £88 mihon), with a £27 million reduction in underlying finance
tosts berng oflfset iy fower finance iIncome of £14 million

52 weeksto 52 weeks lo

25 March 26 March

2006 2005

£€m im

Interest receivable 7 33
Nel return on pension scheme assets/habilibies 23 11
Finance incame o a4
tnterest payable (115) (137}
Capitalised interest 10 5
Underlying finance costs' (105} (132)
Underlying net hinance costs (75) {88}

1 Finance costs pre fianging lair value movements and debt restructunag costs

Finance income fell due to a reduction in interest receivable in the year
as In the prior year interest was earned from the cash proceeds reahsed
from the disposat of Shaw s Supermarkets in the {irst hatf This was
partially offset by an increase inthe net return on pension scheme assets
recagnised in the year Underlying finance costs were down as a result

of lower average net debt during the second half of the year improved
working capital management and higher capitalised interest reflecting
an ncrease 1N expenditure an long term new developments

The Group s cost of finance 15 estimated to reduce during 2006/07 as
aresult of the debt restructuring although no benefit has been realised
within 2005/06 as the refinancing was completed on 24 March 2006

Debt restructuring costs

£38 mithon of costs resulted from the changes made to the Groups debt
structure and have been treated as one off costs The cash impact during
the year was £22 milhion with a further £2 million to be paid in 2006/07
The transaction costs retating to the issue of new secured debt in¢urred
as part of the refinancing are 1o be amortised over the hife of the loans

2006

Em

Bond buy back costs 24
Non cash swap close out costs 14
Total debt restructuring costs 38

IT insourcing costs

£63 million of costs were charged as a resull of the migration of IT
services previously provided by Accenture back to Sainsbury s with all
termination and transition costs being treated as one off The 2005/06
cash impact of IT migration was £3 million with £41 mition to be paid in
2006/07 The cast savings arising from insourcing should ensure that
pay back of the termination costs will be within two years
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Financial review continued

for the 52 weeks 10 25 March 2006

Business Review and Transformation operating costs
Business Review costs of £51 mullion were incurred during the year in line
with guidance at the last year end This represents the final tranche of
costs bringing the totaf operating charges associated with the Business
Review and Transformation over the two years to £548 million During
the year the cash outflow in relation to these costs was £65 million with
a turther estrmated impact of £50 millon In 2006/07

2006

Em

Empioyee and pension related a7
Other 4
Business Review operating costs 51

Profit on sale of properties

Surplus assets were solg In the year generating tota! cash proceeds of
£164 milion {2004/05 £266 milien) and an overalt profit on sale of
E1mithon (2004/05 £21 miliony This is a result of aligning the asset base
to the future needs of the business by disposing of trading and non trading
assets that were deemed surplus to requirements The Group will continue
to dispose of surplus assets but expect proceeds to return to mare modest
levels of around £50 million

Financing fair value movements

The Group does not use derivatives for speculative purposes However
certain swaps, while providing effective economic hedges do not qualfy
for hedge accounting under 1AS 39 and changes in the fair value of non
gualifying derivative instruments are recognised in the income statement
These are non cash and are inherently volatile movements and therefore
excluded from the definition of underlying profit

Fair value movements for the year resulted in a £12 millien loss of which
£4 million refates to Sainsbury s Bank

The Group tock the option to defer the impiementation of 145 32 and AS
39 to the 2005/06 vear end and these standards are not apphedto the
results of the prior year

Taxation

The income tax charge was £46 million (2004/05 ¢redit of £51 million)
with an underlying rate of 35 5 per cent (2004/05 37 4 per cent) and an
effective rate of 44 2 per cent (2004/05 214 per cent) The underlying
rate exceeded the nominal rate of UK corporation tax principally due to
depreciation charged on assets that did not qualify for capital allowances
Last year s tax credit arose from the effect of ane off costs which were
predominantly tax deductibie A £3 mubon refund of corporation tax was
received during the year (2G04/05 £71imithon paid)

Earnings per share

Underlying basic earnings ger share from centinuing operations increased
from 8 3 pence to 10 5 pence reflecting the improved underlying profit
after tax attributable to equity holders after adjusting for the minority
interests at Sainsbury s Bank and the impact of the share consolidation
during the 2004/05 financial year

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations increased to 3 8
pence (2004/05 17 4 pence 10ss) as the previous year was impacted
by the costs associated with the Business Review
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Dividend

A final dividend of 5 85 pence per share 1s proposed (2004/05 5 65
pence) and will be paid on 21 July 2006 to shareholders on the Reqister
of Members at the close of business on 26 May 2006 The total proposed
dividend for the year i1s 8 00 pence (2004/05 780 pence)

Underlying dividend cover increased in the year to 13 times (2004/05
11times) Asouthned in 2004/05 1t rematns the medium term objective to
restore dividend cover (calculated as underlying post tax earmings divided
by dividends) to at feast 15 times

Summary cash flow statement

52 weeks o 52 weeks to

25 March 26 March
2006 2005
£m £m

Operating cash flows 780 946
Net interest (156} 83)
Taxation 3 {(71)
Cash flow befcre appropriations 627 792
Purchase of fixed assets/operations {561) {823)
Sale of fixed asset/operations 151 1 383
Bond buy back costs (22} -
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares 22 5
Dwvidends pard 131) (254)
B share dividends paig - (113)
Repayment of shart term barrowings {299) (130
Increase/(repayment} of long term borrowings 364 {176)
Capital redemption (9) {549)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 142 135
{Increasel/decrease n debl (65) 306
Loans and hnance leases disposed with subsidiaries - 230
Movement in underlying net debt 77 671
Closmng 185 32 and 1AS 39 adjustments (51) -
Foreign exchange adjustments - (24}
Movement in net debt 26 647
Qpening net gebt (1 441) {2088
Closing net debt (1 415) (1 441)

On an underlying basis Group net debt has improved by £77 million with
E41 millon attributabte to Retaiing and £36 million o Financial services

The improvement in Retalling 1s despite the impact te net debt resulting
from the £110 milhon pension contnibution made duning the year and the
unwinding of the benefit noted in 2004/35 as a resull of Easter falling
at the year end This reflects closer management of werking capitak and
underlying profit growth

This performance highhights that the Group has achieved the objective

of positive cash flow in 2005/G6 whichis abead of the expectations set
out within the Making Sainsbury s Great Again plan The Group 1s worlang
towards a cash neutral position in 2006/07 before the additional one off
pension coniribution of £240 million and the £93 milion cash impact of
2005/06 one off items




Financial review continued

{or the 52 weeks Lo 25 March 2006

Summary balance sheet

25 March 26 March

2006 2005 2006 2005
Em £m £m Em
Nan current assels 8902 8630 Present value of funded obhgations {4,361) (3503}
Inventaries 576 559 Fair value of plan assets 3,710 2976
Trade and oth. 2241 1723
rade ano other recewables (651) 527}
Cash and cash equivalents 1028 706 Present value of unfunded abligations (7 (9)
Debt 2443 2147
¢ { b ) Retirement benelit obligations {658) (536)
Net debt (1415) (1441) Deferred laxation 227 181
Trad d ath
rade and ather creditors and provisions (6 339) (5 359) Net pension scheme habihtres (431) (375)

Net assets 3,965 4112
Equity shareholders (unds 3,886 4027
Minorily interest 79 85
Total equity 3,965 4112

Shareholders funds decreased by £141 milfign in the year to0 £3 886 milhon
with gearing tncreasing to 36 per cent (2004/05 35 per cent) The assets
labilities and cash ¢f Sainspury s Bank are presented within the Group's
asset habiity and cash classifications Jn a manner consistent with the
prior year

Group debt restructuring

On 24 March 2006 the Group repurchased all of 1ts outstanding unsecured
bonds totalling £17 ilbon via a cash tender The Group simultaneously
refinanced this debt with the proceeds from anissue of £2 1 bilhon of new
debt secured against appreximately hall of the book value of the Groups
supermarket portfolio

The new amoriising debt 1s spht between £12 tullion of loans with
final repayment in July 2018 and £C 9 billion of foans with repayment
In July 2031

Pensions

At the time of the debt refinancing the Group made a commitment to
make a one off contribution of £350 million Into the Group s defined
benefit pension schemes E110 million of this was paid into the scheme
on 24 March 2006 with a further £240 rmifhon in May 2006 In addrtion
the Group has agread to increase annual contributions by £18 milison to
£38 milien from March 2007 These contributions along with the £350
mulion one off contribution are expected to fund the reported deficit
calculated under 1AS 19 as at 8 October 2005 cver the next eight years

As part of the commutmeant of the Group to increase ¢contributions active
members can choose to increase contributions by an average of three per
cent of pay or choose to receive lower benehts in retirement

Linder 1AS 19 the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefltt obligatan 15 recogrused on the
balance sheet The income statement charge 1s spht between the operating
service charge and the financing credit Actuareal gains and losses are
recognised through the stalement of recogmised mcome and expense

An actuanal vatuation of the UK defined benefit pension schemes as

al 29 March 2003 indicated a deficit of £161t mihon the next actuanal
vatuationis currently in progress At 25 March 2006 the 1AS 19 deficst
(after deferred tax) was £431 mithon (2004/05 £375 milion} The increase
i the [AS 19 deficit is primarily a result of the bond yields falling impacting
the discount rate by 60 basis peints during the year partially affset by the
one off contribution of £110 milon and the rise 1n the value of investments
during the same period

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure reduced in the year o £525 million (2004/05 £901
miulign which included the acquisition of stores from Morrisons) down on
the £550 million grevigusly forecast

Retail capital expenditure excluding the acquisition and development

of Safeway/Morrisons stores and the acquisition of subsidianes was

E479 mithon (2004/05 £457 milhion) anincrease of £22 mithon on the
prior year This capital exgenditure inctuded £133 million (2004/05

£128 millien) on new stores £53 milhion (2004/0% £51 million} on
extensions and £193 mithon (2004/05 £109 millton) on refurbishments
which includes 28 of the 131 stores which have received hmited mnvestiment
for a number of years Further expenditure of £100 mihon (20G4/05
£169 million) was (ncurred in relation te IT investment supply chan and
central projects

Capital expenditure in 2006/07 15 expected to increase to between

£650 million and £700 rullion as a result of the carry over from the prior
year additional extensiens, the extra refurbishments to be completed as

part of the Making Sainsbury s Great Again plan and the development of

the new store pipeline

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The financiatinformation presented has been prepared on the basis of
International Financral Reperting Standards { IFRS ) which have been
fully adopted since the beqinning of 2005/06 All comparatives have been
restated on a consistent hasis with the exception of {AS 32 and 1AS 19

as the Group tock the option to defer implemertation until 2005/06

Overall there are no matenial ditferences between underlying profit
on an IFRS or UK GAAP basis and the impact of the IFRS adjustments
to underlying prolit before tax are conssstent with guidance given on
26 April 2006 and confirmed during the interims
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Financial review continued

for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

Treasury management

Treasury policies are reviewed and approved by the Board The Chief
Execulive and Chief Financial Officer have [oint delegated authonty
from the Board to approve finance transactions up to £300 million

The central treasury function is responsible {or managing the Group s
ltquid resources funding requirements and interest rate and currency
exposures Group policy permits the use of derivative instruments but
anly lor reducing exposures ansing from underlying business activity
and not for speculative purpases

Samsbury's Bank

Treasury operations in respect of Sainsbury s Bank are managed separately
from the central treasury function Responsibility for the control of fisk
within Sainsbury s Bank is vested in the Risk Management Committee
which reports diractly to the Board of Directers of Samnsbury s Bank

Further information with regard to the Group s treasury management
poltcies 1s contamed within note 30
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present therr report and audited financial statements for
the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

Principal activities and review of performance

The Company s principal activities are grocery and related retailing and
financial services A review of the performance of the Company and

its principal operating subsidiaries during the penigd is set out Inthe
Financial Review on pages 29 to 34 of this Report

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5 85 pence
per share (2005 565 pence) making a total dividend for the year of 8 00
pence per share (2005 780 pence) Subject to sharehclders approving
this recommendation at the Annual General Meeting { AGM ) the
dividend will be paid on 21 July 2006 to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on 26 May 2006

Changes to the Board

Darren Shapland was appointed Chief Financial Officer on | August 2005
and Dr John McAdam was appointed Senior Independent Director

on i September 2005 Anna Ford joined the Board as a Non Execulive
Director on 2 May 2006 Roger Matthews retired as Finange Director on
24 June 2005 and June de Maller retired from the Board on 1 September
2005 having served two three year terms as a Non Executive Director
8ridget Macaskill will step down from the Board following the AGM

In accerdance with the Articles of Association Darren Shapland John
McAdam and Anna Ford who were appointed since the last AGM wiil
retire and seek electton Full brographical detatls of the current Directors
are sef out on page 26

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Wednesday 12 July 2006 at The Queen Elizabeth
il Conference Centre Broad Sanctuary Westminster London SWIP 3EE at
1 00am The Chairmans fetter and the Notice of Meeting accompany this
Report 1egether with notes explaining the business to be transacted at
the meeting

At the meeting resolutions will be proposed to declare a hinal thvidend
receive the Report and Accounts and approve the Remunerabion Report
to elect Directors and to re appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

as Auditars In additien, sharehotders will be asked to approve a new
Long Term (ncentive Pian and a new Deferred Annual Bonus Plan renew
the general authority of the Directors tossue shares {together with the
authority te1ssue shares without applying the statutory pre emplion
rights) and authorise the Company to make market purchases of Its own
shares No such purchase has been made during the last inancial year
Other resolutrons propose the renewal of the authority to make political
donations as defined by The Political Parties Elections and Referendums
Act 2000

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Details of the changes to the sssued ordinary share capital are shown on
page 72

B Shares

At the Extraordinary General Meeling held on 12 July 2004 shareholders
approved a Return of Capital to shareholders by way of a 8 Share Scheme
A total of 1943173 266 B Shares were 1ssued on 19 July 2004 Durning

the year 2005/06 shareholders holding 27,197 589 B Shares elected to
redeem them leaving a balance of 34 418 255 B Shares n 1ssue

Shareholders may choose to redeem thew B Shares on 18 July 2006 and
18 January 2007 To do so sharehoiders must give notice to the Company
by 30 June 2006 for redemption in July 2006 and by 2 January 2007
for redemption in January 2007 The final redemption date for B Shares
15 18 July 2007

Deferred shares

The 320 050 O73 deferred shares created on 19 July 2004 were redeemed
and cancelled by the Company at the close of business on 13 May 2006

for a total consideration of one pence in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Return of Capital circular 1ssued 1o shareholders in

Jung 2004

Major tnterests in shares
As at 16 May 2006 the Company had been advised of the following
notifiable interests in its shares

Judith Portratt 1s a trustee of various settlements including charitable
trusis and the blind trust for Lord Sainsbury of Turvifie As at 16 May
2006 notified holdings of these trusts amounted to 17 per cent of

the Company sissued share capital

As at 16 May 2006 the notifiable interests held beneficially and as
trustees of charitable and cther trusts of Lord Sainsbury of Preston
Candover KG and the Hon Simon Sainshury were 3 per cent respectively

The above disclosures include duphcation

In addition as at 16 May 2006 the following interests had been natified
tc the Company

AXASA 13%
Brandes Investment Partners LL C 11%
NWO investment ManagemeniL L C 4%

Going concern

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company has
suificient resources to continue i operation {or the foreseeable future
Accordingly they continue to adeopt the going concern basis In preparing
the financial statements

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the shares of
the Company are shown on page 49 During the year no Director had any
matenial interest in any ¢ontract of signiflicance to the Group s business

Directors’ indemnities

The Directors are entrtled to be indemnified by the Company to the extent
permitied by law and the Company s Articies of Assogiation in respect of
att losses ansing oul of or in connection with the execution of ther
powers duttes and responsibilities

Market value of properties
The Directors believe that the aggreqate open market value of Group
properties exceeds the net book value of £5 billion by a considerable margin

Employees, corporate responsibility and the environment
Samnsbury s has a strong record in its commitment to corporate
responsibility, which 1s an everyday part of how the Company does

business Details of the Company s principal corporate responsibility
Initiatives and activities are set out on page 24 The Company § Corporate
Responsibility Report which will be published on the internet in June
(www | saimsbury co uk/crreport) provides a comprehensive statement
on carporate responsiblity and describes the Company s policies and
activities in respect of customers colleagues, supphers investors

the commumity and the ernvironment
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Report of the Directors continued

The Cornpany has well developed poiicies for fair and equal treatment of
all employees employment of disabled persons and colleague particgpation

The Company s quarterly, interim and annual results are presented to alf
sermor management and are comrmunicated to all cotleagues

Colleagues have always been encouraged to hold shares inthe Company
and over 48 000 colleagues are shareholders directly ar through the
Commitment Shares Plan Trust or the Sainsbury s Share Purchase

Plan Trust

Policy on payment of creditors

The policy of the Company and its principal operating cempanies is to
agree terms of payment prior to commencing trade with a supplier and
to abide by those terms on the bmely submission of satisfactory invotces
The Company 1s a holding company and therefere has no trade creditors
Statements on the eperating companies payment of suppliers are
contamed in their accounts

Donations

Duning the year cash andn kind donations to charitable organisations
and other community projects totalled £5 6 million (2005 £6 8 millien)
In addition our Active Kids scheme donated £12 5 million (at cost) to
schoels and the Company made significant contributions to other
community related inibiatives Sainsbury s colleagues customers and
supphers raised £3 25 million (2005 £109 milhon including Comic Relief
and the Asian Tsunami appeal) fer charifies such as Home Start and the
Children s Society through events supported by the Company

The Cempany does not make donations to pobtical parties During the year
Sainsbury s Bank seconded a member of its staff who would otherwise
have been made redundant to Scotland s Futures Forum for a four maonth
pericd This s a think tank that engages with the public on the future of
Scotiand In a non party pohtical forum The salary of the seconded
individuat during this period amounted te arouna £24 600 Because of the
wide defiibion under the relevant tegislation this could be interpreted

as adonation to an EU Political organisation reguiring disclosure

By order of the Board

1M Fatlowfield
Company Secretary
16 May 2006

Major interests in shares - subsequent disclosure

On 23 May 2006 the Company was advised that Judith Portrait s
notifiable interest in the Company s shares had decreased to 15 per cent of
the Company sissued share capital
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Statement of corporate governance

The Iollowing sections explain how the Campany apphies the principles
and supparting principles of the Comiined Code on Corporate
Governance {the Code)

The Board

The Board s chaired by Philip Hampton, who was appointed Chairman
on 19 July 2004 At 16 May 2006 the Board consisted of two Executive
Oirectors and six Non-Executive Directors 1n addition to the Chairman
Dr John McAdam Chief Executive of IC1 plc was appointed Senior
Independent Director on t September 2005 Darren Shapland was
appoinied to the Board as Chief Financial Otficer on | August 2005
replacing Roger Matthews who retired from the Board on 24 June 2005
June de Moller retired from the Board with etflect from | September 2005
Anna Ford jeined the Board as a Non Executive Director on 2 May 2006
Bredget Macastll will retire from the Board after this year s Annual
General Meeting ( AGM }

Biographical detaits of the Directors are set out on page 26

The Board held mine scheduled meetings during the year including a two
day strategy conference and has visited the Fosse Park store and the
Hams Hall distribution centre The Board met on an informal basis on
several other occasiong

Division of responsibilities

There s a clear dvision of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive which 1s set out in writing and has been approved by the
Board Philip Hampton s responsible for leadership of the Board setting
1ts agenda and momitoring its effectiveness He ensures effective
comrunication with shareholders and that the Board i1s aware of the
views of major shareholders He faciitates both the contribution of the
Non Execulive Directors and constructive relations between the Executive
and Non Executwe Directors He ensures that the Chief Executive
develops a strategy which 1s supported by the Board as a whale Justin
King 1s responsible for executing the strategy once agreed by the Board
He creates a framework of values organisation and objectives to ensure
the successful defivery cf key targets and allocates decision making and
responsibthties accordingly He takes aleading role with the Chairman in
the relationship with all external agencies and in promoting Sainsbury s

Independence/Non-Executive Directors

The Charman satishied the tndependence critena of the Code on his
appointment and all the Mon Executive Dhrectors who have served during
the year are considered to be independent according to the principles

of the Code Bob Stack s a director of Cadbury Schweppes PLC which
supplies products to Sainsbury s but neither the Board nor Cadbury
Schweppes consider the relattonship to be materialin the context of
their overall businesses

The Non Executive Directors bring wide and varied commercial experience
to Board and Commutiee dehiberations They are appointed for anibal
three year term subject o election by sharsholders at the first AGM after
their appointment after whech their appointment may be extended for a
second term subject to mutual agreement and shareholder approval The
Non Executive Directors held several meetings during the year without
the Executive Directors being present, and mel separately without the
Chairman bemng present

As reported in last year s Annual Report following the previous Sentor
Independent Director s resignation in Seplember 2004 the Nomination
Commiitee had been conducting an exiensive search through Egon
Zehnder International the international search consultancy for a

new Non-Executive Director who would toin the Board as its Senior
Independent Director

This led to the appointment of John McAdam on 1 September 2005 as

a Non Executive Director and Semor Independent Director During the
penod up to his appointment the Board had ensured that the governance
responsibilities of the Senior Independent Derector role were adequately
fulfiled The Chairman has been available to all major shargholders since
his appointment and regularly meets with them

The Beard's role

The Beard supports the executive management team in deliverig
sustainable added value for shareholders it considers strategic I1ssues
key protects and major investments and regularly monitors performance
against deltvery of the key targets of the Business Review 1t approves
the corperate plan and the annual budget and reviews performance
against targets at every meeting It has been fully engaged in the major
protects throughout the year inciuding the migration of the IT functrons
back to Sainsbury s the Groups debt restructuring, the commitment to
make aone off contribution of E350 million inte the defined benent
pension schemes and the refated benefit changes During the year, the
Board has censidered succession planning at Operating Board level and
reviewed the Company s development and leadershup programmes

The Board delegates certain functions {oits three principal commitiees
Through the Audit Cammittee, the Directors ensure the mtegrity of
financialinformation the effectiveness of the financial controls and

the internal control and risk management systems The Remuneration
Commuittee sets the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
determunes their ndmvidual remuneration arrangements The Nomination
Committtee recommends the appointment of Board Directors and has
respenstbslity for succession planming at Board level These and other
key respansibiities are formally reserved powers of the Board

Attendance

During the year the Directors attended the following number of meetings
of the Board and (ts Committees (the number of meetings held whilst they
were Directors s shown in brackets)

Audit Nomunalion Remuneralion
Boara Committes Committee Commitlee
Number of meetings
Jamie Dundas 9N 5(5) 3(3) 4(4)
Phulip Hampteon 949 3(3)
Gary Hughes AN 5(%) 33
Justin King 9(9)
John McAdam? 7(7) 1{2} 2(2)
Bridget Macaskilt B8(9} 3(3) a{4)
Darren Shapland’ 77}
Bob Stack 99} klh 4(4}
1 Appainted 19 the Board on | August 2005
2 Appointed Lo the Board on 1 Seplember 2005
Directors who left the Board during the year
Roger Maithews N
June de Mofler 2(2) 3(3) 11
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Statement of corporate governance continued

Information and development

The guality and supply of informalion provided to the Board was reviewed
as part of the Board evaluabion exercise The Chairman is responsible far
ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on 1ssues arising al 8oard
meelings and that they have 1ull and timely access to relevant information

Theres an agreed procedure 5y which members of the Board may

take independent prolessional advice at the Company s expense in the
lurtherance of their duties The Company has a programme for meeting
Directors traiming and development requirements Newly appomted
Directors who do not have previous public company experience at
Board level are provided with appropriate training on therr role and
responsibilitres Gary Hughes Bob Stack and John McAdam have
participated during the year in comprehensive and taillored induction
programmes including store and depot visits and meetings with members
of the Operating Board senior management and external advisors
Subsequent training Is avallable on an ongomng basis {o meet pariicular
needs with the emphasis on governance and accounting developments
Dunng the year the Company Secretary Tim Fallowfield has provided
updates to the Board on relevant governance matters, new disclosure
rules and continuing obligations whilst the Audit Commitiee requiarty
considers new accounting develapments through presentations from
management and the external audiors The Board programme includes
presentattons from management at every meeting which together with
site visits icrease the NMon Executive Directors understanding of the
business and the sector

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary He has responsibility for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and for governance matters The appointment and removal of
the Company Secretary s one of the matters reserved for the Board

Performance evaluation

During the year the Board has undertaken a formal evaluation of its
performance and effectiveness and of its Committess and individuat
directors with the assistance of Egon Zehnder Following an initial
meeling with the Charrman to agree the key objectives of the exercise
Loon Zennder met separatety with each Diector and the Company
Secretary and discussed the Board s role and structure process and
relationships and any emerging issues and then presented the findings

1o the Board 1dentifying the key themes that were working well and areas
which could be improved or approached differently Egon Zehnder also
provided individual feedback to each Director and the Company Secretary
The Semor Independent Drractor received therr comments on the
Chairman s performance ang subsegquently met with the other Non
Executive Directors to review the Chairman s performance and provide
feedback to him The Chairman separately reviewed the contribution of
each of the Directors with them

Operating Board

Day to day management of the Company 1s delegated to the Operating
Board which 1s chawed by Justin King The Operating Board holds 10
formal meetings a year Directors responsibilities and biographies are

sef oul on page 27 I has formal terms of reference setiing out ¥is key
responsibilities Minutes are copted to the Charrman and Non-Executive
Directors It has delegated certain powers to the Trading Board whech

Is responsible for ranging and sourcing product, price and promaotions
advertising and marketing to the Retaill Beard, which has responsibility
for stores service and availability and supply chain operations and to the
Investment Board which is responsible for investment decisions The
Trading Board 15 charred by Mike Coupe Trading Director, the Retad Board
15 chaired by Ken McMeikan, Retail Director and the Investment Board by
Darren Shapland Chief Financial Officer Qperating Board members
requliariy attend and present at Board meetings as well as the Directors
Conlerence
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Board Commuttees
The Board has delegated certain responsibiities to the Audit Nomination
and Remuneration Committeas

Audit Committee

Duning the year the Audit Committee was chawed by Jarmie Dundas with
Gary Hughes and John McAdam (and June de Moller until her retirement)
as 1ts other members all of whom are independent Non Executive
Directors Gary Hughes took gver as Chairman of the Committee on

10 May 2006 The Board has determined that both Jamie Dundas and
Gary Hughes have recent and relevant linancial experience Philip
Hampton Justin King Darren Shapland Richard Chadwick Head of
tnlernal Audit and the exiernal audhtors are invited to attend Committee
meetings The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Comenittee

During the year the Committee met on live occasions the agendas being
organised around the Company s reporting cycle It monitored the
integrity of the financial statements and any formal anncuncements
relating to the Company s financial performance and reviewed any
significant financial jJudgements contained in them It has receved regular
updates on International financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) and
has monitored progress 1n meeting the new reporting requirements

The Commuttee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the Company s
financial controls and the internal control and risk management systems
and has monitored progress te ensure that any required remedral action
has been or s being taken on any tdentified weaknesses

During the year the Committee reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP s
{ PwC ) overall work plan and approved their remaneration and terms of
engagement and considered in detail the results of the audit PwC s
performance and independence and the effectiveness of the overall audit
process The Committee recommended PwC s re appointment as auditors
to the Board and this resalution will be put to shareholders at the AGM

The Cemmittee has implemented the Company s policy which restricts
the engagement of PwCn relation to non-audit services The policy 1S
designed to ensure that the provision of such services does not have

an mpact on the external auditers independence and abjectivity

It identihies certain types of engagement that the externai auditors shall
not undertake and others that can only te undertaken with appropriate
authority from the Committee Chasrman or the Committee where

non audit fees will exceed preset thresholds During the year the policy
was reviewed and the authority thresholds were lowered The Commuttee
also agreed that i the fevel of non audit fees reaches the level of the audit
fees all future non audit work will be approved by the Committee
Chawman before PwC are instrucied The Commuttee recerves regular
reports on the non audit services provided by PwC

The Commuittee has regularly reviewed the Internal Audit department s
resources budget work programme resulis and management s
implementation of its recommendations and conducted a formal review
of the department s effectiveness during the year The Head of Internal
Audi has direct access to the Committee Chairman and Phalip Hampion
Jarmue Dundas has held separate meetings with hum and PwC during

the year whilst the Commtiee regulariy met with PwC without
management being present, and may meet the Head ol Internal Audit
when it deems necessary

The Commuttee has reviewed the Campany § whistleblowtng procedures
and confirmed that arrangements are in place to enable colleagues {o
rasse concerns about possible emproprieties in finanaial reporting and
other matters on a confidential basis

The Commiltee s terms of reference which are avallable on the website
(www | sainsbury co uk/governance} set cut the Committee s responsibilities




Statement of corporate governance continued

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee 1s chaired by Philip Hampton and comprises
each of the Non-Executive Directers Justin King 15 not a member of the
Commuttee although he 1s invited to attend meetings

The Commuittee led the recruitment process for each of the Board
appointments during the year which has resulted in John McAdam
Darren Shapland and Anna Ford being appointed The international
search consultants £gon Zehnder International, were instructed by

the Committee on the searches The Committee considered the suills
knewledge background and experience required for each role, and
prepared a job specification for each appointment The Committee also
specifled the ime commitment expected of the Mon Executive Ciractor
roles Egon Zehnder drew up a hist of possibfe candidates for each role

for mutiat mterviews with Philip Hampton and Jusiin ¥ing Profiles of a
shorthst of preferred candidates were prepared for the Committee and
the potential composition and mix of the candidates were considered from
a team perspective in order to ensure a complementary combination of
competencees and experience Prior to each appointment the Committee
considered a full range of references and the Non Executive Directors met
the preferred candidate

The Committee s terms of reference are available on the website
(www | sainsbury co uk/governance) and set out the Committee s
responsibiities The Committee meets when necessary and in 2005/06
met on three occasions and received regular updates on the
recruiiment process

Ali Directors are required to seek electicn by shareholders at the first
opportumiy after their appointment and must stand for re efection to the
Board every three years under the Company s Articles of Association

Remuneration Committee

The Commuttee 1s chaired by Bob Stack who was appointed a Non Executive
Chrector of the Company and Chairman of the Committee on 1 January
2005 The Remuneration Report s set out on pages 4110 49

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of intarnal controls
including risk management and has delegated certain responsibihties

to the Audit Committee The Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and ensured that any
required remedial action has or s being taken on any identified weaknesses
The system of internal centrols 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of fallure o achieve the Company s business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss it includes all controls tncluding financiat operational
and comphance controls and risk management The processes used to
assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems are ongoing
enabling a curnulative assessment to be made andinclude the following

discussion and approval by the Board of the Company s strategqic
direction, plans and obyectives and the risks to achieving them

review and approval by the Board of budgets and forecasts including
both revenue and capital expenditure

regular operational and financial revtews of performance against
budgets and forecasts by management and the Board

reqular reviews by management of the risks to achieving cbjectives
and actigns being taken to mitigate them

regular reviews by the Board and Audit Committee of identified
fraudutent activity and any whistleblowing by celleagues or suppliers
and actions being taken to remedy any control weaknasses

reqgular reviews by management and the Audit Commuttee of the scope
and results of internal audy work across the Company and of the
implementation of recommendations The scope of the work covers all
key activities of the Group and concentrates on higher risk areas

reviews of the scope of the work of the external auditors by the Audit
Committee and any significant 1ssues arising

= reviews by the Audit Commuttee of accounting policies and levels of
delegated authonity and

= censideration by the Beard of the major risks facing the Group and by
the Audit Committee of the procedures to manage them These inctude
health and safety legal compliance ttigation gualhty assurance
insurance and security and social ethical and environmental risks

There 1s an engoing process for identifying evaluating and managing

the significant risks faced by the Company This process has been in place
throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Financsal Statements and accords with the Turnbult guidance The
effectiveness of the process 1s reviewed annually by the Audit Committee
which then reports to the Board The process consists of

formal identification by management at each level of the Campany
threugh a self assessment process of the key nisks te achieving thewr
business objectives and the cantro!s in place to manage them The
ikelihood and potential impact of each risk 1s evatuated and actions
necessary to mitigate them are identified and monitored

certification by management that they are responsible for managing
the risks to thewr business objectives and that the internal controls
are such that they provide reasonable but not absclute assurance that
the risks in their areas of responsibidity are appropriately identified
evaluated and managed,

reporting and review by the Board of each operating company of risk
management activmities and actions taken to address non compliance
with controis or to improve therr effectiveness

assurance from speciahst functions and cemmittees that legat and
requlatory health and safety and social ethical and environmental
risks are appropnately identified and managed and

independent assurance by Internat Audit as to the existence and
effectiveness of the risk management activities described by management

The system of internal contrel and risk management 1s embedded into
the operations of the Company and the actions taken to mitigate any
weaknesses are carefulty monitored

Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility 1s an everyday part of how the Company does
business and 1s co ordinated by the Cerporate Responsibility Steering
Group chaired by Gwyn Burr which reports on a regular bass to the
Operating Beard and twice annually to the Board A summary of the
Company s corporate responsibilily priorities and actvities during the
year are sel oul on page 24 A separate Corporate Responstbitity Report
will be published on the website in June The Association of British
Insurers recommends that the Board considers matenal risks and control
processesrelating to corporate responsibrity The Audit Committee s
review of the system of internal controls and risk management processes
referred {0 above includes corporate responsibifity and the Committee
considers any major corparate responsibility or grand reputation risks
identified by the process to the extent any such exist
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Statement of corporate governance continued

Investor relations

The Company 15 committed to maintaining good communications with
Investors Normal shareholder contact 1s the responstbility of the Chief
Executive Chief Financial Qfficer and Head of Investor Refatians

The Charman Pmhip Hampton 15 generally avanable 1o sharehotders

and he met a number of institutional tnvestors as part of the consultation
process for the new Long Term Incentive Plan and Deferred Annual
Bonus Plan

There s regular dialogue with institutional investors who along with
buyside and sellside analysts are inwited to presentations by the Company
immedtately after the announcement of the Company s interim and

full year results They are also invited to participate in conference calls
following the announcement of the Company s trading statements The
content of these presentations and conference calls are wehcast and are
posted on the Company s website (www j-samsbury co Uk/investors) so as
to be avallable to all investors The Company also held a presentation on
the antrcipated impact of IFRS 1n Apnl 2005 in July the Qperating Board
hosted a visit to the Canley store and Hams Hall distribution centre for
tnvestors and analysts

Makinson Cowell provide investor relations consuttancy services to the
Company and reported to the Board on the views of instituthional investors
Non-Executive Directors also receive regular market reports and broker
updates from the Company s Investor Relations department

Shareholders have the opportumty to meet and question the Board

at the AGM which will be held on 12 July 2006 There will be a display of
various aspects of the Company s activities and Justin King will make a
busingss presentation The Senmior independent Director and Chairmen
of the Audit Remuneratioen and Nomination Committaes will be available
to answer questions A detailed explanation of each itermn of speciai
business to be cansidared at the AGM s included with the Motice of Meeting
which will be sent to shareholders at teast 20 working days before the
meeting All resolutions preposed at the AGM will be taken on a poll vote
This follows best practice gquidehnes and enables the Company to count
all votes not just those of shareholders who attend the meeting

Information on matters of particular interest 1o investors 1s sef out on
page 102 and on the Company s website (www ) sainsbury co uk/investors)

Compliance statement

Curing the year the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Code except that as explained above at the start of the year the Company
had a vacancy in the role of Semor Independent Director which was fifled
when John McAdam was appointed on 1 September 2005
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Remuneration report

This report 15 made by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Commitites The first part of the repori provides

details of remuneration policy The second part provides details of the
remuneration pensions and share interesis of the Directors for the year
ended 25 March 2006 The Directors confirm that this report has been
drawn upin accordance with Schedule 7A of the Compames Act 1985

A resolution will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
{ AGM ) on 12 July 2006 asking them to consider and approve this Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee ts chaired by Bob Stack Chsef Human
Resources Officer of Cadbury Schweppes plc who joined the Board as a
Non Executive Director on 1 January 2005 During the financial year the
Committee comprised Bob Stack Bridget Macaskill and Jamie Dundas
all of whom are independent Non Executive Directors The Cammittee
met four imes tn 2005/06 Anna Ford joined the Commiitee on her
appointment to the Board on 2 May 2006

Tem Fallowfield Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Commttee
Philip Hampion Justin King and Imelda Walsh Human Resgurces Director
are invited to attend Cormmritee meetings The Committee considers ther
vtews when reviewing the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
Operating Beard Directors They are not involved in discussions
concerning their own remuneration

The responsibilities of the Committee include

determintng and agreeing with the Board the broad remuneration policy
for the Charman Chief Executive Chuef Finantiat Officer and the
Cperating Board Directors

setting Individual remuneration arrangements for the Chairman Chiel
Executive and the Chuef Financial Oféicer

recommending and monitering the level and structure of remuneratton
for those members of semier management in the scope of the
Commitiee namely the Operating Board Directors and

approving the service agreements of each Executive Director including
termination arrangements

The Commuiitee s terms of reference are avalable on the Company s
website (www J-sainsbury co uk/governance)

The Commitiee 15 authorised by the Beard to appoint external consultants
and advisers if 1t considers this benehicial Qver the course of the year

the Commrttee was advised by Deloitte & Touche LLP ( Delotte ) During
the year Deloitte also advised on unrelated tax matters and provided
orgamisational and IT consulting services to the Company They attended
all Committee meetings durmg the year and have been fully engaged in
the design of the new incentive arrangements described below Towers
Persin provided comparative data which was considered by the Committee
In setting remuneration levels they also provide employer henelit services
to the Company The Committee has also been advised by Linklaters

who also provided legai advice to the Company and by UBS who provided
broking and banking services to the Cempany during the year

Remuneration policy

It rs the intention of the Commuitee that Executive and Operating Board
Directors remuneration should be competitive both in terms of base
salary and total remuneration laking into account the individual Director s
role performance and experience This approach i1s designed to promote
the Company s short and long term success through securing high calibre
execulrve talent Basic salary 15 targeted around the median of the market
with an opportumity to earn above median levels of total reward in

return for exceptional performance A significant proportion of the tetal
remuneration package s performance related aligning management s
and shareholders interests

The Commuttee determined at the time of the Business Review 1n Oclober
2004 that new long term ihcentive arrangements were required in order
to address the tack of effective incentives in place for all management
tevels including supermarket store managers, and to incentivise the
managernent team to deliver the major sales led recovery In 2005
shareholders approved the J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005 which
previded for the grant of a single cycle incentive specihcally designed

to drive the delivery of the recavery strategy During consultation with
shareholders and institutions on the design of this plan the Comnuttee
indicated its intention to carry out a more general review of remuneration
arrangements dunng 2005/036, with the aim of formulating a longer term
incentive strategy for the future

The total remuneration review conducted with the assistance of

Deloitte assessed the compelitiveness of the Company s existing
execulive remuneration arrangements against UK retad companies

of a similar size A secondary benchmarking group comprising around
50 FTSE 100 companies (excluding financial services companies) of 3
sumilar size to Sainsbury sin terms of market capitalisation was used

as an additional reference of market practice This anatysis included all
etements of remuneration including pensions The review showed that
total remuneration leveis far Executive Directors were below median
against all comparator groups and It was concluded that the existing
leng term incentive arrangements (the Executive Share Option Plan and
Performance Share Plan) were no ionger ahgned 1o the Company s policy
of providing competitive levels of reward to attract retain and motivate
nigh calibre executive talent As aresull the Committee formulated a new
mcentive framework {the Value Bullder framework) which supports the
business strategy over the medium to longer term and s consistent with
current best practice

The Committee agreed that the new Incentive sirategy shoutd be based
upon a number of key principles so as to

buwild en the sates led turnaround by embedding key measures of financial
and capital efficiency,

support strong performance of the core bustness and delivery of
shareholder value by generating quality earnings growing profits and
generating cash for future investments and/or return to shareholders,

provide a commoan focus for the {op 1 000 managers {from Chief
Execulive to supermarket store managers) on critical business measures

retain and molivate talent for the longer term and

provide competitive reward opporiunities for delivering exceptional
performance

The new incentive framework whach will be put to shareholders at the
2006 AGM consists of two elements a deferred annual bonus plan with
a perfarmance related share mateh and a long-term incentive plan These
plans described below have been formulated following consulitation with
around 20 major sharehplders the Associatian of British Insurers and the
National Association of Pension Funds The key terms of these plans are
i hine with best praclice and have been designed to safequard against
rewards for fallure
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Remuneration report continued

The man remuneration components for the Chuef Executive Chief
Financial Officer and Operating Board Directors are set out below

1} Basic salary

Basic salary for each Executive Director i1s determined by the Committee
{aking account of the Direclor s periormance experience and
responsibilittes The Commiltee also reviews Operating Board Directaors’
salaries taking suniar factors into account The Committee considers
salary levels in comparable companies by referring to the pay practices
across the UK retail sector and in larger hsted UK companies as described
In the total remuneration review referred to above This approach ensures
that the best available benchmark for the Director s specific posttion is
obtained However in using external data the Committee s mindfut of
inappropriatety ratcheting up remuneration tevels The Commiitee also has
regard to economuc factors remuneration trends and the level of salary
increases throughout the Company when determirung Directors salanes

For 2006/07 salanes will ncrease by an average of 3 per cent for all stare
colleagues Justin ®King s basic salary has been increased by 3 6 per cent
to £725 000 per annum with effect from 26 March 2006

1} Incentive arrangements

In addition to basic salary the Company currently operates incentive
arrangements that combine an annual bonus plan and leng term incentive
plans The Commuttee believes that incentive opportunities provided
under these plans reflect an appropriate balance between personal and
Group performance Assuch they align the rewards of Directors with the
Company s immediate busmess prionties and the longer term interests

of shareholders

The bialance hetween the frxed (basrc salary and pension) and variable
{annual fonus and long term incentive plan) elements of remuneration
changes with performance and the vaniable proportion of total
remuneration increases signtficantly for increased levels of performance
For median performance with the introduction of the new deferred annual
tonus plan and tong term incentive plan 1t 1s anticipated that between

S0 and 60 per cent of total remuneration for Executive Dtrectors will be
performance relateg

The incentive arrangements for 2005/06 consisted of the Annual Bonus
Plan and the J Samsbury plc Share Plan 2005 which i1s now cltosed and
no further grants will be made under it The mcentive arrangements

for Executive Directors and QOperating Board Directors for the 2006/07
financial year wiil consist subject to shareholder approval of the
Deferred Annual Bonus Pian and the new Long Term tncentive Plan

No further grants will be made under the Executive Share Option Plan
and Performance Share Plan which are now closed Awards earned
under each of the incentive plans are non pensionable

Incentive arrangements for 2005/06

Annual Bonus Plan

All bonus plans across the Company are aligned under a sel of shared
common principles The Operating Board and management plans retatned
the same key largets based on profit sales and product availability plus
an glement for personal pertormance The Executive Directors Qperating
Board Directors and all colieagues shared annual targets focused on sales
and avallabiity Avalability 15 measured across all stores on a reguiar
basis by an indepengent third party conducting random and unannounced
store visits

The Commuttee reviewed the Directors personal performance and
achievement aganst the business relaled targets at the year end
A payment will be made in respect of the personal profit sales and
avatlabiiiy targets, the latler two targets were achieved n full
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The 2005/06 bonus plan for store colleagues was based on the
achievement of avallabiity and customer service targels measured in thetr
individual stores In addition their bonus opportunity was increased by
the incluston of a corporate sales target As a result of store and corporate
performance in 2005/06 17 000 colleagues will receve & bonus payment
in respect of the 2005/06 hinancial year totaling £52 mithon

For the 2005/06 year the maximum annual bonus opportunity was

100 per cent of salary for the Chief Executive and 80 per cent for the
Chief Financial Qificer and Operating Board Directors Following the total
remuneration review carried out in 2005 1in order to ensure that incentive
opportumtres are in line with the Company s stated policy on market
posiiontng 1t 1s proposed that from 2006/07 the maximum annual benus
potentialis increased to 150 per cent of salary for the Chief Executive and
100 per cent of salary for the Chuel Financial Otficer and Operating Board
Dwrectors As set out belew under new incentive proposals for 2006/07

a percentage of this bonus will be computsorily invested in Company
shares and retained for a three-year period

The 2006/07 Directors and management bonus plans will retain the

same elementis as {he 2005/06 plan given that the key measures of

profit sales and avallabihity remarn vital to the recovery plans Set out
hetow are details of the new Deferred Annual Bonus Plan which will

apply to Executive Directors Cperating Board Directors and Departmental
Directors from 2006/07 \f it 1s approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM

J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005

The Business Review 1n October 2004 concluded that a major sales led
recovery 1n profitabihty was needed Accordingly following extensive
investor consuitation the J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005 was designed
te reward strong growth in sales and profitabiity It 1s a one off self
funded incentive arrangement and was closed on 25 March 2006

Over 1000 colleagues received conditional core awards under this Plan
from the Chief Executive through to supermarke$ store managers

focused onidenticat targets The levels of core award were scaled
according to seniority the maximum betng 100 per cent of salary for the
Chiefl Executve 'n adcition all Executive Directors and Operating Board
Directors commitied to making a personal investment of 50 per cent of
salaryn the Plan - for Justin King and Darren Shapland their commitment
15 to acquire 118 754 shares and 70 224 shares respectively

Performance 1s measured over a four year period from the financial year
ended 26 March 2005 unti the year ending March 2009 Awards will vest
if two stretching and co-dependent performance conditions are achieved
growihin sales and earnings per share { EPS )

The maximum award available under the Plan 1s targeted towards sales
growth of £2 5 bilion and compound annual growth 1n EPS of at least
21 per cent over a four year period There 1s an opportunity for partial
vesttng of up to half the award if accelerated periormance targets have
teen met at the end of year three (the year ending March 2008}

No awards will vest unless threshold levels of growth in both sates and
EPS are achieved Using the Plan defimitions EPS for the base year
2004/05 was calculated at 8 6 pence per share (which would be
restated at 8 3 pence per share under IFRS} and sales for the base
year were £13 588 mulon

Vesting Is calculated by applying a performance multiplier to the core
award and personal investment this s on a shding scale from 0 5 times
to 5 himes and s plotted ina matrix format as set out on page B&
Dividends will accrue on any shares that vest and will be released to
participants in the form of addittonal shares at the point of vesting




Remuneration report continued

In order to receive awards under the Plan, participants agreed to
surrender optrons granted to them under the Company s Executive Share
Option Planin 2002, 2003 and 2004 Justin King surrendered a total of

1 007 607 share options granted to him at exercise prices of 261 50 pence
and 274 75 pence

Incentive arrangements for 2006/07

Both the Long Term Incentive Plan and the Beferred Annual Bonus

Plan 2006 are subject to shareholder approval at the 2006 AGM The
proposed award fevels under each plan are aligned with the Committee s
policy to gear reward opportunities towards the delivery of exceptional
performance Key investors and their representative bodies have been
consulted on the framework of these plans and have had an opportunity
to comment and Input an the final design

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

Subject to shareholder approval the top 1000 managers in the Company
will participate In the Plan (rom the Chief Executive to supermarket store
managers and will share common performance measures

A core award of shares 1n the Company will be granted to all participants
calculated as a percentage of their salarnes and scaled according to grade
For 2006/07 1t 15 proposed that shares {o the vatue of 45 per cent of
salary will be granted to Justin King with Darren Shapland and the
Qperating Board Cirectors recewving grants equivalent to 35 per cent

of their salaries As set out below dependent upon performance core
awards can grow by up to four times

Awards will vest based on the performance of two stretching co dependent
pecformance conditions Return on Capital Employed { ROCE ) and
growih in cash flow per share whtch will be measured over the three year
performance period There i1s noretesting

These measures are designed to buld on the sales ted recovery plan and
focus on creating furtner shareholder value ROCE measures the efficeency
with which new cashis invested and through which existing capital

debwvers profit driving both cost savings and operaticnal efficiencies

Cash fiow per share captures the Company s ability to generate cash for
future investment or return to shareholders in addition the measures
complement the sales earmings and avatlability targets set under the
annual benus plan and the total sharenclder refurn { TSR ) targets
attached to the proposed bonus deferral The plan measures are key
indrcators of business success and therefore the new proposals create a
further direct ink between the interests of management and shareholders

The proposed levels of ROCE and cash flow per share are challenging

For the 2006/07 plan the maximum reward will require ROCE of at least

14 per cent and annual compound growth i cash flow per share of 18 per
cent or more, which are stretching in the context of market expeciations
No awards will vest unless threshold tevels of ROCE and growth in cash
flow per share are achieved For both performance measures the threshold
levels of performance are set significantly above the base levels achieved
in 2005/06 The performance measures will be reviewed by the Commitiee
each year before a new grant 1s made to ensure that they remain relevant
and stretching

ROCE and cash flow per share defimtions are set out in the Notece

of Annual General Meeting The measures will be calculated under IFRS
based on underlying operating profit for the business including

Sansbury s Bank (but excluding rminority interests) The capital employed
Iqure includes the net pension schemes deficit after deferred taxation but
excludes the impact of capital spend in the year the calculation s made
An average working capital figure 1s used tn the calculation of cash flow
and excludes the impact of cash contributions to the pension schemes
Using the definibons, ROCE for the base year 1s 6 5 per cent and cash ffow
per share s 38 3 pence

As sel out in the table below the core award can grow by up (o four times,
the table illustrates the award levels that may be achieved Straight hne
vesting will apply iIf performance falls between two points

ROCE 3 year cash tow per share growth (annual compound rate)

6% 9% 12% 15%  >18%
>=14% 15 25 30 R 40
13% 10 15 20 30 35
12% 05 10 15 20 30
11% - (4181 10 15 25
10% - - 05 10 15

Periormance will be measured on the third anntversary from the date

of grant H the required level of performance has been reached 50 per
cent of the award will be released Subject to participants remaiming in
employment for a further year the balance will be released on the fourth
anmiversary of the date of grant The Commuttee has discretion to make
adjustments to the calculation of the performance measures {for instance
for matenal acquisitrons and dispasals) to ensure it remains a true and fair
reflection of periormance Dividends will accrue on the shares that vest in
the form of additional shares

Further details of this plan, inctuding the effect of change of controt and
participants leaving employment are set out in the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting

Deferred Annuat Bonus Plan 2006

The Commiltee believes that there should be a strong link between short
term and long term performance both in terms of business targets and
associated rewards Accardingly subject to shareholder approval the new
Deferred Annual Bonus Plan will introduce a compulsory deferral of part
of an execulive s earned bonus inte Company shares for a three-year
period Subject 1o the Cempany s TSR performance against an industry
comparator group there will be an opportunity for those shares to be
matched by up to iwo Limes dependent upon the extent to which the TSR
performance measure has been met The new plan is consistent with the
Company s reruneration policy 1s designed to support the achievernent
of both short-term and feng term performance targets and introduces a
further retention element

The pfan will apply to the Executive Directors Operating Board Directors
and Departmental Directors comprising around 45 participants in total in
2006/07 The operation of the Annuat Bonus Plan described on page 42
will continue to apply 1o participants at other management grades without
any deferral into shares

Under the new plan apercentage of partictpants earned gross annuat
bonuses will be deferred into the Company 5 shares {or a period of three
years The compulsory deferral for the Chief Executive witl be 25 per cent
of his gross bonus with 20 per cent compulsory deferral for the Chief
Financial Otficer and Operating Board Directors and 10 per cent for
Departmental Directors Thas deferral will happen automatically once

the borus payment s confirmed with the first deferral in May 2007

In additron participants may elect to defer a further proportion of their
gross annual bonus provided it does not exceed thewr compulsory deferral
level The Remuneration Commuittee will have the dis¢retion to waive the
delerral element 1f the bonus pays out at below target levels namely halt
of the available maximum

To ¢reate a greater alignment of the Company s interests with those of
tts shareholders the Plan measures the Company s TSR perfermance
over a three year period against a bespoke UK and European retail
comparator group comprnising Ahold Boots Carrefour Casino, Dethaize
DSG International GUS Kingfisher Marks & Spencer Metro Morrisons,
Next and Tesco
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Remuneration report continued

Up to two matched shares may be awarded for each share deferred
(calculated on a gross basis), depending on the extent to which the

TSR measure 15 achieved No shares are awarded for below median
performance and the full match will only apply where the Company
achieves first place within the comparator group At median position the
match will be O 5 shares for each deferred bonus share and the share
match will be pro rated at every position between median and first place

To the extent that the performance condition 1s met at the end of the
three year performance period the maiched shares will be added to

the deferred benus shares The deferred bonus shares and half of the
matched shares can be accessed immediately while the remainder will
be held over for a further year Dividends or thetr equivalents will accrue
on the shares that vest

Further details of this plan inciuding the effect of change of control
and participants leaving employment are set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting

m} Qther share plans

In order to encourage wider employee share ownership the Company
provides two all employee share plans for colleagues, namely the Savings
Related Share Option Scheme ( SAYE ) and the All Employee Share
Ownership Plan Directors may participate in these plans in the same way
as all other colleagues and Justin King is currently participating in both
plans As these are all employee plans there are no perfermance conditions

The 2000 (five year) SAYE plan reached maturity on 1 March 2006

Almaost 5000 colleagues could use their savings and tax free bonus (equal
to 75 times thewr four-weekly savings amount) te buy Samnsbury s shares
at the 299 00 pence option price The 2002 {three year) SAYE plan
matured at the same time ang a further 5,000 colleagues could use their
savings and tax free bonus (equal to 1 8 times their four weekly savings
amount) to buy Sainsbury s shares at the 239 00 pence ophion price

The 2005 SAYE offer resutted in a 38 per cent increase in the number of
colleagues taking part and currently over 32 000 colleagues participate
In the SAYE

i} Pensions

Justin King and Darren Shapland are members of the Executive
Stakeholder Pension Plan which 1s a defined contribution arrangement
which 1s open to afl senior management

As previgusly reparted with effect from the start of the 2005/06 financial
year, to the extent that basic salary exceeds the earnings cap (£1G5 600
for the 2005/06 tax year) Company contributions were increased to 25
per cent of basic salary in excess of the cap for the Chief Executive and
20 per cent of basic salary in excess of the cap for alt other Executive and
Qperating Board Dtrectors who are members of the Exacutive Stakeholder
Pension Plan Justin King and Darren Saapland receive this in the form

of a cash pension supplement The penston earnings cap for 2006/07 will
be £108 600 Company contributions to the level of the cap will continue
at 12 5 per cent Directors contributions will continue at the current Jeve!
of 5 per cent of salary up to the cap

v) Benehts
Cther benefits for Directors include the provisicn of company car benefits
and free medical Insurance
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Performance graph

The graph below shows the TSR performance of an investment of

£100 10 J Sainsbury plc shares over the last five years compared with
an equivalent invesiment in the FTSE 100 Index This has been selected
to provide an established and broad based index

Shareholding gquidelines

To create greater alignment with the interests of shareholders and

to recognise the introduction of the new incentive framework the
Committee has proposed that all Executive Directors and Operating Board
Directors should build up a shareholding in the Company over a five year
period that is equal to their annual basic salary and maintain it thereafter
The accumuiation period will begin from 2006/07 Justin King Darren
Shapland and the Operating Board Directors have committed to acquire
shares equivalent to half thew annual salary under the J Sainsbury plc Share
Plan 2005 by 31 July 2006 Justin King currentiy holds 231984 shares

Service contracts

Justin King has a service contract which can be terminated by either party
by grving 12 months written notice If his service contract 1s terminated
without cause the Company can request that he works his notice pened
or takes & period of garden leave or can pay an amount in leu of notice
equal to one times basic salary for the notice period plus 75 per cent

of bastc salary in lieu of all other benefits including pension and bonus

In additien H he s dismessed within six months of a change of control

the above sum will become payable The contract contains restrictive
cavenants which continue for 12 months after termination Darren
Shapland has a service contract in line with these principles save that if
hus service contract is terminated without cause the maximum payment
he would recelve would be equal to one times basic salary for his notice
perod plus SO per cent of basic salary in heu of all gther benefits Hes
required to mitigate his losses and would receive phased payments which
would be reduced or terminated if he secured alternative employment
duning the notice peried The above sum would alsc become payable if

he was dismussed within six months of a change of control but only if the
change of centrol occurred within 12 months from the commencement of
his contract




Remuneration report continued

The Executive Directors service contracts became effective on the
following dates

Execubive Dwrecior Contract date
Justin King 29 March 2004
Carren Shapland 1 August 2005
Roger Malthews (left {he Cempany on 24 June 2005) 8 May 2000

Roger Matthews recerved no compensation on his retirement

Chairman

The Chairman does not have a service contract His letter of appointment
became effective on 19 July 2004 He was appointed for an initial term

of three years renewable on a 12 month rolling basis thereafter by mutuat
consent His appointment may be terminated at any time upon six months
written notice from either party He devotes such time as 1s necessary to
perform his duties and 1t 15 anbicipated that this 1s unlikely to be less than
an average of three days per week The Chairman s fees will not be
increased in 2006/07

The Chairman does not participate in any perfermance related plans

Nen-Executive Directors

Non Executive Directors do not have service contracts They are
appointed tor anmtial three year pertod which may be extended for

a further term by mutval consent The initial sppomntments and any
subsequent re appomiments are subject {o elecion or re election by
shareholders Gary Hughes Bob Stacks John McAdams and Anna Ford s
appomtments may be terminated on three months notice from either side
The other Non-Executive Directors appointments can be terrminated

without notice

Non Executive Directors are paid a basic fee tn cash with additional fees
being payable to the Senior Independent Director and to the Chairmen

of the Audit and Remuneratton Committees The fees are reviewed
annually by a sub-commiitee of the Board consisting of the Chawrman and
one or mare Executive Directors which takes into account market rates
and the speaific responsibilities and time commitments of the role within
Sainsbury s There will be no increase in Non Executive Directors fees in
2006/07 Non Executive Directors do not participate in any performance

related plans

The Non Executive Directors letters of appointment became effective on

the following dates

Man Executive Direclor

Appointment date

Jamie Dundas
Anna ford

Gary Bughes
Bridget Macaskill
Cr Jahn Mcadam
Bob Stack

1 September 2G0C
2 May 2006

1 January 2005

1 February 2002

1 September 2005
1 January 2005

June de Moller {left the Company on 1 September 2003) 23 September 1999
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Remuneration report continuea

The following section provides details of the remuneration pension and sharg interests of the Dwrectors for the year ended 25 March 2006 and has
teen audited

1) Directors' remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors for the year was as follows

Cash Campensation Pension Total'? Total*?
Salaryffees Bonus” payment for loss of supplement® Benefits® 2006 2005

MNote EOCQ EQCO on joining office £000 EQQOQ E000 £000
Justin King ! 700 590 - - 149 32 1,471 1131
Darren Shapland 28 261 180 120 - 48 10 619 -
Prilip Hampton 395 - - - - 3 398 274
Jamie Dundas 55 - - - - - 55 a7
Gary Hughes 3 45 - - - - - 45 11
Bridget Macaskill 45 - - - - - 45 37
John McAdam 4 31 - - - - - 31 -
Bob Stack 55 - - - - - 55 13
Directers who have left the
Company during the year
Roger Matthews 5 148 - - - - 5 153 690
June de Moiler 3 20 - - - - - 20 37
Directors who left the Board before
the start of the financial year inctuaing
compensatien far loss of office 4 467
Tstal 2006 1755 770 120 - 197 50 2892
Total 2005 2 086 703 - 3 B10O - 108 6 707

Highest paid Director

Appmnted lo the Beard on 1 August 2005

Gary Hughes fees were paid Lo Emap plc unhil 25 May 2009

Apponted o the Board on 1 Septamber 2005

Lell the Board on 24 June 2005

Lell the Board on | September 2005

Incluties performante Denuses earned in the period under review but not paid in the financial year

As previously disclosed Darren Shapland received a payment of £120 000 as he gave up vatuable enlilements worth appreumately £300 000 anising from the Carpetnght Executive Incentive Plans when

he joined the Company He alse receved restricted shares to the value of £180 000 see page 468

Justin Kang and Qarren Shapland are members of the Executive Stakehalder Pension Plan They receive a cash pension supplement equal to 25 per cent (in the case of Jushn King) and 20 per cent (in the

case of Darren Shapland) of the amounl by wiich their salanes exceed the earnings cap (2005706 £105 600)

10 Benehits include compiny car benelits and medical insurance

11 As previpusly disclosed inlast vear s report under the seltlement agreed with Sir Peter Daws in 2004 the Company made perodic payments ta tum in 2005706 in heu of salary unti 31 July 2005 totatling
£166 667

12 The totals fer 200405 ang 2005706 do not include deductions made from basic satary for Saving Money and Reducing Tan { SMART 1 pensigns

[ R T R

Bl

1} Pensions
The pension entitiements of the Directors for the year were as follows

Transter value
of increase in

accrued pension
during the year

Increase
transfer value

Accrued increase in {net of inflatian)' Transter value of  Transfer value ol over the year

Age at pension at Director § Increase in accrded penston and net of  accrued pension  accrued pension net of Director 5

25 March 25 March contribution accrued pension during the year Drector s at 25 March at 26 March contribution

2006 2008 during the year?  during the year (net of inflation) contribution 2006' 2005" =(wn) (v} (in)

1 L] " w v v v v [18

£00C £000 FOOC EQQD EQDO ECOD £000 EDDO

Roger Matthews 51 88 8 4 4 41 1,096 951 137

I The transfer values have been caltulated in accordance with the guidance note GN11 pubhshed by the Inshitute of Actuaries and Faculty ol Actuanes
2 Maolional due to SMART pensions.
3 Jushin King and Darren Shapland do nol apgear 1 the above table as they are members of the Company 5 Execulive Stakehclder Pension Plan and nol the delined benefit scheme Contribubions to the
Stakehalder Plan by the Company in 2005706 were £15 08B {2004/05 £12 7500
The transier value represents the capital sum that would need to be appropriately invested to provide the retevant pension assuming 1t 1s paid from
Roger Matthews normal retirement age The accrued pension entitiement shown i1s the amount that would be paid each year following retrrernent
based on ks normal retirement date

In the case of Justin King {(under the Executive Stakeholder Pension Plan prior to 2005/06) and Roger Matthews the Company has agreed to make
up that portion of the standard pension entitlement which 15 in excess of Inland Revenue hmits This obligation 1s unfunded although full provision
of £887 000 has been made in respect of the period ended 25 March 2006 largely to satisfy Roger Matthews entitltement (2004/05 £3777000)
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Remuneration report contined

111) Long-Term Incentive Plans

Performance Share Plan

Under the Plan shares conditionally allocated to individuals are released 1o them in the form of options if the performance condition 1s met at the end of
the three year periormance period The numbers of shares conditionally allocated since 2003 are shown below No alocations were made in 2005/06
and the Plan is now closed

Number Number of
of shares. Number of Mid market shares
conginionally shares price oh date Wid market conditronaliy
allocated Lapsed conditionally of conditional Cptwons granted prnice on day located End of
26 March during allocated allacaton duning the year optien granted 25 March perioimance
2005 the year during the year ipence} under the Plan {pence) 2006 penod
Justin King
200504 184,762 - - 274 - - 184,762 24 03 07
Roger Matthews
220503 130116 39 296 - 256 5 - - 90,820 250306
2005 04 130018 B2 405 - 274 - - 47 613 24 03 07

The above figures for 2003 ang 2004 show the manumum gward that would be released¢ provided that the Company achieves first posiion withen Lhe Lomparater group (namely Ahold Bools Carredour Casino
Duzons GUS Kinghisher Loblaw Marks & Spencer Morrisons Nexl and Tescol 3l the end of the three-year performance penod Shares Ep the vatue of 30 per cen? of salary wilk be released at median perigrmancé
Awargs wilt be pro raied at every position between the median and [irst posilion 0 the comparalor group The Campany s relative perlormance is determuned by reference to TSR being the increase i the value
of a share including reinvested divigends over the three year period This measure was chosen to incentivise pariictpants for maxmysing shareholder return over the medium term Since the end of the hinanaid?
year it has been conlirmed that as a result of the TSR cakulation tor the 2003 allecation 45 410 shares will be released lo Roger Matthews on 17 May 2006 The conditional awards 1or Roger Matthews have
been pro rated to the date he left the Company

On joning the Company Justin King received a £ash equivalent award which will be pro rated pn a hme baws over the performance period as if he had recerved a conditronal award under the grants made in
2003 Based on perfarmance and pro rated hme he will receive a cash award in respect of 65 789 shares al the end of May 2006

Options over ordinary shares
Justin King surrendered 1 007 607 outstanding share options on 13 July 2005 when he jeined the J Samsbury plc Share Plan 2005

Al the end of the year Roger Matthews executive share options were as follows

Humber of options Weighted Date
average Range of
Granted Exercised Lapsed exerose EXEreIse
26 march during durng the during 25 March price prices From which
MNote 2005 the year year the year 2006 ipence) (pence) exercisable Of expiry
Executrve Share
Gption Plan with
performance
conditiens attached
Roger Matthews 15 231 333 - - - 231 333 294 272-319 75 24 11 02 201107
2 182 358 - - - 182,358 417 407-427 07 06 04 201107
a6 974 975 - - 331 661 643 314 273 256 5-287 25 07 05 2011 07

1 Pertormance conditson of 3 O per cent real annual average growih in £PS over a roling Lhree year penod up 10 the tenth anniversary ol the grant

2 Performance concibon ¢ 3 O per cent reat annual avarage growth in EPS over the three years from the oate of grant whech I ndt sanished s retested over a four year period If 1he performance cenditran 15
not met after the lourth year the oplion lapses

3 For eath of (1) and (2) above the perfarmance condibion is increased to 4 O per cent real average annual growtn in EPS jo0 the extent 1hat the 1olal value of outstanding eptions was sn excess of four imes basic
salary at the date of grant

4 Periormance conditions pravided thal no ophons will be exerisable for average anauat real growth of less than 3 per cent per annum aver 1he three year perlormance period S0 per cent of the aption will be
exercisable If average real growth of 1 per cent per annum s acheved and for average real growth of S per ¢ent per annum the option iy exercisable in fulf with a pro rating between 3 ana 5 per cenl

S The pertormance conditions aitaching ta grants up to and induding 25 July 2001 have been met

6 Gptions held by Roger Matthews as shown above inciude pro rating

7 The opbions outstanding under the Company s £ xecutive Share Ophion Plan are exercisable at prices between 272 00 and 427 00 pence

At the end of the year, Justin King s Savings Related Share Options were as follows

Number of aptions o—— Date
- T - -7 average Range of
Granted Exercised Lapsed eAereIse exercise
26 March duwing durirgy the during 25 March plice prices From which
2005 the year year the year 2006 (pence) {pence) erercisable Of expury
Sawvings Related
Share Option Scheme
Justin King - 6,969 - - 6,969 231 231 01031! 310811

The Sawings Relatet: Share Oplion Scheme i3 an all employee shate option scheme and has nae periormance conaia0n3 as per intand Revenue Regulalions

In the penod from 26 March 2005 to 25 March 2006 the highest mid market price of the Company s shares was 335 00 pence and the lowest
mid market price was 27175 pence and at 25 March 2006 was 33075 pence
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Remuneration report continues

J Sainsbury plc Share Ptan 2005
The table below shows the conditional awards granted under this Ptan which would be released)f the Company achieves maximum vesting

Date ai Core shate Persanal Manimum First exercise Last exercise

qrant award investment share award’ date? date

Justin King 240305 237,508 118 754 1 662 556 14 05 08 230310
Darren Shapland 0108 0S 102 558 70,224 793 686 14 05 08 230310

1 The maximum share award excludet the personal investment shares acquwed by Jushin King and Darren Shapland which must be held for the duration of the Ptan If assumes fuit veshing
2 Depenting on pertormance parhial vesting may occur following the Prehmunary Results announcement n 2008

3 The performance condibions attaching to the award are se! out on page B

4 The J Sawnsbury plc Share Plan 2005 15 2 nil cost option plan

Restricted Share Plans 2004 and 2005

As previously disclosed Justin King and Darren Shapland gave up valuable entitlements arising from the Marks & Spencer Executive Incentive plans and
the Carpetnght Executive Incentive plans respactively when they joined the Company The Committee agreed to compensate them for these lost
entifiements but rather than making a cash payment awards of resiricted shares were made As the awards compensate them for lost entitiements
there are no performance conditions Shares will be released on the vesting dates if they remain employees of the Company on the relevant dates

The awards will vest before the release dates if their service contracts are termimated by the Company other than for cause 1n the event of death oron a
change of control, unless the awards are replaced by the acquining company If they leave employment for any ather reason the awards wall be {orfleited

Notional

gam on

release at

Numeber of Nomber of Number of 286 09 pence
restricled Date of Date ol sharas shares per sharg Vesling
shares award release released lapsed £000 date
Justin King 191 204 270304 0108605 191 204 - 546 8 -
70,746 270304 - - - - 01 0606

Jushin King retained 112 810 shares ansing out of the 2005 release the remainder was used to fund the income tax and nalienal insurance charge relating Lo the release
Number of

restricted Dale of Veshing
shares award date
Darren Shapiand 32 200 010805 - - - - 01 08 06
32 200 Q10805 - - - - 010807
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Remuneration report continued

1v) Directors’ interests

Directors interestsin the ordinary shares of the Company and shares held in trust on behalf of Directors are as follows

Ordinary sharest?

26 March 25 March 16 May*

2005 2006 2006

Justin King - 231,915 231,984
Philip Hampton - 25,000 25,000
Darren Shapland - 51,243 51,243
Jamig Dundas 1,050 1,050 1,050
Gary Hughes - 15,100 15,100
Bridget Macaskill 2,187 2,187 2,187
John McAdam - 1,000 1,000
Bob Stack 2,8008 2,800 2,800

1 The above table has not been audited

2 Ordinary shares are beneficial holdings which include the Directers personal holdings and those of their spouses and minor children They also include the beneficial interests in shares which are held In trust

under the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan

3 The Executive Directers are potentiai beneficlaries of the Company s emplayee benefit trusts which are used to satisfy awards under the Company s employee share plans and are therefore treated as

interested In the 23 B million shares {2005 24 7 millon) held by the Trustees

4 The Company s Register of Directors interests contans full details of Directors nterests shareholdings and aptlons over ardinary shares of the Company

5 Held In the form of 700 American Depositary Receipts
6 Includes shares purchased under the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan between 25 March 2006 and 16 May 2006

Approved by the Board on 16 May 2006

Bob-_ALa7>

Bob Stack
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements for The Drrectors are respensible for keeping proper accounting records
each financial year which give a true and iaw view of the state of affairs which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group at the end of the period, and of the profi of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the

or loss of the Group for that pertod financral statements compty with the Companies Act 1985 They are also

responsible for ensurwtg the operation of systems of internal control and

for taking responsible steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and

select suitable accounting pohicies and then apply them consistently th¢ Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of iraud and other irregularities

In preparing financial statements the Direciors are required to

make judgements and estimates that are reascnable and prudent
The maintenance and integrity of the J Samnsbury plc website is the
responsibility of the Directors the work carried out by the Auditors does
not involve consideration of these matters and accordingly the Auditors
accept no responsibiity for any changes that may have occurred to the
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it financial statements since they were initially presented on the website

is inappropriate to assume that the Company will continue in business

state whether the Tinancial statements have been prepared i
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopied by the European Union and

Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and
The Directors confirm that they have comphed with the above dissermination of hinancial statements may differ from legislaiton in
requirementis In preparing the financial statements other Junisdictions
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of J Sainsbury plc

We have audited the Group and Company financiai statements

{the financial statements ) of J Sainsbury pic for the 52 weeks to

25 March 2006 which compnse the Group income statement the Groug
and Company Statements of recognised income and expense the

Group and Company Balance sheets the Group and Company Cash flow
statements and the celated notes These financial statements have heen
prepared under the accounting pohcies set out therein We have also
audited thenformation in the Remuneration report that 1s described

as having been audited

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report the
Remuneration report and the financial staterments in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Unign are set out in the Statement of
Oirectors responsibiities

Our respansibility Is to audit the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration report to be audited in accordance with reievant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing {UK and
Ireland) This report incluchng the epinion has been prepared for and only
for the Company s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not an giving
this opinion, accept or assume responsibiity for any other purpose or

to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opimion as to whether the financiat statements

grve a true and farr view and whether the hinancial statements and

the part of the Remuneration report to be audsted have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of

the JAS Regulation We alse report to you if in our opinion the Report

of the Directors 1s not consistent with the financial statements (f the
Company has not kept proper accounting records If we have not received
all the information and explanations we require {or our audit or 1§
information specified by law regarding directors remuneration and
other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Statement of corperate governance reflects the
Company s comphance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined
Caode speaified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authonty and we report if it does not We are not required to consider
whether the Board s statements on internal control cover all risks and
controls, ef form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited fimancial statements The
otherinformatton comprises onfy the Chairman s statement the Chief
Executive s operating review the Financial review the Report of the
Directors the Statement of corporate governance and the unaudited
part of the Remuneration report We consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur responsibilities do
not extend te any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit i accordance with International Standards

on Auditing (UK and Ireland)issued by the Auditing Practices Board

An audit includes exarmination on a test basis of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosuresn the financial statements and the part of
ihe Remuneration report to be audied It also includes an assessment

of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directers in the
preparation of the hinancial statements and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate (o the Group s and Company s circumstances
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain alt the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reaseonable assurance that the financial
statemnents and the part of the Remuneration report {o be audited are
free from material musstaternent whether caused by fraud or other
irrequlartty or error In forming our opinien we also evalizated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of infermation in the financial statements
and the part of the Remuneration report to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion

the Group hinancial statements give a true and fair view In accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unron of the state of the Group s
affairs as at 25 March 2006 and of its profit and cash flows for the

52 weeks then ended

the Company financial stalements give a true and fair view 10
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 ol the state
of the Cempany s affairs as at 25 March 2006 and cash flows for the
52 weeks then ended and

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration repori to be
gudhted have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

t 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
————
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Longon
16 May 2006
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Group income statement

tor the 52 weeks {0 25 March 2006

2006 2005
Note Em Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 16 061 15202
Cost of sales (14,924} (14 544)
Gross profit 1067 658
Administrative expenses (839} [Xx10)]
Other income 1 21
Operating profit/{loss) ] 229 (151}
finance income 5 30 44
Finance costs 5 {155} (132)
Share of post tax profit from joint ventures - 1
Prolit/{loss) before taxation 104 (238)
Analysed as
Underlying profit before tax trom conlinuing operations’ 267 238
Business Review and Transformation operating costs 7 5N {497)
IT INsourcing costs a {63) -
Pratit on sale of properties 4 1 21
Financing fair value movements 5 {12 -
Debt restructuring costs 5 (38) -
164 (238)
Income tax (expenselcredit 9 (46) 51
Profit/{loss) from continuing operations 58 {187)
Discontinued operations
Profit attributable to discontinued operations - 375
Profit for the tinancial year 58 188
Attributable to
Equity hotders ol the parent 64 184
Minority interests 6) )
58 188
Earnings/(losses) per share 10 pence pence
Basic 38 41
Diluted 38 41
From continuing operations
Basic is8 (17 4)
Diluted 38 (17 4)

1 Proiii belore 1a: irom conbinwng operations belore any gain or 1033 on the sale of properhies IMparment of goodwill hinancing far value movements and one off items that are matesral and infrequent v
nature In the cufrent finanaial year these one of! items were the Business Review costs |7 insourcing costs and debt resiructuning costs in the pnoe inancial year these one off items were the Business

Review and Transfarmation costs
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Statements of recognised income and expense

for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

Group Company
Nole Em Em £m £m
Currency translatien differences 2 3) - -
Actuanal (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes {255) 128 - -
Avaitable for sale financial assets
far value movements 26 - - -
Cash tlow hedges
eflective portion of fair value movements 1 - - -
transferred to Income statement {1} - - -
Share based payment tax deduction 9 5 - - -
Tax on items recognised directly 0 equity 9 68 (38) - -
Net (loss)/income recognised directly in equity {154) 87 - -
Profit for the financial year 58 188 153 350
Total recognised Income and expense for the financial year (96) 275 153 350
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent [i=10)] 271 153 350
Minority intecests 6) 4 - -
(96} 275 153 3150
Effect of changes in accounting policy on adoption of 1AS 32 and I1AS 39 43
Equity holders of the parent (78} (149)
Minonity interests - -
(78} {149}
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Balance sheets

at 25 March 2006 and 26 March 2005

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note £m fm £m £m
Non-current assets
Properly plant and equipment 12 7.060 7076 251 330
inlangrble assets 13 191 203 - -
Investmenls 12 10 20 7.231 57¥70
Avaiiable far sale financial assels 17 113 - - -
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers L16b 1473 1331 - -
Cther recewvables 18a - - 1751 368
Ceferred income lax asset 22 55 - 7 -
8,902 8 630 3,240 6 468
Current assets
Inventories 15 576 559 - -
Trade and other receivables 16a 276 319 150 2 885
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 16b 1,888 1227 - -
Available for sale financial assets 17 52 - - -
Investments 18 - Q0 - -
Cash and cash equivalenls 28b 1,028 706 411 317
3,820 2901 561 3202
Nen current assets held for sale 19 25 87 - -
3 845 2 988 561 3202
Total assets 12,747 11618 9,801 9 670
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 20a (2 094) {2 093) (5119) (2 483)
Amounts dus ta Samnshury s Bank customers and other banks 200 {2 299 (2 464} - -
Short Lerm borrowings 21 (253) (351 (233) (283)
Derivalive financial instruments 3la (10) - {10} -
Taxes payable (63) {55) 9 (29)
Provisians 23 (91} (70 2) (13)
(4,810) (5 038) (5,355) (2 808)
Net current (habslities)/assets (365) (2 048) (4,794) 394
Mon current kabities
Other payables 204 (30) (31 (782} (1500
Amounts due to Sansbury s Bank customers and other banks 20b (1,009 (22} - -
Long term borrowings 21 {2,178) 1793 - (1 704)
Derivative hinancial instruments 31a (2} - (2) -
Geferred mcome tax hability 22 - 1) - -
Provisions 23 (95} (87) {31) (33)
Relirement berelit obligabons 32 {658) (536) - -
{3972y {2 470) (815) {3 238}
Net assets 3,965 4112 3,631 3624
Equity
Called up share capitat 24 489 620 489 620
Share premium account 24 782 761 782 76l
Capital redemption reserve 25 668 547 668 547
Other reserves 25 1) 87 - -
Retaned earmings 26 1,948 2012 1,692 1 696
Equity shareholders funds 27 3886 4027 3.631 3624
Minority interests 27 79 85 - -
Total equity 27 3,955 4112 3,631 3,624

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2006, and are signed on its behalf

==

Justin King Chief Executive

Darren Shapland Chief Financial Officer
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Cash flow statements

for the 52 weeks o 25 March 2006

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Mote Em £m Em Em
Cash Hlows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 284 780 946 3,116 1 589
Interest paid {159) {107) (151) (Th
Corparation tax received/(paid} 3 7n 20 10
Net cash from operating activities 624 768 2,985 1522
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (549) (710} (14) (3)
Purchase of intangible assels (6) (14 - -
Proceeds Irom disposal of property plant and equipment 164 266 151 52
Acquisibon of and investment (n subsidiaries net of cash acquired 3435 {6) 99) (1 469) {1 195)
{Casts)/proceeds from disposal of operations nei of cash disposed {13} 1117 (13) 422
interest received 6 32 112 67
Dwidends received - - 250 312
Net cash frem investing activities (404) 592 (983) (349)
Cash flows from financing actrvities
Proceeds {romissuance of ordinary shares 22 S 22 5
Capital redemption 9 (549} (9) (549)
Repaymaent of short term borrowngs {348} (14) 174) (108)
Repayment of long term borrowings (1701} (18sy (1,701 (185)
Proceeds fraom shorl term borrowings 50 - Bl 142
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2,056 - - -
Debl restructuring costs (22} - (22) -
Repayment of capital element of ohhgations under finance lease barrowings {1} (116) - -
Interest elements of obligations under finance lease payments {3 (8) - -
Dividends paid 1ia (131} (254) {131) 254}
B share preference dividends paid 110 - {113} - {113)
Issue of loan from minority sharehokier 9 9 - -
Net cash from financing activities (78) (1225} {1,965) (1 062)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 142 135 37 115
Opening cash and cash equivalents 700 513 208 93
Cash attributable to discontinued operations - 51 - -
700 564 208 93
Effects of foreign exchange rates - 1 - -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 28b 842 700 245 208
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General infermation

J Samsbury plc s a pubhc hmited company { Company ) incorporated in the
United Kingdom whose shares are publicly traded enthe London Stock £xchange
The Company 15 domiciled in the United Kingdom and 1Ls registered adoress s

33 Holborn Lendon ECIN ZHT United Kingdom

The financial year represents the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006 (prior financial year
52 weeks tg 26 March 2005) The consohdated financial statements for the 52 weeks
to 25 March 2006 comprise the linancial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries { Group ) and the Group s interests i associates and jeint ventures

The Group $ pincipal aclwities are gracery and related retaiing and (inancial services

2 Accounting pelicies

{a) Statement of compliance

The Group s financial statements have been arepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) as adopted by the European Umion and
International Financial Reporttng interpretations Committee { IFRIC } interpretations
and with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 apphicable to companies reporting
under IFRS The Company s inancal statements have been prepared on the same
basis and as permitted by Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985 no income
statement s presented for the Company

These are the Group s and Company s first financial s{atements prepared under
IFRS and theretore IFRS § Fust me Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards has been apphed The last financial staternents under UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principies { UK GAAP ) were for the 52 weeks Lo 26 March
2005 An explanation of the transibion Lo IFRS 1s provided in note 42

{b) Basis of preparation

The hinancial statements are presenteg n sterling rounded to the nearest million
(Em) unless otherwise stated They have been prepared under the histonical cpst
convention except tor denvative linancial instruments and available for sale financial
assels that have been measured at lair value for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

The preparation of inanaal statements in contormity with If RS requires the use ot
Jjudgements estimates and assumplions that atfect the reported amounts of assets
and habilities at the gate ol the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses durng {he reporting penod The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on hislorical experience and various ether tactors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the resulls of which form the
basis of making the jJudgements about carrying values of assets and tiabilities that
are nol readsly apparent lrom other sourcas Actualresults may differ from these
estimates The areas (nvelving @ higher degree of judgement or comptlexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are sigrilicant to the Hinancial statements are
disctosed in note 2¢

Early adoption of standard

The Amendment to IAS 19 Empleyee Benefits s effective for annual periods
beginmng 1 January 2006 (e hnancial year baginning 26 March 2006 for Lhe Group
However the Group has elected Lo early adopt this amendment and has applied the
requirements of the amendment to the Group financial statements for the 52 weeks
to 25 March 2006

Standards nterpretations and amendments to published stangards that

are not yet effective

Certain new standards amendments and interpretations ta existing standards have
been published that are mandatory for the Group s future accounting periods but
which the Group has not early adopled These are set out below

Effective for the Group tor the financial year beginming 26 March 2006
Amendment to 1AS 39 Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Farecast intragroup
Transactions
Amendment te 1AS 39 The Fair Value Option
Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Conlracts
IFRS 6 Exploration of and Evaluation of Mineral Resaurces
IFRIC 4 Determ:ning whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
IFRIC 5 Rughts to Interests anssng from Decommissioning Restoration
and Environmental Rehabibtation Fungds
IFRIC & Liatilities ansing from ParLicipating in a Speaific Market - Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment
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Effective for the Group tor the financial year beginming 2% March 2007
Amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of Finanoial Statements  Capital Disciosures
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Dhisciosure

The Group has considered the above standards interpretations and amendments
and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Group or that they would
nol have a significant tmpact on the Group s fiinancial statements

The accounting policies set out be'ow have been applied consistentiy to alt periods
presented in the financial statements and in preparning the apening IFRS balance
sheet at 28 March 2004 for the purposes ol the transitian ta IFRS

The accouniing pelicies have been applied consistently by the Group and the Company

Consohdation

The Group s financial statemenis include the results of the Company and all its
subsidiaries together with the Group s share of the post tax results ol its associates
and joint ventures

Subsidarnes

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power [o govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one hall of the voting nghts The results of subsidiaries are :in¢fuded in the Group
incame statement from the date of acquisition or in the case of disposals up tothe
eftective date of dispasal Intercompany transactions and balances between Group
enlibies are ehminated upon conschdabon

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities that are neither subsidiaries nor joint venlures over which
the Group has significant influence Jomnt ventures are jointly controlled entities in
which the Group has an interest The Groups share of the resulls of its associates and
jomt venlures are included in {he Group income statement using the equity method
of accounting

Investments (n associates and joint ventures are carried in the Group haiance sheet
at cost plus post acquisition changes inthe Group s share of net assets of the enlily
less any impairment in valug

Investments in subsidiaries associates and jeint venlures are carried at cost in the
financial statements of the Ceampany

Revenue
Revenue consists of sales through relait outlets and n the case ol Sainsbury s Bank
nterest receivable fees and commissions

Revenue 1s recogmised when the significant nisks and rewards of products and
services have been passed to the buyer and can be measured reliably

Sales through retal outlets are shown net of the cost of Nectar reward points issued
and redeemed stall discounts vouchers and sales made on an agency basis
Commissian sngome s recogmised in revenue based on the terms of the contract

Sainsbury s Bank

Interest income 15 recogmised in the income statement for all nstruments measured
at amorlised cost using the effective interest method This calculatron takes into
account interest receved or paid fees and commissions received Or paid that are
miegrat Lo the yieid as well as incremental transaction costs

Fees and commussions that are not integral to the yield are recogrised in the income
statement as service s provided Where there 1s a nsk of potentialclaw back an
apprepnate element of the insurance commission recevable 1s deferred and
amorhised over the expected average life of the undertying loan

Cost of sales

Cost of sales ¢consists of alt costs 1o Lhe point of sale sncluding warehouse and
transporlabion costs all the costs of operating retanl outlets and i the case of
Samnsbury s Bank interest expense on eperating activilies calculated using the
elfective interest method

Deterred taxation
Deterred tax 1% accounted for on Lhe Dasis of kemparary differences arising trom
ditierences between the lax base and accounting Dase of assels and liabililies

Delesred tax 1s recogrused for all {axable temperary ditlerences exceplt to the extent
where (it arises trom the imbial recogmition of an asset ar a lrabihity 8 a {ransaction
that 15 not a business combinateon and at the time of transaction affects nesther
accouniing profit nor taxable prold




Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
Ceferred tax assets are recogeused to the extent that it 15 probable that tuture taxabfe
profits well be available against which the temporary differences can be ytihsed

Deferred Lax 15 charged or credited to Lhe mcome statement excepl when il retates
10 stems charged or credited directly to eguity in which case the deferred tax 1s also
dealt with in equity

Intangible assets

Pharmacy licences

Pharmacy licences are carried al cost less accumulaied amortisation and any
impairment loss and amoriised on a straight line basis over their uselul economic
ife of 15 years

Computer software

Compuler software 15 carried al cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment loss Externally acquired computer software ang soflware licences are
capitalised and amgrtised on a straight hine basis over thewr useful econamic lives of
ihree to live years Costs relating to development of computer software for internal
use are capitalised once the recognition criteria are met When the software 1s
avallable for iis intended use these costs are amortised ovar Lhe estimated useful
Iie of the software

Goodwill

Geodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the censideration of an acquisihion
over the fair value of the Group s share of the net identifiable assets of the acguued
subsidhary at the cate of acquisition Goodwill 1s recogmised as an asset on the
Groups balance sheet in the year i which it anises Goodwiliis tested fer imparment
annually and again whenever indicators of impairment are detected and ts carried at
cost 'ess accumulated impairment losses

Property plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Land and builldings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recegnised impairment (0ss Properuies in the course of construction are neld at cost
fess any recagmsed imparrment loss Cost includes any directly altribulable costs and
borrowing costs capitalised :n accordance wilh the Group $ accouniing pancy

Fixtures equipment and vehicles
Fixtures equipment and vehicles are held at cost less accumulaled depreciabion and
any recognised )Impairment 10ss

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost of the assets Lo their residual
values on a straight ine method on the following bases

Freehold butdings and teasehold properties - 50 years or the lease term

if shorter

Fixtures equipment and vehicles - 3 to 15 years

Freehold land is not depreciated

Land and buildings under construction and non current assets held tor sale are
not depreciated

Impairment of non financial assels

At each {ulf year tratance sheet date the Group reviews the carryg amounts of

s langibte ang intangible assets to determine whether there s any indication that
those assels have suffered an impairment loss (f any such indication exists the
recoverable amount of the asset which 15 the mgher of its faw value less costs to sell
and its value in use 15 estimated in order 10 determine the extent of the impairment
loss Where the asset does not generate cash 1lows that are independent from other
assets the Group eshimates the recoverabte amount of the cash generating unit

¢ CGU ) 1o which the asset belongs For tangibie and intangibte assets excluding
qoadwll the CGU 15 deemed to be each trading store For goodwill the CGU s
deemed 1o be each retall chain of stores acquired

Any impairment charge 1s recogmsed in the income statement 1n the year in which

It occurs Where an impairment (05 other than an imparment loss on goodwill
subseguently reverses due to a change in the oniginal esimate the carrying amount
af the assel 15 increased Lo the revised estrmate of its recoverable amount

Capitatrisation of interest
Interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ar canstruction of
qualiying assets are cagitalsed Lo the cost of the asset gross of tax relred

Leased assets

Leases are classilied as hinance leases when the terms of the lease transier
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group All other leases

are classified as operatmng leases For praoperty leases the tand and building elements
are frealed separately to determine the appropriate lease ctassification

Finance leases

Assets funded through linance leases are capitalised as property plant and
equipment and depreciated over therr estimated useful ives or the lease term
wh:chever 15 shorter The amount caputalised s the lower of the fair value of the
asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments during the lease term

at the inception of the lease The resuiting iease abhgations are included 1n habities
net of {inance charges Finance costs on finance leases are charged directly o the
ncome statement

Operating leases
Assels leased under operating leases are not recorded or the balance sheet
Rental payments are charged directly to the income statement

Lease ncentives
Lease ncentives pramanly mclude up front cash payments or rent free perigds
Lease mcentives are capilahsed and spread over the peried of Lhe lease term

Leases with predetermined fixed rental increases

The Group has a number of leases with predetermined lixed rental sncreases
These rental inCreases are accounted for on 3 straight hne basis over the period
of the lease term

Qperating iease income
Operaling lease ncome consisis of rentals fram properties held {or disposal or
sub tenant agreements and 1s recogrised as earned

Empleyee benefits

Pensions

The Group operales varwous defined beneht and defineg contribution pension
schemaes for (s emplovees A defined benefit scheme 15 a pension ptan that
defines an amount o pension benefit that an emplayee will receive on retirement
A defined contribution scheme 15 a pension ptan under which the Greup pays fixed
contubutions into & separate entity

In respect of detined benefit pensian schemes the pension scheme deficit recognised
in the batance sheel represents the difference between the far value of the plan
assets and the present valve of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheel
date The delined benefit obligation is actuanally calcutated on an annual basis usng
the projected umil credit method Plan assets are recorded at (ar value

The income statement charge ss sphit between an operating service cost and a
financing charge which s the net af interest cost on pension scheme hatlities
and expecled return on plan assels Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
full in the period in the statement of recogmised income and expense

Payments to defined contribution pension schemes are charged as an expense as
they fall due Any contributions unpaid at the balance sheet date are included as
an accrual as at that date The Group has no jurther payment obhigations once the
contrnibulions have been paid

Long service awards
The cosls of long service awards are accrued over the period the service 1s provided
by the employee

Share based payment

The Group provides benefils ta employees {including Directors} of the Group in the
torm of share based payment transactions whereby employees render sarvices in
exchange lor shares or rights over shares { equity settied transactions )

The fair value of the employee services rendered 1s deterrmined by reference to the
{air value of the shares awarded or options granted excluding the impact of any
non market vesting conditions

All share aplions are valued using an aptron prnicing model (Black Scholes or Monte
Carle) This tair vatue 1s charged to the income statement over the vesting perod of
the share based payment scheme with the corresponding increase in equity

The value of the charge 15 adjusied in the income statement over the remainder of
the vesting period to reffect expected and actual levels of optrons vesting with the
corresponding adjustment made in equily
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued

Inventaries

Inventones are valued ai the lower of cost and net realisable value Inventories at
warehguses are valued on a first «n first out basis Those at reiail outlets are valued
at catculated average cost prices Costincludes all direct expenditure and olher
appropriate atiributadle costs incurred in bringing snventories to therr present
location and condition

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents campnise cash an hand demand deposits and ether short
term highly iguid invesiments that are readily convertible te a known amount of cash
and are subyject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value Bank overdraits that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are
included as a companent of cash and cash equavalents for the purposes of the cash
{low statement

Non current assets held for sale

Non current assels are classified as asseis held for sale and stated at the lower of the
carrying amount and farr value less cosls to sell H their carrying amount 15 recovered
pnncigally theough a sale transaction rather than ithrough continuing use

Foreign currencies

Foreign operations

On consolidation assets and hatnlilies of loreign operations are translated inte
sierhing at year end exchange rates The results of foreign operations are franslated
nio sterling at average rates of exchange for the year

Exchange dilferences arising irom the retranslation at year end exchanga rates
of the net investment 11 foreign operalions less exchange dilferences on foreign
currency borrowings or forward contracts which are (n substance part of the net
investment in a foreign aperat:on are 1aken to equily and are reported inthe
statement of recognised incame and expense

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated v foregn currencies are transtated at the exchange rate
al the date af [he transaction Monelary asseis and habilities denominated in foreign
currencies al the balance sheel dale are translated at the exchange rate ruling at
that dete Foremgn exchange differences ansing on translaton are recognised in the
nceme statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there 1s a present legal or constructive obligation as
aresult ol past evenls for which it s probable that an outftow of economic benefit
will be required to settle the obligation and where the amount of the ¢bligation can
be relably estimatea

Onerous leases

Provisions for onesous leases measured nel of expecied rentals are recognised
when the property leased becomes vacant and s no longer used in the operations
of the business

Restructuning
Provisions tar restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has a detailed
formal plan for the restructuring that has been communicated Lo alfected parties

Financial mstruments

Financial assets

The Group classiftes its financial assets in the following categories at law value through
profit and loss |gans and recewvables held to maturity and available for sale The
ciassihcation degends on the purpose for which the tinanc:al assets were acquired

Financial assets al far value through profit and loss include hinrancial assets held
for trading and those designated at fair value through prohit or loss at inceplion
Berivatves are classied as held for tradung unless they are accounted for as an
eitective hedging instrument Financial assets at {air value through profd and loss
are recorded al faw value with any gains or losses recogmised in the income
statement in the period in which they arise

Loans and recevables are non derwative linanceal assets with lixed or determmnable
payments that are not quoted in an active market The Greup has no intention of
trading Lhese loans and recervables They include amounts due from Samnsbury s
Bank customers and amounts due from other banks Subsequen? toniial
recognition these assets are carried at amortised cost using the elective interest
methed Income irom these financeal assets 1s calculated on an effective yreld basis
and s recognised i the income statement
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Held ta matunity invesiments are non derivative inanceal assets with fixed or
determnable payments and fixed maturities that the Group s management

has the pasitive intention and ability to hold 1o matunity Subsequent to initial
recognition these assets are recorded at amortised cost using the effective
interest method Income 1s calculated on an effective yield basis and 15 recogmised
n the income statement

Available for sale { AFS yinvestments are those linanciat assets that are intended
to be held lor an indebhinite pernod ol time which may be sold in respanse Lo needs
for rquidity or changes in interest rates or equity prices Subsequent to initial
recognition these assets are recorded at fair value with the movements in lair value
taken directly to equity until the hinancial asset s derecognised or impaired at which
time the curnulative gain or loss previously recogrised in equity is recognised in

the ncome statement Drvidends on AFS equity instfuments are recogmsed in the
income statement when the entity s nght to recesve payment 15 established interest
on AFS debt instruments 1s recognised using the effective interest method

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or foss held to
maturity and AFS invesiments are recognised an trade date Loans are recogrused
when cash)s advanced Lo the borrowers Financial assets are inihally recogmised
at far value plus transaction costs for all tinancial assets not carned at farr value
threugh the prafit and loss Financial assets are derecogmised when the rights lo
recewe cash ftows fram the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
{ransferred substantially all risks and rewards ot ownership

Impairment of inancial assels

An assessment of whether there 1s cbjective evidence of timpairment 15 carned

oul for all financial assels or groups of inanciat assets at the balance sheel dale
This assessment may De of individual assets { individual impairment jor of a
portfolio of assets ( collective impairment ) A financiat asset or a group of financiak
assets s considered lo be imparred If and only if there 1s objeclive evidence of
impairment as a result ol one or more events that occurred after the imhial
recognition of the assel (a loss event yand that loss event {or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash 1lows of the inancial assel or group of financial assels
that can be reliably estimated

For individual impairment the principaltoss event s one or more missed payments
althaugh gther loss events can also be taken inte account Including arrangements
In place o pay lass than the contractual payments {raud and bankrupicy or other
haancial difficulty indicators An assessment of collectrve impairment will be made
of financial assels with similar risk charactertstics For these assets portfolo 1055
experience s used to provide ebjective evidence ol impairment

Where there 1s objeclive evidence that an smpairment loss exists en loans and
recevables or held 1o matunty investments impairment provisions are made to
reduce the carrying value of iinancial assels to Lhe present value of estimated juiure
cash fiows discounted at the financial asset s original effective interest rate

For linancial asseis carried at amortised cost the charge to the incame statement
reflects the movement i the level of provisians made tagether with amounis writien
olf net of recovertes in the year

In the case of equity nvestments classified as available for sale a sigmificant or
preloenged decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost I1s censidered in
determining whether the asset 15 impaired H any such evidence exisis for available
for sale financial assets the cumudative loss - measured as the difference between
the acguisibion cost and the current fair value less any impairment toss on that
financial asset previously recogmsed in the tncome statemenl = s removed lrom
equity and recogrised sn the income statement

Impairment losses recagmsed in the intome statemend on equity insiruments are not
reversed It in a subsequent period the fair vatue ol a debit instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the in¢rease can be objectively retated to an event
occurnng after the impairment loss was recogmised in the income statement the
impairment 105515 reversed through the income statement

Interest will cantinue to accrue on all inancial 3ssets based on the written down
balance Inierestis calculated using the rate of interest used to discount the luture
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment toss Tg the extent that a
provision may be increased or decreased in subsequent pesiods the recognition of
interest witl be based on the latest balance net of provision

Financiak habihtres

Interest bearing bank toans and overdrafls are recorded imitiatly at far value which
15 gengrally the proceeds received net of direct 1ssue cosls Subsequently these
habilities are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest method




Notes to the financial statements continved

2 Accounting policies continued

Finance charges including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct
15sue cosis are accounted for on an accruals basis to the income slatement using the
effectwve interest method and are added Lo the cafrying amount of the instrument 1o
the extent thal they are not settled in the period in which they anse

Fair value estimatien
The metheds and assumptions apphed in determining the fair values of financial
asseis and financial hatilities are disclosed in note 3¢

Redeemable greference shares

Redeemable preference shares that meet the definition of a habiiity are recognised
as ahabiity on the balance sheet The corresponding dividends on these sharas are
recognised as hinance costs through the income siatement

Dervative linancial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group s activibies expose it primanily to the financial risks of changes ia foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates The Group principally uses feregn
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures
The use of inanciai derivatives s governad by the Group s treasury policies as
approved by the Board The Group does not use derwvative financial instruments

fer specutative purposes

All derivative financial instruments are inihiatly measured at fair vaiue on Lke contract
date and are also measured at fair value at subseguent reporting dales

Hedge relationships are classified as cash flow hedges where the denvalive financial
Instruments hecdge the currency risk of future highly probable inventory purchases
Changes in the fair value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and
effective as hedges of tuture cash lows are recogmsed directly in equity and the
inetfective portion s recognrsed immediately in the income statement If the cash
low hedge ef a firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition
ol anon financial asset or iability then at the time the 3sset or habiity 15 recognised
the associated gans or losses on the derivative thal had preveously been recagmised
in equity are included i the imtial measurement of the asset or Bathly

Hedge relabionshups are classihied as fow value hedges where the derwative iinangial
instruments hedge the change in the tair value of a hnancial asset or hability due

to foreign currency risk and/or interest rate risk The changes in fair value of the
hedg:ng instrument are recegnised in the income statement The hedged item 15
also adjusted for changes in tar value attributable te the hedged nisk wiih the
corresponding adjusiment made n the income statement

Te gualify for hedge accounting the Group documents at the inception of the hedge
the hedging nsk management strateqy the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item or transaction and the nature of the rsks being
hedged The Group also documents the assessment of the effectiveness of the
hedging relationship to show that the hedge has been and will be highly effective
on an ongaing basis

Changes in the lair value of dernvative linanaial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised in the income stalement as finance income/costs
as they anise

Hedge accounling is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold
termunated ar exercised or no lenger guahifies for hedge accounting Af that trme
any cumulative gam or loss en the hedging instrument recegmised in equity 15
retained in equity until the ferecast transaction occurs i a hedged transactien is
no longer expected to occur the net cumulalive gain or loss recogaised in equity
15 transierred to the income statement for the peniod

Otfsetting financial insiruments

Financial assets and hatnlities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset the recogmised amounts and
theres an intention o settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the hability
simultanegusly

Financial instruments (prior year comparatives}

The Group has taken the exemption avaitatde in IFRS 1 not Lo restate comparatives
for 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation and IAS 3% financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement As such financial instruments are
accounted for and presented 1n accordance with UK GAAP for the comparatives

{52 weeks 1o 26 March 2005) The Group s accouniing pokcy for inancial instruments
under UK GAAP 15 set out below

The derivative (inanc:al snstruments used by the Group Lo manage its interest rate
and currency risks are interest rate swaps and swap options ¢ross currency swaps
forward rate contracts and currency oplions

Interest payments or receipts ansing from denvative instruments are recognised
within net interest payable over the persod of the conteact Any premiem or discount
arising 15 amertised over the hie of the instruments

Forward currency contracts entered inlo with respect to trading fransactions are
accounted for as hedges with the instrumenis impact on profit not recegnised
unii the underlying transaction 15 recognised in the profit and foss account

Termmabon payments made or received sn respect of denvatives are spread over the
Iife of the underlying exposure in cases where the underlying exposure continues to
exst and taken to the proht and Ipss acceunt where the underlying exposure ceases
to exist

(¢} Judgements and estimates

The Group makes judgements and assumpiions concermng the future that impact
the apphicaiion of policies and réportec amounts The resulting accounting estimates
calcufated using these judgements and assumplions will by delimition seldom equal
the related actualresults but are based on historical experience and expectations of
future events The judgements andkey sources of estimation uncertainty that have
a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
discussed below

Goadwillimpairment

The Graup is required to assess whether goodwill has suffered any impairment

loss based on the recoverable amounts of its CGUs The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs have been determined pased an value in use calculations and these caiculations
require the use of estimates in relabon to future cash llows and suitable discount
rates as disclosedn note 13 Aclual outcomes could vary from these estunates

Impairment of assets

Financial and non fiancial assets are subject to impairment reviews based on
whether current or future events and crcumstances suggest that their recoverable
amount may be less than their carrying value Recoverable amount s basedon a
calculation of expected future <ashflows which includes management assumplions
and estimates of future performance

Post empleyment beneflits

Ine Group operates various delined benefit schemes for its employees The present
value of the schemes habiihies recogmised al Lhe balance sheet date s dependent on
interast rates of mgh quanty corporate bends The net hnancing charge recognised

n the income stalement s dependent an the interest rale of igh quality corporate
onds and an expectation of the weighted average returns on the assets within the
schemes Other key assumplions within thes calculation are based on market conditions
or estimates of future evenlts incluting mortahty rates as set out in note 32

Provisions

Provisions have been estimated for onerous leases and restructuring cosis These
provisions are estimates and {he actual costs and Liming of future cash flows are
dependent on future events Any difference between expectabions and the actuaf
future hiabity will be accounted for i the period when such determination s made

Income taxes

The Group recogrisas expected labibities {or tax based on an estimation of the likely
taxes due which requires sigmiicaal judgement as to the ultimate tax ¢etermination
ol certan tems Where the actual habihiy anising rom these issues giffers from
these estimates such differences will have anmmpact on ncome tax and deferred
tax provisions in the penod when such determimation s made

3 Segment reporting
The Group s primary reparting format 1s business segments with each segment
representing a business umit that offers different products and serves different markels

The businesses are organised into two operaling civisions
Retailing (Supermarkets and Convemience) and
Financial services (Sansbury s Bank)

Alt material continung operations are carried out i the UK Discontinued aperations
relate to the US sepermarkets business Shaw s which was sold in the prior
financial year

Segment results assets and lapihities include stems directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be aliocated on a reasonable basis Segment capital
expenditure 15 the total cast incurred dunng the period to acquire segment assets
that are expected to be used for more than one period
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3 Segment reporting continued

Financial
Retaiing SErviEes Group
Em Em £m
2006
Segment revenue
Sales lo external customers 15731 - 15731
Services Lo external customers - 330 330
Tatal revenue 15731 330 16 061
Underlying operating profit/{loss) from continuing operations' as2 (10 342
Business Review and Transformation operaling costs {951) - (51
IT Insaurcing costs {63) - (&3}
Prolit on sale of properlies 1 - ¥
Segment result 239 (1o 229
Finance income 30
Finance costs {155}
Income tax expense {46)
Prelit for the financial year 58
Assets 9 058 31679 12 737
Investment i joint ventures 10 - 10
Segment assets 12 747
Segment habilities 5281 3501 8782
Other segrment stems
Capital expenditure 518 7 525
Depreciation expanse 442 7 449
Amortisation expense 19 2 21
Impairment of amounts due from Samnsbury s Bank customaers - 106 106
2005
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 14 214 - 14914
Services to external customers - 288 288
Tolal revenua 14914 288 16202
Underlying operating profit from continuing operations’ 308 17 325
Business Review and Transfermation operating costs (497) - {497}
Profit on sale of properties 21 - 21
Segment result (168) 17 (151}
Finance income 44
Finance costs {132)
Share of post tax proht from joint ventures 1 - 1
Income tax ¢redit 51
Profit attributable to discontinued operations 375 - 375
Frofit for the hinancial year 188
Assets 8 754 2854 11 608
tnvestment in joint ventures 10 - 10
Segment assets 11618
Segment habihties 4843 2663 7 506
Other segment stems
Capital expendituse 885 16 901
Depreciation expense 717 S 722
Amertisation expense 24 2 26
Impairment of amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers - 64 64

1 Underhang protit before tax from continuing operattans telore finance income and finance costs
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4 Operating profit/{foss)

2006 2005
£m Em
Cperating profit/{loss) 15 stated aiter charging/(crediting) the following items

Cmployee caosts (note 6) 1793 1 753
Depreciation expense’ 449 722
Amartisation expense (included within cost of sales) 21 26
Profil an sale of properties (1) {21}
Impaument of amounts due [rom Sainsbury s Bank customers (included within admimistrativé expenses) 106 64
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 262 269
- other leases 31 21
- subtease payments received 24) {32}

1 Includec in the depreciabion expense [or the S2 weeks 10 26 March 2005 s £2B3 muhgn o depracahen relating to the Business Review

Operating protit/{loss} above includes £51 mithon (2005 £497 milhion) of Business Review and Transiermation operating costs {note 7} and £63 millon of IT insouscing costs
{note 8} of which ESO million (200S £431 milhon} s included in costs of sales and £64 m:lhon (2005 £66 mullign) s included in adminisiration expenses

2006 2005
Em £m
Auditors remuneration - Group
Audil services
statutory audit [¢ ) 06
Further assurance services 04 as
Taxation advisory services 03 02
15 13
The Company audit fee was £01 million (2005 EO1 mulhon)
5 Finance income and finance costs
2006 2005
£m £
Interest on bank depasits 7 33
Net return on pension schemes (note 32) 23 11
Finance income 30 44
financing fair value movements'
Faw value losses Financial services (4} -
- Relaihng (8} -
izy -
Debt restructuring ¢oslts (38) -
Borrowing costs
Bank loans and ¢verdrafts (2} (3)
Other loans (107} (126)
B share prelerence dividends {nate 21) (1} -
Obhgations under inance leases {3} 8)
Provisions - amartisation of discount {note 23} {1) -
{115} (137
Amounts included 1n the cost of quahfying assets
interest capitaised - quanlying assets 10 S
Finance costs {155} (132)

I Fair value mavernents relate 10 1an value adjustments on dedivalives relating to linancing actiaties and hedged items 1n fair value hedges

Totak interesi income amounted to E217 mulion (2005 £220 million) including inlerest ncome atinbutanle to Sainsbury s Bank of £210 milion (2005 £187 millien) inctuded
n revenue Total interest casts amounted to £230 milian {2005 £237 milhen) including interest costs attnbutable to Sansbury s Bank of £115 milion {2005 £100 mellion)
ingluded 1n cost ol sales
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6 Employee costs

2006 2005
Em Em
Employee costs for the Group during Lhe year amounted o
Wages and salaries includng bonus and termination benefits 1565 1545
Social security costs 101 95
Pension costs - defined contribution schemes 23 20
Pension costs - delined benelit schemes (note 32) 81 85
Share based payments expense {note 33) 23 a8
1793 1753
Number Number
000¢s 0D0s
The average numbear of employees duning the year were
Full time 49 2 43 8
Part time 104 1 1051
1533 1549
Full hme equivalent 26 2 97 4
The average number of emplayees (full ttme eguivatent) were employed in the following countries
United Kingdom 96 2 950
Umited Slates - 14
96 2 97 4

7 Business Review and Transformation operating costs

The Business Translormation Programme concluded in the year ended 26 March 2005 with no further costs recogmised in the current financial year Businass Review costs

n the current Inancial year are pnmarily employee and pension related costs as s&t oul below

2006 2005

£m £m

Business Transfarmatian aperating costs - 22
IT systems - 145
Employee and pension refated a7 a1l
Inventories - 90
Supply chain - 119
Property - 65
Other 4 15
Business Review operating costs 51 a75
Total Business Review and Transiormation operating costs 51 497

8 IT insourcing costs

On 27 Gctober 2005 the Group anngunced $hal the IT services previously provided by Accenture would be migrated back to the Group tegether with a number of Accenture
emplayees The costs assactated with the transition pracess are £63 muithon of which £3 mulion has beea pad by 25 March 2006 The remarnung £60 muliion af casts ace held

within provisions (note 23)
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9 Income tax expense

2006 2005
Em Em
Current tax expense
Current year 38 6
Gver provision In prior years (2} (4)
s Z
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 15 {53}
Over provision in prior years {3) -
10 (53)
Total income tax expense/(credit) in Income statement a6 51)
Tax expense on underlying profit
Tax on underlying profit from conbinumg aperatians’ 95 89
Tax on Business Review and Transformation operating costs {15) (140}
Tax on IT insourcing costs {19 -
Tax on financing far value movements (3) -
Tax on debt restructuring costs {12) -
46 51)
1 Tax charge attributable to underlying profit belare tax from continuing operations
The eftective tax rate of 44 2 per cent {2005 21 4 per cent} s huigher than the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK The differences are expiained below
2006 2005
Em £m
Profit/{loss) before taxation 104 (23B)
Income tax at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2005 30%) 31 {71
Effects of
Disallowed depreciation on UK properties 21 19
MNaon deductible expenses 1 =
OVEr provisSion In prior years (7} (4)
Total income tax expense/icrecit) in income statement a6 51
The deferred income tax charged or credited to equity during the year is as lollows
2006 2005
£m Erm
Tax ontems recogrised directly in equity
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benelt pension schemes {75) 38
Avallable for sale financial assets - fair value maovements 7 -
(68) 38
Share-based payment tax deduction (5) -
73 8
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10 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the werghted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the

year excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan trusts {note 26) which are treated as cancelleg

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue 15 adjusted Lo assume conversion ol all potential dilubive ordinary shares

These represent share oplions granted 1o employees where the exercise price 15 1€ss than Lhe average market price of the Company s ordinary shares during the year

Underlying earmngs per share s provided by excluding the effect of any gan or loss on the sale of properties impairment of goodwill financing fair value movements and one
off kems that are materiat and infrequent i nature In the current financial year these one off stems were the Business Review costs 1T insourcing cosls and debt restrecturing
casts Inthe prior inancial year these one off items were the Business Review and Transformation costs This atternative measure of earnings per share s presented to retlect

the Group s underlying tradmg performance

2006 2005
millien mition
Weighled average number of shares in 1ssue 16790 17439
Weghted average number of dilutive share options 132 67
Total number of shares for calculating dituted earnings per share 16922 17566
£m £m
Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent 64 184
Less preference dwidend on 8 shares classified in equity - (113)
Profit far the financial year after B share preference dividends 64 71
Less profit attributable to disconbinued operations - (375)
Profit/{loss) fram continuing operations after B share preference dividends 64 {304}
Add preference dindend oa B shares ¢lassified in eguity - 113
Busmess Review and Transiormation operating costs net of lax 36 57
1T insourcing costs net of tax 44 -
prafit on sale of properties 48] 21)
financing fair value movements net of tax 7 -
debt restructuring costs net of tax 26 -
Underlying profit after tax from continuing sperations 176 145
pence pence
per share prer share
All aperations
Basic earmings 38 41
Diuted earmings 38 41
Contnuing cperations
Basic earnings ER:) {17 4)
Diluted earnings 38 (17 4)
Underlying basic earnings 105 83
Underlying diluted earnings 10 4 83
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings - 214
Diluted earmings - 214
11 Dividend
(a) Equity dividends
2006 2005
pence pence 2006 2005
per share per share Em £m
Amounts recogrised as distributrons to equity helders in the year
Final dividend of prior financial year 365 11 36 95 218
Interim dividend af current fmancial year 215 219 36 36
7 80 1351 131 254

Afier the balance sheet date afinal dividend of 5 85 pence per share {2005 S 65 pence per share) was proposed by the Directors in respect of the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006
resulling in atotal final proposed dividend of £99 mithion (2005 £95 million) The proposed fina! dividend has not been included a5 a hab:hity at 25 March 2006

(b} B share preference dividends

B share preference dividend

2006 2005
Em £m
- 113

In the current financial year the B shares have been classified as shart term borrowings {note 213 on adoptian of 1AS 32 {note 43) Accardingly preference dividends patd in
respect of B shares are shown as finance costs in the income statement (note S) and as part of aperating actwities in the cash fiow statement for the current financial year
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Group Company
Land and  Fixtures and Land and
buildings equipment Total builaingsy
Em Em E£my £m
Cost
At 27 March 2005 6234 4235 10 469 349
Additicns 284 228 512 14
Acquisition of subsicharies 4 R 4 -
Disposals {79} (14Q) 219} (95)
Transler to assels held for sale (25) - (25} -
At 25 March 2006 6418 4323 10 741 268
Accumulated depreciation and tmpairment
At 27 March 2005 922 2 471 3392 19
Depreciation expense for the year 77 372 449 3
Disposats (29) {132} (k61 %)
At 25 March 2006 970 2711 3 681 17
Net book value at 25 March 2006 5,448 1612 7060 251
Capital work 1in progress included above 309 44 353 -
Cost
Al 28 March 2004 6 897 4 368 11 265 379
Adaitions 464 318 782 3
Acquisihion of subsidiaries 7 15 22 -
Mhisposal of subsidiaries (859 (329 (t 188} -
hsposals (192) (144) {336) 33
Transfer 1o assets held for sale (101} - (101) -
Exchange adjusiments 18 7 25 -
At 26 March 2005 6234 4 235 10 469 349
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 28 March 2004 1044 2107 3151 18
Depreciation expense lor the year 132 590 722 2
Disposal of subsidiaries {232) (151) (383) -
Disposals (14} (78) 92) (1
Transler ta asseis held tor sale (14} - (14) -
Exchange adjustments & 3 9 -
At 26 March 2005 922 2471 3393 19
Net book value at 26 March 2005 5312 1 764 7076 330
Capital work in-pragress included above 306 63 369 -
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em Em [14] Em
The net book value of tand and buildings comprised
Freenold land and buildings 4 166 4211 70 147
Long leasehold a18 741 181 183
Short teasehold 464 360 - -
5 448 5312 251 330

Interest capitahised

Interest capitatised included in addihions amounted to £10 milion (2005 £5 muthon} {or the Group and End (2005 £nil) for the Company Accumulated interest capstaiised
included in the cost total abave amounted (o £244 mithon (2005 E£247 milhon) for the Group and Enit (2005 Enil) for the Company The capitabsation rate used Lo determine

the amount ol borrowing costs ehigible for capitahsation s 5 3 per cent (2005 5 2 per cent)

Security

Property plant and equipment of 127 supermarkel praperiies with a net book value of £2 515 million are pledged as security for the new long term financing obtained in the

current hnangial year {note 21}

In addition property plant and equipment of a further s$ix supermarket properties with a net book value of E75 emillion has been pledged as security to underpin the residual
value guarantee qiven by the Group with regards to 16 supermarket groperlies soldin March 2000 and ten supermarket properties seld in July 2000 {note 40}
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12 Property, plant and equipment continuea
Analysis of assets held under linance leases - Group

2006 2005
Em Em
Land and buildings
Cost 53 59
Accumulated depreciation and imparment {21) {19}
Net book value 34 36
13 Intangible assets
Pharmacy
Goodwitl heences Soltware Total
£m Em £m im
Cost
a1 27 March 2005 106 35 115 256
Addibigns - 1 5 &
Acquisiion &f subsidianies kY - - 3
At 25 March 2006 109 36 120 265
Accumulated amartisation and impairment
Al 27 March 2005 - 12 41 53
Amortisation expense for the year - 2 19 2l
At 25 March 2006 - 14 60 74
Net book value at 25 March 2006 109 22 60 191
Cost
Al 28 March 2004 186 31 104 321
Additions - 4 11 15
Acguisition of subsidiaries a2 - - a2
Disposal of subsidianes (165) - - {165}
Lxchange adjustments El - - 3
Al 26 March 2005 106 35 Its 256
Accumutated amortisation and impairment
At 28 March 2004 - g 18 27
Amortisation expense for the year - 3 23 26
Al 26 March 2005 - 12 41 53
Net book value at 26 March 2005 106 23 74 203

The goodwill balance above relates o the acquisition of the Group s subsigiaries - Bells Stores Ltg Jacksons Stores Lid B Beaumont Lid and SL Shaw Ltd - and 15 allocated to
the respective cash generating umts { CGUS ) within the retan segment The CGUS lor this purpose are deemed {0 be the respective acquired retail chains of stores The vaiue
of the goodwill was tested lor impairment durmg the current hinaneial year by means of comparning the recoverable amount of each CGU to the carrying value of its goodwill

To calculate the CGU s value in use Board approved cash flows for {he following linancial year are assumed 1o indlate at the long term average growth rate for the UK lood retail
sector and are discgunted at ten per cent

Based on the operaling performance of the respective CGUs noimpairment loss was deemed necessary in the current financial year

14 Investments

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £€m Em
Shares in subsidiaries - - T 225 5 764
Investments in joint ventures 10 10 & L]
Other unhisted investments - 10 - -
10 20 71231 5770

The lisis of principal eperating subsidianies and principal joint ventures are given in note 35 and note 36 respectively
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15 Inventories

2006 2005
£m Em
Goods held for resale 576 559
16 Recewvables
{a) Trade and gther receivables
Group Lompany
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em Em £m tm
Non current
Amounts due rom Group entities - - t 751 368
Current
Trade recervables EX] 27 - -
Amounts due from Group entities - - K48 2 B5&
Other receivables 54 130 2 29
a7 157 150 2 B85
Prepayments and accrued income 189 162 - -
276 319 150 24885
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are on commerciat terms Other receivables are generally non interest begring
Cencentrations gf credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables are iimited due to the Group s customer base being large and unrelated
{b) Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks
2006 2005
£m Em
Non cusrent
Loans and advances to custamers 1 487 1342
Impawrment of loans and advances {14) an
1473 1 331
Current
Loans and advances to customers 1 049 1311
Loans to other banks 996 B
Impairment of lgans and advances (157) {84}
1888 1227
Loans and agvances to cusiomers and other banks accrue interest at commercial borrowing rates
17 Available-for-sale financial assets
2006 2005
Em £m
Non current
Unhsted equity investments 1 -
Other financiat asset 112 -
113 -
Current
Treasury bilis a7 B
Flaating rate notes 5 "
52 -

The other financial asset represents the Group s benehcial interest in a property nvestment pool This asset has been recognised on adeption of 1AS 39 (note 43)1n the current
finangial year

Treasury bills are repayabie on 24 April 2006 and earn interest at 4 32 per cent Floating rate notes are repayable on 14 June 2006 and earn inierest at 4 68 per cent
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18 Current asset investments

2006 2005
fm Em

Samnsbury s Bank working capital investments
Treasury bills and other tills - 75
Debt securities - 15
- 50

Current asselb investments above have been classilied as avallabie for sale financia! assets (nate 17) in the current Hinancial year on adophion of 1AS 32 (note 43)

19 Non-current assets held for sale
Assets held for sale of £25 mullion (2005 £87 millian} consist of properties held in the retad eperations division Safe of these assets s expected to occur in the next financial

year beginning 26 March 2006

20 Payables
{a) Trade and other payatles
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em fm Em Em
Current
Trade payables 141% 1393 - -
Amounts due to Group entities - - 5074 2403
Other payabtes 418 395 45 12
Accruals and deferred income 257 305 - 68
2094 2033 5119 2483
Non current
Amounts due to Group entities - - 782 1501
Other payables - a - -
Accruals ang deferred income e 27 - -
30 31 782 1501

The Group s pohcy on payment of creditors)s to agree terms of payment priar to commencing trade with a suppher and to abide by thase terms on the timely submission
of satisfactory invoices

Deterred income relates to the accounting for leases with fixed rental increases and lease incentives on a straight ine basis over the term of the lease

{b) Amounts due to Sarnsbury s Bank customers and other banks

2006 2005
£r £m
Current

Deposits by banks - 32
Customer accounts 2 299 2432
2299 2 464

Non current
1,009 22

Depostts by banks

Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers angd other banks are generally repayable on demand and accrues interest at commercial barrowing rates
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21 Borrowings

Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em £m Em Em
Short term barrowings
Bank gverdratis 186 6 166 109
Bank {oans 50 174 50 -
Short term notes - 174 - 174
8% Irredeemable unsecured loan stock 5 - S -
B shares hability 12 - 12 -
253 354 233 283
Long-term bosrrowings
Secured loans
12 year loan due 2018 1186 - - -
25 year ipan due 2031} 895 - - -
Unsecured toans
Lean from minonty shareholder 45 36 - -
Medium term notas
£314 5m S 25% Notes due 2007 - 314 - 314
€800m 5 625% Notes due 2008 - 487 - 487
£300m 6 5% Noltes due 2012 - 300 - 300
£250m & 125% Nates dug 2017 - 250 - 250
£350m 6% Motes due 2032 - 350 - 350
8% iriedeemable unsetured toan sioch - 3 - 3
Obhgatiens under finance leases 52 53 - -
2178 1793 - 1704
Total borrowings 2431 2147 233 1987

Bank overdrafts and bank toans
Bank overdratls are repayable en demand and bank 1oans mature within the next 12 months after balance sheet date Both bank overdrafts and bank loans carry floating rates
of inlerest

Irredeemable unsecurad loan s{ock
The eight per cent rredeemable unsecured loan stock was 1ssued 10 1974 1n an 1ssue amount of £3 millkon and has a carrying value of ES milion As part of the debt restructuring
completed in March 2006 the Company has determined Lo tender lar these notes during the next inancial year beginning 26 March 2006

B shares hability
Preference B shares were issued on (2 July 2004 as part of the return of share capital in the pror financiat year (note 24) B shareholders have no voting rights exceptin a
rasolution for the winding up of the Company in the event ot which they would ba entitled to 35 pence per B share and the relevant proportion of the dividends cutstanding

A preference dividend ¢alculated at the rate of 75 per cent o the six month LIBOR 1s patd in respect of outstanding B shares until thewr regemption which s fixed at 35 pence
per B share The redemplion dates are 18 January and 18 July each year unhil 18 Juty 2007 The curreat prefereace dividend rate 15 3 43 per cent (2005 3 67 per cent)

On adoplion of 1AS 32 (nolte 43) in the current financial year prelerence B shares have been classified as a inancial hability Accordingly preference dividend paid in respect of
B shares has been classiied as borrowing casts (note S) in the income statement and shown as part of operating activibies i the cash flow statement for the current financal year

Total preference dividend paid in respect of B shares amounied te E1 mithon (2005 £113 mitlion}

A reconciiation ol B shares hability for the 52 weeks {o 25 March 2006 s shown below

8 shares B shares

mulhsn £m

At 27 March 2005 - -
145 32 adjustment 382 133
Restated at 27 March 2005 382 133
B shares converted to deferred shares and subsequently cancelled (320) (112)
B shares redempton (28) {9)
At 25 March 2006 34 12
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21 Borrowings continued

Secured loans
QOn 24 March 2006 the Group raised £2 071 rmilien of new lang term financing secured on 127 of 115 supermarket preperhies (note 12) Simultaneously the Company

repurchased its unsecured medwm term netes of £1701 milon
The long term hinancing comprses loans from two hinance compames as follows
a tixed rate loan with a principal value of £1 203 milbon at @ weighted average rate of 4 97 per cent siepping up to 5 36 per cent from April 2013 (effective interest rate
of 5 20 per cent and carrying amount of £1386 milhan) repayable over 12 years and
aloan with a principal value of EB68 milhion at a fixed rale of 2 36 per cent where principal and interest are uplifted annually by RPI with a cap at hive per cent and floor
at ml per cent (effective interesi rate of 4 70 per cent and carrying amount of £895 mithon) repayable over 25 years
The Group entered into three interest rate swaps to convert E782 rmilion of the £1 203 mithon loan (rom lixed 1o {loating rates of intesest This transaction has been accounted
{or as a fawr value hedge (note 31a)
Lean from runonity shareholder
The loan from minority shareholder comprises £18 million (2005 £9 million} of Naating rate subardinated undated loan capital and £27 million {2005 E£27 milhon) of {leating
rate subordinated dated loan capital (note 37¢)

|

|

Obhgations under finance leases |
,

Present value of mimmum 1

Minwnum lease payments lease payments
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em Em £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within 1 year 3 3 - -
Wittun 2 to 5 years inClusive 13 13 1 1
Alter 5 years 211 215 51 52
227 231 52 53
Less future hnance charges 175 (178)
Presenl value of lease obhigalions 52 53
Disclosed as
Current - -
Nan current 52 53
I
52 53 !

Finance leases have ellective interest rates of 4 30 per cent to 900 per cent The average remaining lease termis 99 years

Boarrowing faciibies
As part of the gebt restructuring completed in March 2006 the Group amended its existing £600 milhon five year syndicated bank facility due 2010 into a floaling rate
£400 milion 364 day revolving credit facility with a 12 month term out oplion As at 25 March 2006 there were Enil drawings under this facility (2005 £nil drawings under

2005 bank tacility)
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Notes to the financial statements continued

22 Deferred taxation

The movements in deferred income tax assets and habthities duning the hinancal year pnor to the offsetting of the balances within the same tax junsdiction are shown below

Accelerated 134 Far vaiue
depreCiaton QAN Qihes Total
Group £m Em £m Em
Delerred income tax habilities
At 27 March 2005 {152) (6) 27) (185)
1A5 39 adjustment - (7] - (7)
Restated at 27 March 2005 (152} (13 (27 (192)
Charged to income statement {6) - 3 9
Charged to equty - 7} - 1
At 25 March 2006 {158} 20} (30) {208)
Retrement
berelit  Share based
Provisions obligations payment Tax losses Total
Em £m £m £m Em
Deferred income tax assets
At 27 March 2005 22 161 H - 184
Charged to wmcome statement - &3} ? 1 1%}
Charged to equity - 75 5 - 80
At 25 March 2006 22 227 13 1 263

Net deferred income tax asset/(hability)

At 25 March 2006 53
AL 26 March 2005 b
Fair value
105585
Company £m
Deferred income tax assets
AL 27 March 2005 -
IAS 39 adjustment 7
Restated at 27 March 2005 7
Charged to mnceme statement or equity -
At 25 March 2006 7

Deferred income tax assels have been recognised in respect of all ncome 1ax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred income tax assets because s
protable that these assets will be recovered Deferred income tax assels and habitities are ondy offset where there1s a legalty enforceable right of offset and there ss an

intention Lo setile the balances on a net basis

23 Provisions

Group Company
Restruciunng
Onerous  and dispasal  Long Service Onerous Disposal
leases ProvIsIons awards Tetal leases provision Totad
£m Em £m £rn Em £m Em
At 27 March 2005 85 65 T 157 13 33 a6
Charge to income statement
Additional provisions 5 99 - 104 - - -
Unused amounts released 8) - - (8] - - -
Utiisation of provision 27 (41) - (68) (6) 1] 13
Amortisatian of discount 1 - - 1 - - -
At 25 March 2006 56 123 7 166 7 26 a3
Group Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em Em Em
Disclosed as
Current 91 70 2 13
Non current 95 87 31 33
185 157 33 a6

The pnerous lease provisien covers residual lease commitments of up to 2B years after allowance far existing or anticipated sublet rentaf income

The restructuring provisions of E9T million include employee and pension relaled costs of E37 mithion as part of the Business Review {note 7} and IT insourcing costs of
£60 milhan (note 8) The disposal provisions of £26 mithon relate to indemaities ansing from the disposal of subsidiaries the tming of utahisation of whichis uncertain

Long sefvice awards are accrued over the penod the service v prowded by the employes
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24 Called up share capital and share premium account

2006 2005 2006 2005
milion milian Em Em
Group and Company
Authorised share capital
Qrdinary shares of 284 pence each {2005 28%: pence) 2450 2 450 700 700
Preference B shares of 35 pence each (2005 35 pence) 2 100 2100 735 735
Called up share capital
Allotted and fully paid
QOrdinary shares 1711 1702 489 487
Preference B shares - 382 - 133
489 620
Share premium account
Share premium 782 761
In the current financtal year B shares have been classified as short term borrowings (nete 21) on adoption of 1AS 32 (note 43)
The mavements in the called up share capital are set out below
Ordinary Ordinary Shara
shares B shares shares B shares premuum
miilion mithion Em £m £m
At 27 March 2005 1702 382 487 133 761
IAS 32 adjustment - {382) - {133 1
Restated at 27 March 2005 1702 - 487 - 762
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 2 - 2 - 20
At 25 March 2006 1711 - 489 - 782
At 28 March 2004 1943 - 486 - 1438
Issue of B shares - 1943 - &80 (680)
B shares redermption - (1561} - (547 -
B share 1ssue costs - - - - (1)
Censchdatien of ardinary shares 243) - - - -
Allotted i respect of share option schemes 2 - L - 4
At 26 March 2005 1702 382 487 133 761

in the prior hinancial year shareholders approved a E680 milhicn return of share capital by way of a B share scheme at the Company s Extraordinary General Meeting on
12 July 2004 Shareholders were given Lthe aption of recesving an inhial dividend payment of 35 pence Tor each B share held or redeeming the B shares immediately or in the
future at 35 pence per share

Total capital returned to shareholders by 26 March 2005 ameunted to E65% milion of which E112 miilien was by way of initral dividend payment and £547 millien was through
share regemption The B shares which receved the initial dvidend were subsequently converted to deferred shares The deferred shares were redeemed at the close of
business on 13 May 2005 for a total consideration of one pence and were cancelled

(n additwn to the insbal dividend of £312 mulhign @ further £l millien of preference dividend was paid in respect of outstanding B shares These dividends were shown as part
of hnancing activities in the cash flow statement for the prior financial year

Redemptians are shown as part of hinancing activibies in the cash flow statement and transfers have been made from the profit and loss account to the capital redemption reserve

In addition 1o the return of capital there was also a share consolidetion in the pricr financial year whereby for every eight existing ordinary shares o 25 pence each heid at the
close of business on 16 July 2004 shareholders received seven new ardinary shares of 28%/, pence each As a resuil of this the number of ordinary shares in ssue reduced
by 243 million
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Notes to the financial statements continued

25 Capital redemption and other reserves

Group and
Company Group
Capital Currency Actuanal Available Cash flow Tatar
redemplion transtalien gans/ for sale hecge other
reserve {eserve (losses) assels reserve reservas
£m Em Em £m m E£m
Al 27 March 2005 547 3) 20 - - 87
1AS 39 adjusiment - - - 71 - T
Restated at 27 March 2005 547 3 S0 71 - 158
B shares redemption 121 - - - - -
Currency translation diiferences - 2 - - - 2
Actuarial losses on delined benefit pension schemes - - (180 - - (180)
Available for sale linancial assets
farr value movements - - - 1% - 19
Cash How hedges
elfective portion of farr value movements - - - - 1 1
transferred to income statement - - - - 1) (1)
At 25 March 2006 £68 (n (90) 90 - {1
At 28 March 2004 - - - - - -
B shares redemption 547 - - - - -
Currency translaton differences - 3 - - - {3)
Actuarial gans on delined benefit pension schemes - - 20 - - 9¢
At 26 March 2005 547 (3} 90 - - 87
26 Retawned earnings
Group Company
Own Prolt and  Tolal retained Retained
shares loss account earnings earmngs
Em £m Em m
At 27 March 2005 (85) 2 097 2012 1696
145 32 and I1AS 39 adjustments - (17 (17) {17}
Restated at 27 March 2005 (85) 2080 1995 1679
Profit for the year - &4 64 153
Duvidends paid - (131) (131 (131
Share based payment - 28 28 -
B shares redemption - [\=H {9 (4=}
Shares vested 1 - 1 -
At 25 March 2006 84) 2032 1,948 1692
At 28 March 2004 (86) 2821 2735 2262
Profit far the year - 184 184 350
8 share preference dividends - (113) (1133 (113}
Dividends paid - (254) (254) (254)
Share based payment - 8 8 -
B shares redemption - (547) (547) (547)
B shares redemption expenses - (2) (2) {2)
Shares vested 1 - 1 -
Al 26 March 2005 {85} 2097 2012 1 696

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan{ ESOP ) trusts
The Group owned 24 224 676 (2005 24 741 086) of its ordinary shares of 28%, pence nominal value each At 25 March 2006 the total naminal value of the own shares was
£E6 9 milhon (2005 E£71 mullion)

404 228 ({2005 404 228) of the own shares are held by an ESOP trust on behall of certain Durectors and senior employees under the Group s Perfarmance Share Plan
The remaiming 23 820 448 shares (2005 24 336 B58) are held by an ESOP trust for the Execubive Share Option Plan The ESOP trusts waive the nghts to the dwvidends
recewvable inrespect of the shareholder under the above schemes

The cost of the own shares 1s degucted from equity in the Group financial statements The market value of the own shares at 25 March 2006 was £80 1million
{2005 £72 5 mithon}
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Notes to the financial statements continved

27 Reconcihation of movements i equity

Capitai
Catled up Share redemplion Equity
wnare premaum and cther Retained  shareholders Minority Totad
capital accgunt reserves LACUNGS ngs nterests equily
Group £ fm fm £m m £m fm
AL 27 March 2005 520 761 634 2012 4027 85 4112
IA5 32 and 1A5 39 adjustments (133} 1 71 amn {78) - (78]
Restated at 27 March 2005 487 762 705 1995 3949 85 4034
Proin tor the year - - - &4 64 (6} 58
Cividends paid - - - {131 (131 - (131)
Share based payment - - - 28 28 - 28
Currency translatian difterences - - 2 - 2 - 2
Actuanal losses on defhined benelit pension schemes - - {180} - 180 - (180)
Avalable lor sale financial assels
fan value mevements - - 19 - 19 - 19
Cash tlow hedges
eHective portion of fair value movements - - 1 - i - 1
transterred to ncome statement - - (1) - h - (1}
B shares redemption - - 121 ] 112 - 112
Shares vesied - - - 1 1 - 1
Allotted in resgect of share ophion schemes 2 20 - - 22 - 22
At 25 March 2006 489 782 667 1948 3 886 79 3 965
AL 28 March 2004 486 1438 - 2735 4 659 81 4740
Profit for the year - - - 184 184 188
B share preference dividends - - - (113} (113 - 113
Dividends paid - - - (254} 254) - 254)
Share based payment - - - 8 8 - a
Currency transiation ditferences - - (3) - 3) - {3}
Actuanal gains on defined benelit pension schemes - - S0 - ¢ - 90
ssue ol B shares! 680 (681) - - tn - [$8]
8 shares redemption? (547} - 547 (549) (549 - (549)
Shares vesled - - - 1 i - 1
Allotted in respect of share option schemes 1 4 - - S - 5
Al 26 March 2005 620 761 634 2012 4027 85 4112
I Share premium accounl includes B shares 15sve Costs of £1 mibon
2 Retaneg earmngs include B shares revemption expenses o £2 million
Calied up Share Caputa)
share premum regamphion Retained Totat
capital account resefveé £arnings equity
Campany fm Em im £m £Em
Al 27 March 2005 620 761 547 1 696 2624
1AS 32 and 1AS 39 adjustments (133) 1 - 1% (149)
Restated at 27 March 2005 487 762 547 1 679 3475
Profit {or the year - - - 153 183
Dividends paid - - - 130 {131)
B shares redemption - - 12t (9} 112
Altotted in respect of share oplion schemes 2 20 - - 22
At 25 March 2006 48% 782 668 1692 3631
At 28 March 2004 486 1438 - 2262 4 186
Profit for the year - - - 350 350
B share preference dividends - - - (113} (113}
Dividends pad - - - (254} (254}
Issue of B shares® 680 {681} - - (1)
B shares redemption? (547} - 547 (549) (549)
Allotted in respect of share aption schemes 1 4 - - S
Al 26 March 2005 620 761 547 1696 3624

1 Share premmum acgount inctudes B shares 1ssue cosis of £1 milion
2 Relained earmings include share redemption expenses of £2 mdlion
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28 Notes to the cash flow statements
(a} Reconciiation of aperating profit/iloss} ta cash generated fram operations

Group Campany
2006 2005 2006 2005
im £m Em Em
Operating profit/(ioss) 229 (3151) 48 11
Adjusiments for
Depreciation expense 449 122 3 2
Amortisation expense 21 26 - -
Profit on sale aof properties (1 @1 {50 (15)
Fereign exchange differences - - {30) 17
Share based payments expense 23 8 - -
Cperating cash flows before changes in werking capital 721 S84 (29) 15
Changes in working capital
(Increasel/decrease m inventories (17} 38 - -
Dec¢rease in current avallable for sale financial assats 3B 119 - -
Decrease/(increase} in trade and other receivables 7 17 1337 (249)
Increase in amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks (805) 423 - -
Increase in trade ang other payables 83 275 1808 1823
{ncrease in amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 819 286 - -
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and ather habiities! (66) 50 - -
Cash generated from operations 780 946 3116 1589
1 Includes £110 millien of cash paid into the detined benell pension schemes (note 32)
{b} Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statements cash and cash equivalenis comprise the iollowing
Group Company
006 2005 2006 2005
£m fm Em Em
Cash and cash equivalents 1028 706 411 317
Bank overdrafts (note 21) (186} (=] (166} (109}
842 700 245 208
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29 Analysis of net debt

1AS 32 Restaled Other
27 March and 185 19 27 Marcch non cash 25 March
2005 adustments 2005 Cash flow  mavements 2006
Em £m £m £m fm Em
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding Sainsbury s Bank) 585 103 688 174 - 862
Sainsbury s Bank ¢ash and cash equivalents 121 - 121 a5 - 166
Derivative Iinancial msiruments - 1 7 4} 13y -
706 110 816 215 (3) 1028
Non current assets
Dervative financial instruments - 151 151 (169} 18 -
Current habihties
Bank overdralls {6) (103 (109) {77 - (186)
Borrowings (348} (143) {491} 321 103 67)
Derivative financial instruments - {36) {36} (2) 28 (10
{354) (282) (636) 242 131 {263)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (1 704) {181 {1 885) {16) (£50) {2 081}
Finance leases 59 - (53} 1 - {52)
Loan from minornty shareholder (36} - (36) 19) - (45)
Denvative financal instruments - n (1) - 1 2)
(1 793} (182) {1 979) (54) sn 2 180Q)
(2 147) (464) (26l 188 (20} 2 443}
Tetal net debt (1 441) (203} {1 644) 234 (5} {1 415)
Of which
Net debt {excluding Sainsbury s Bank) {1 526) {203 (1729 198 (5) (1 536)
Samnsbury s Bank 85 - a5 16 - 121
{1 441) (203) (1 644) 234 (S} {1 415)

Net debt incorporates the Group s berrowings (including accrued interest) bank overdralls far value of dervatives and obhigatrons under finance leases less cash and
cash eguivalents Sainsbury s Bank derivatives and borrowings which relate to Lhe working capital of the bank are excluded from the Group nel debt

Reconcthation of net cash flow to movement 10 net debt

2006 2005

£m £m
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 142 i35
Decrease in debt 91 190
Loans and finance leases disposed of with subsicharies - 230
Movement in finance leases 1 116
Foreign exchange adjustments and other non cash movements (5) (24
Decrease in net debt before wnpact of 1AS 32 and I1AS 39 229 647
1AS 32 and 1A% 39 adjustments to net debt (203) -
Decrease in net debt in the year 26 647
Opening net debt at the beginning of the year {1 441) {2 088
Closing net debt at the end of the year {1 415} {1441}
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30 Financial risk management

Treasury management

Treasury policies are reviewed and approved by the Board The Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer have joint delegated authority from the Board to approve
finance transactions up to £300 million

The central treasury funchion 1s respoas:ble for managing the Group s hguid
resources junding requirements and interest rate and currency exposures Group
pohcy permils the use of derivative insiruments but anly for reducing exposures
arising from underlying business activity and not for speculative purposes

Sawmnsbury s Bank

Treasury operations in respect of Sainsbury s Bank ( the Bank } are managed
separately irem the central treasury function Respensitnlity for the control of risk
within the Bank rs vested in the Risk Management Committee which reports direclly
o the Board ol Directors of Sainsbury s Bank

Financial instruments

The Group holds or 1ssues linancial instruments to finance (Ls operat:ons and to
manage the interest rale and currency risks associated with 1ts sources of finance
Vanous other inancial instruments € g trade receivables and payables also anse
out of the Group s commercial eperations

The Group finanges its operatrons by a combination of secured toans from hinance
companies unsecured bank loans commercial paper share capitat and cash
generated by operating subsidianes The Group borrews in sterling at fixed Tloating
and inflation hnked rates olinterest using swaps and options where apprapriate to
qenerale the cesired interesi rate profile The man risks ansing from the Group s use
of financial instruments include interest and foreign exchange rate nsk hquidity nsk
and credrt risk

Sainspury s Bank

Through its normal operations the Bank 15 exposed Lo a number af 11sks the most
signthicant of which are interest rate nsk hguidity risk and credit risk The Bank uses
fixed rate borrowings lor interest rate risk rnanagement purposas The Bank does not
held a dervative portichio at 25 March 2006

Interest rate fnish

The Group s exposure Lo interest rate fluctuations i1s managed through the use of
nterest rate swaps and options The Group s objectives are to match the interest rate
prohies of its barrowings to that of its revenues to minimisa interest expense and
reduce rate volatiily by holding an appropriate mix of borrowings al fixed floating
andginflatign linked rates of interest Group policy provides that the relative
propertion of hixed floating and inflation inked borrowings may be varied within
debned bands around neutral benchmarks

Sainsbury s Bank

The Bank uses sensitivity analysis to assess the effect on earnings of interest rate
fluctuations and te determine the extent of measures required to mitigate the rsk
arising from mismatches @ the Bank s operations Where possible the Bank takes
advantage of natural hedging oppeoriunities between {ixed rate assets and hapihties
with stmitas repricing dates Nel repricing gaps are managed withun the limits set
by the Risk Management Committee using fixed rate funding

Currency rnsk

The Group ncurs currency exposure in respect of overseas trade purchases made

In currencres gther than stering The Group uses a proegramme of roling forward
contracts te reduce the exchange rate rnisk assocated with these purchases which
may be either contracted or not contracted Gains and losses on these contracts are
deterred in eguity when the transaction quahhes for hedge accounting »n accordance
with 1AS 39 Frnancialinstruments Recognition and Measurement

Sainsbury s Bank
The Bank 1s nol exposed to currency risk at 25 March 2006 as it does npt have any
assels or habihhies denaminated «n currencies other than sterling

Liguidity nisk

The Group s exposure Lo hguithty nsk s managed by pre funding cash {low
requirements and matufing debl obligations maintaiming 3 drversity of funding
sources and spreading debt repayments over a range of maturnties

The Group s core funding takes the form of term loans secured over property assets |
Shor{ term funds are raised on the wholesale money markets and through the issue

of commergial paper under the Company s €1 bilien Eurg Commercial Paper |
programme Contingent liquidity 1s marntained through a new 364 day revalving i
credil faciily with a 12 month term put oplion entered intoin March 2006 As at

25 March 2006 there were Enil drawings under thes facility (2005 £t drawings

under 2005 bank facility)

Sainstury s Bank

To manage hquidity risk the Bank maintains a stock of high quality hgquid assets that
can be readily sold to meet the Bank s obhgations Lo depositors and other creditors
The porifoho of assets 1s managed on a daily basis and within the framework set by
the supervising authority the Financial Services Authority

Credit nisk

The Group s exposure 1o credit risk s managed by imsting credit pesitions Lo banks
or financal institutions carrying A1/P1 credit ratings Countergarly exposures are
monitored on a regular basis and dealing activity 1s controfled through the use of
dealing mandates and the operation of standard settlernent instructions

Sainsbury s Bank

Credit hrmits have been established for all counterparties based on their respective
credit ratings The imits and proposed counterparties are reviewed and approved by
the Risk Management Commuttee and Board ol Directors of Sainsbury s Bank |
annually or as required

Fair vatue estimation .
The fair vafues of short term deposits receivables overdrafts payables and loans af
a matunity of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their book values

The tair value of interest rate swaps s based on {the market pnice of comparable
instruments at the batance sheel dale if they are publicly traded The tair value of the
forward currency contracts has been deterrmined based an market forward exchange
rates at the batance sheet date

In the case of bank loans and ather leans due alter mare than one year the far value
of Tinanceal habribes for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contraclual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Group {or
similar hinancial instruments

The {arr values of amounts due from and due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and
other banks are estimated based on cash flows discounted using current market rates
ol interest and currenl money market interest rates for debts with similar maturity
and credit risk characterstics

The fair value of the olher financial asset 15 based on the market values of the
underiying preperty portioiio
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31 Financial instruments
{2} Disclosures for 2006 - sn accordance with IFRS

Gtoup Caompany
Em £m
Cerwative habilities
Current
Interest rate swaps - non designated hedges (10} (10}
Non-current
interest rate swaps lair value hedge (2) 2}

Interest rate swaps - non designated hedges

The Group maintains two rterest rate swaps thal converl float:ng rate borrowings inte lixed rates of interest Under the terms of the first swap the Group pays a fixed rate ol

4 09 per cent and receives three month LIBOR on £190 mifhon to November 2030 The caunterparty may exercise an option to cancel this swap on guarterly dates through ta
Auqust 2030 Under the terms ol lhe second swap the Group pays a hixed rate of 6 40 per ¢ent and receives a fixed spread above six month LIBGR an 100 mithon to July 2008
The counterparty may exercise an optron to cancel this swap in July 2006 and July 2007

Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge
The Group has entered into three interest rate swaps to convert a total of £782 miltion of the fixed rate secured loan due in 2018 to floating rates of interest (note 21} Under the
terms of the swaps the Group receives fixed interesi at rates varying from 4 86 per cent o 5 22 per cent and pays [foating rate interest at fixed spreads above three month LIBOR

Foreign exchange torward contracls - cash llow hedges

At 25 March 2006 the Group held a portfolio of 1ereign exchange forward contracts with a fair value of EO 2 millton to hedge sts exposure io loreign exchange rate risk on its
tuture highly probable trade purchases The Group has purchased €136 million and sold sterling at rates ranging from O 69 to 070 with maturities from April to November
2006 and purchased US5$48 milhon and sold sterling at rates ranging [rom 172 to 1 79 with maturities from April o November 2006

At 25 March 2006 an unrealised gan of £0 2 million 15 included 10 2quity in respect of these contracis These gains will be transterred to the income statement over the next

eight menths from balance sheel date

Interest rate risk
The {ollowing table seis out the carrying amount oy maturdy of the finanoal instruments thai are exposed 1o interest rate risk

Less than One to two Twa to hve More than 2006
one year yeass years five years Total
£m Em €m Em Em

Group
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 1028 - - - 1028
Amounls due from Sansbury s Bank custormers and other banks 754 - - 198 952
Bank overdralls (186} - - - {186)
Bank Ipan {50} - - - (5Q)
B shares habdity 12y - - - (12)
Secured loan due 2031 {7 in (29) (852) {895)
Interest rate swaps on secured lpan due 2018 - - - {782) (782)
Other interest rate swaps' - - 10G i50 250
Loan {rom rmunonty sharehalder - - (18 {27} {45)
Amounts due (@ Sainsbury s Bank customers and gther banks {2 299) - - - (2 299)
Fixed rate
Avallable for sale hinancial assets 52 - - - 52
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 1 408 339 590 72 2 409
Irredeemable unsecured toan stock (5} - - - 3}
Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank custemers and other banks {404) (483) (122} - (1 003}
Secured loan due 2018 (17} {27} (89} {1053) {} 186}
Interest rate swap on secured loan due 2018 - - - 782 782
Other interest rate swaps’ - - (100) (150 25Q)
Finance lease obligations - - i i51) (52)
Company
Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 411 - - - 4al1
Amaunts due from Greup entities a7 - 22 33 102
Bank overdraflts (166) - - - (166)
Bank loan (50) - - - (30}
B shares habihly (12) - - - 2y
Amounts due te Group enblities (alter interes! rate swaps) (5 024) - - (782) {5 806}
Other interesl rate swaps'’ - - 100 150 250
Fixed rate
Armounts due trom Group entities - 314 - 1 382 1 696
Irredeemable unsecured loan stock (5) - - - (5)
Other interest rale swaps'’ - - (100} {150) (250)

1 Other interest rate swaps caneflabie at the ophon of the countarparty
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31 Finangial instruments continued
Intergst en linancial instruments classified as floating rate s reprniced at intervats of less than ane year Interest an hnancial snstruments classified as hixed rate i [ixed until
maturily of the instrument

The other hmandial instruments of the Group and Company that are not included n the above tables are non nterest bearng and are therelore nol subject o nterest rate rish
Foreign currency risk

After taking into account Farward contracts the Group had net euro denominated monetary assets of Emil US dellar denominated monetary assets of Emnl and Austrahan dollar
manelary asseds of Enil The Group has net euro denerminated trade craditors of £5 milhen and US dollar denorminated trade creditors ol £4 mitlion

Far value
Sel cut below s & comparison by category of carrying amsunts and far values of all financial instruments that are carried inthe financial statements at other than tair values

The fair values of shori term deposits receivables overdrafts payables and loans of 3 maturity of 18s5s than ane year are assumed Lo appraximate to ther book values and are
excluded frem the analysrs below

Group Company
Carryng Carrying
amaunt Far value amount Faw value
Em Em fm fm

Financial assets
Amaunts due from Samsbury s Bank customers 1473 1473 - -
Amounts due from Graup entities - - 1751 1,751
Financial habtlitres
Amounts due to Samnsbury $ Bank customers and gther banks {1 009 (1 00%) - -
Amounts due 10 Group entities - - {782} (782)
Secured loans (2 081) (2 081) - -
Loan trom minonty sharehoider {45} (45} - -
Obhgations under finance leases (52} {52} - -

{b) Disclosures tor 2005 - in accordance with UK GAAP
Debtors receivable creditors payable Sainshury s Bank ioans and advancas to customers anc Sansbury s 8ank cuslomer accounts dug n (ess Lhan one year are excluded Irom

the analys:s

Fair values of financial assets and financial habihties

2005
Bouok vahe Faur value
Em £m
Primary financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance Group operations
Borrowings due within one year {354) (354)
Borrowsngs due after one year (1 704) ¢1 778)
Other creditors 89 (89
Deposits maturing m one year 592 S92
Primary financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance Samnsbury s Bank
Loan frem runority sharehalder {36} (36)
Deposits by banks due within one year (32} 32)
Deposits by banks due after ane year 22) 22)
Deposits maturing in ane year 211 211
Loans and advances to cusiomers due afler ane year 1 342 1 342
Dernvative financial instruments held to manage the interest and currency profile
Interest rate and currency swaps - 127
Forward foreign exchange contracts - (n

The lair value of financeal assets and financiai habiities are calculated by relerence ta markel prices wherever these are avalable and olherwise by discouniing futuse cash
llows at prevailing interest and exchange rates
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31 Financial iInstruments continued
Interest rate profite
After taung into account varngus intecest rate and currency swaps the interest rale grofites af the Group s {inancial asset s and {inancal hablihies were

floabng rate Fined rate
hinancial financial
Tolal 335els assels
Em £m Em

Financial assets
Sterting - Retai 580 573 7
Sterling  Sainsbury s Bank 1 553 211 1342
US dotlar g 8 -
Other 4 4 -
Al 26 March 2005 2145 756 1349

Floating rate financial assets cornprise bank balances hnked to bank base rates and money market fund balances and money market deposits bearing interest rates hnked (o

LIBOR The fixed rate financial assets have a weighted average interest rate of 775 per cent lixed for an average period of 07 years

Fuxed rate debl

Finantial
latuhties on Weighted Average ime
Floating rate Fued rate which no average tar which
financwal [nangial interesl iy interest rate s
Tatal hathties habtilities paid rate lixed
£m fm tm £m Y% years
Financial habiities
Sterhing - Retail 2147 177% 368 4 544 25
Sterling  Sainsbury s Bank 90 36 54 - 4 96 12
At 26 March 2005 2237 1811 422 q 538 24

Floating rate financial habilkies comprise bank overdrafts hinked Lo bank base rates and money market loans commercial paper bank borrowings and interest rate swaps

bearing interest rates hnked to LIBOR The financial katibities on which nginterest 1s paid do not have predetermined dates of payment and therefore a weighted average period

of matunty cannot be calculated

Onerous leases are considered to be a floating rate Hinancial labiity as 0 establishing the provision the cash {lows have been thscounled The ciscount rale 15 reappraised at

each half yearly reporting date Lo ensure that it reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific Lo the habihty

The above analysis excludes a cancellable swap in a notional principal amount of E150 milhan under which the Company pays a fixed rate of 409 per cent and recewves floating

rate LIBOR The counterparty may exergise an aplion to cancel the swap on guarterly dates through to August 2030

Currency exposures

Alter taking into account ferward contracts the Group had net euro denominaled monetary assets of £36 milhon US dollar denominated monetary assets of £33 million
ang Australian dollar monetary assets of £1mullion The Group has net euro denominated trade crediters of £8 mithen ang Austrahan dollar dencminaled trade creditors

of EYmilhon

Sainsbury s Bank is not exposed 1o currency risk at 26 March 2005 and dees nel have any assels or habihties denominated in Currencies other than sterhng so no currency

risk arises

Garns and losses on hedges
The Group s unrecognised and dejerred gains and losses in respect of hedges were

Unrecogmsed Recognised
Totat Total
Gamn Loss ganf{los) Gan Loss qgamniiloss)
Em Em tm Em £&m Em

Gans and lasses on hedges al 28 March 2004 168 52) L16 - (1m [$14)]
AriSIng In previous years included in income 3 16 13 - 10 10
Gains and losses not included in mcome
ATISING IN Previocus years 165 [k1:}) 129 - - -
Arising n current year 2 (S (3) - - -
Gains and {osses on hedges at 26 March 2005 167 (a1 126 - - -
Of which
Gamns and losses expecled te be included 1n income within 2 months from balance sheet date 8 {2) [ - - -
Gains and losses expected to be included in income after 12 montns {from balance sheel date 159 (39) 120 - - -
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32 Retirement benefit obligations

Retirement benelit obligations relate to two funded detined benefit schemes the J Sainsbury Pension and Death Benetit Seheme { JSPDBS ) and the J Sainsbury Exetutive
Pension Scherme ( JSEPS ) and an unfunded pension habihity relating to senior employees The delined benelit schemes were closed {10 new employees on 31 January 2002

The assets of these schemes are held separately irom the Group s assets

The defined benefit schemes were subject to a triennial valuation carned out by Watson Wyatt the schemes independent actuanes at March 2003 on the projected unit basis

The resulis of this valuation have been used to determine the current employer and employee contribufion rates respectively

The unfunded pension hiablity 15 unwaund when each employee reaches retirement and takes their pensian from the Group payrall or is crystallised in the event of an employee

leaving or reliring and choasing Lo [ake the provision as a one oif cash payment

1n the current tinancial year the Group uliiseo funds cbtamned from the new long term financing (nate 21) ta make an additional ene off contnbutien of £350 milhon inta the
pension schemes which together with additional annual centributions are designed to fund the reported dehcit of the pension schemes as at 8 October 2005 The one off
contribution of £350 milion 1s divided into two tranches  £110 milion paid in cash on 24 March 2006 anc the remaming £240 mullion to be paid in cash en 15 May 2006

The amounts recogmsed in Lhe balance sheet are as {ollows

2006 2005
m Em
Preseni value of funded obligatrons (4 361} {3 503)
Fair value of plan assets 3710 2976
651) 527
Present value ol unlunded obugatons n ]
Retirement beneht ¢hligations {658) (536)
Deferred income tax asset 227 1561
Nei retirement benefil obligatians (431) {379
The retirement benefit otligations and the associated deterred income tax asset are shown within different hne items on the face of the balance sheet
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
o006 2005
Em Em
Currenl service cost - funded schemes (68) {75
Current service cost - unfunded scheme (1} {3
Past service cost 12} ("
Total included in employee costs (note &) {81) 85
Interest cost on pension scheme habihties (190} 1180)
Expected return on plan assets 213 151
Total in¢luded in finance income (note 5} 23 11
Total sncome statement expense 58) {74)

QOf the expense recognised in operating profit £65 mullion (2005 £68 mullion) 15 included in cost of sales and €16 millian (2005 £17 milbon} 1s included m administrative expenses

The actual réturn on pension scheme assets net of expenses was £644 milhan (2005 £325 mudlign)

fhe amounts recognised m the statement of recagnised income and expense are as lollows

2006 2005

Em Em

Net actuarial (losses)/gains recegrised during the year {255) 128
Cumulative actuarial {losses)/gains recogmsed (z7 128
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32 Retirement benefit obhigations continued
The movemenls in the funded retiremnent benefit obligations are as follows

2006 2005
Em Em
Begnning of year (3 503) (3329}
Curreat service cost (68) {75}
Past service cost {12) in
Interest cost (190) (180)
Contributions by plan participants [t (8)
Actuanal losses {683} (&)
Benefils pard 103 102
End of year (4 361} (3503)
The mavements in the fair value of plan assels are as lollows
2006 2005
£m Em
Beginning of year 2876 2 664
Ea2peried relurn on plan assels 213 191
Actuanal gains 428 134
Contributions by employer 188 81
Contributions by plan participants 8 8
Benehts paw (103 (102}
End of year 3710 2976
The principal actuarial assumphions used at the balance sheet date are as follows
2006 2005
% %
Discount rate 49 55
Expected return on plan assels 66 71
Fulure salary increases 2 8% 275
Fuiure pension ItCreases 2 85 27%
The Iife expectancy at the balance sheet date for a pensioner al normal retrement age s as tollows
2006 2005
years years
Male pensioner 209 209
Female pensigner 232 232
The major cateqgorees of plan assets as a percentage of total plan asseis are as follows
2006 2005
% 9%
Equities 62 &6
Bonds 33 29
Properly 4 4
Other 3 3
100 100

The expected return on assets has been derived as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main assel classes The expected return for each asset
class reflects a combmalion of istorical perfarmance analysts the forward tooking view of the financial markets (as suggested by the yield avalable) and the views ol
tnvestment organisations

The tustory of experience adjustments on the pians for the cursent and previous [Inancial years s as {ollows

2006 2005

Em £m

Present vaiye of retirement benelit abligaligns (4 368) 3512
Fair value of ptan assets 3710 2976
Deficit {658) (536}
Expenence 1gss on plan hatwhlies (27) {6}
Experience gam on plan assets 428 134

The expected contributions 10 defined benelit schemes lor the next financial year beqinning 26 March 2006 are £324 oullion sncluding the one of! contnibution of £240 million
to be paid on 19 May 2006
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33 Share-based payments
The Group recogmised £23 melion (2005 E8 million) of employee costs (note &) related to share based payment transactions made during the financial year The Group
operates varwous share based payment schermes as set out below

(a) Savings Related Share Option Scheme { SAYE )

The Group operates a Savings Related Share Option Scheme which is open Lo all UK emptoyees with more than sic months contenuous service This s an approved Inland
Revenue Scheme and was established in 1980 Under the SAYE scheme parbipants remaiming o the Group s employment at the enc of the three year or {ive year $avings
penied are entitled Lo use their savings to purchase shares ol the Company at a stated exercise price Employees leaving for cerlan reasons are able to use their savings to
purchase shares within six months of thewr leaving

Al 25 March 2006 UK employees held 24 033 five year savings contracts (2005 25 625) in respect of oplions over 216 millon shares (2005 201 millign) ang 23 265 three
year savings coniracts (2005 24 985) inrespect of options over 13 8 mithon shares {2005 13 1 mulson)

A reconcihation of optign movements is shown below

2006 2005
Weighted Weghted
average averaqge
Number of exercIse Number of esercise
oplions price options pre
million pence mudhon pence
Qutstanding at beginning of year 332 248 348 276
Granted 132 231 108 217
Forfented 4 43 239 59 259
Exercised (3 €l 264 {14) 253
Exprred (30 288 [ Y] 363
OQutstanding at end of year 54 237 332 248
Exercisable at end of year 7 278 33 285

The weighted average shase price during the period for options exercised over Lhe year was 317 pence (2005 290 pence)

Details of options at 25 March 2006 are sel out below
Options cutstanding

Lxeriise price 2006 2005

Date of grant Date of expiry penge mihon muilion
7 January 2000 (5 year period) 31 August 2005 253 - 11
28 November 2000 (5 year penod} 31 Auqust 2006 299 11 28
20 December 2001 (3 year period) 31 August 2005 302 - 22
20 December 2001 (5 year period) 31 August 2007 02 26 30
3 January 2003 (3 vear period) 31 August 2006 239 de 27
3 January 2003 (5 year peniod) 31 August 2008 239 33 s
17 December 2003 (3 year penod} 31 Aurgust 2007 241 26 3t
17 December 2003 (S year penod) 31 August 2009 241 33 g
15 December 2004 (3 year period) 31 Auqust 2008 217 41 51
15 December 2004 (5 year penad) 31 August 2010 217 48 55
15 December 2005 (3 year pengd} 31 August 2009 231 66 -
15 December 2005 (5 year geriad) 31 August 2011 231 64 -

354 32

Options granted during the year were valued using the Black Schates ephion pricing model No performance conditions were included o the far value calculations The tair
value per eption granted during the yeas and the assumpliens used in the catculation are as follows

2006 2005

Share price at grant date (pence) 306 267
Exercise price (pence) 231 217
Expecied volatihty - 3 year penod (%) 239 306
- 5 year pesiod {%]) 273 336

Qplion hife - 3 year period {years) 32 32
- 5 year period {years} 52 52

Expected dividends (expressed as dividend yield %) 27 29
Risk {ree interest rate - 3 year period (%) 42 46
- 5 year period (%} 42 47

Fair value per option - 3 year perod {pence) 91 79
- 5 year penod (pence) 103 g4

The expected volatility 15 based on the standard deviation of the Group s share price for the persod immediatel; prior Lo the date of grant of award over the period identical
to the vesting period of the award adjusied {or management s view of future volatility ol the share price
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33 Share-based payments continued

(b} Executive Share Option Plan{ ESOFP )

Under the Executive Share Optign Plan participanis were granted options Lo purchase shares in the Company al a staled exercise price The maximuem annual oplion award 15
two imes basic salary and the actuval granis were agreed by the Remuneration Cammittee according to the assessed performance and potential of parbscipants

The exercise of optiens 1s conditienal upon a performance target based on the growth in the Company s underlying earnings per share ( EPS ) relative to nflation over athree
year penod The Commitiee reviews the performance condition prior to the annual award of options to ensure that it is set at appropriately chalfenging levets EPS 1s measured
agamsi a hixed starting point over the pertormance period beginning with the year sn which the option was granied

For the ESOP grants made in the prior financial year the performance conditions provided that no options witl vest {or average annuat real growth of less than three per cent
per annum over the three year performance period 50 per cent of the option will vest iIf average real growth of three per cent per annum s achieved and for average real
growth of five per cent per annum the aplion 1s exercisable in full with a pro rating between three and live per cent To the extent that the condition 1s not satisfied in full after
three years 1t will be retesied on a fixed point basis over four and then five financial years To the extent the cong:tion «s not met after five financial years the aption will lapse

Once the options vest participants remaimng in the Group s empleymenl or {eaving {or certain reasons are entitled to exercise the gphiens between veshing date {normaliy at
the end af the three year performance penod) and the ophon expiry date which 1s ten years from date of grant 11)s intended that there will be no further oglions granted
under this plan

A reconciialion of option movements 15 shown below

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Sverage average
Number of exercise Number ol erercise
options price ophions ance
rmithion pence milhon pence
Cutstanding at beqinming of year 939 313 92 B 323
Granted - - 231 274
Forieited {50 2) 278 (21 &) 316
Exerciseg (4 9) 265 {0 4) 272
Expired ()] 475 - -
Qutstanding at end of year 368 358 @39 3i3
Exercisablle at end of year 260 393 353 381

The weghted average share price during the period lar opligns exeraised over the year was 296 pence (2005 286 pence)

Details of options at 25 March 2006 are set out betow
Options autstanding

Exercise price 2006 2005

Date of grani Date ol expiry pence millan mallion
8 Seplember 1995 7 September 2005 475 - Z21
20 May 1997 19 May 2007 367 22 25
11 November 1997 10 November 2007 489 01 01
10 November 1998 9 Novemnmber 2008 545 29 32
2 August 1999 1 August 2009 378 42 46
24 November 1999 23 November 2009 izo o1 01
1 March 2000 2B February 2010 261 - 30
2 June 2000 1 June 2010 272 S0 70
7 June 2001 & June 2011 427 55 61
26 July 2001 25 July 2011 407 61 &6
25 July 2002 24 July 2012 287 513 18 4
22 May 2003 21 May 2013 257 a0 200
27 March 2004 26 March 2014 262 - 05
20 May 2004 19 May 2014 275 14 194
1 Oclober 2004 30 September 2014 255 - a3
368 939

{c) Colleague Share Option Ptan { CSOP )

The Calleague Share Option Plan operates under the rules of the Inland Revenue Approved Discretionary Share Qplion Scheme Under the CSOP participants are granted
opions o purchase shares of the Company at a stated exercise price The exercise ol oplions 1s condilional upon pariicipants remaiming 1in the employment of the Group for
a three year perigd after date ol grant Colleagues leaving emptoyment {or certain reasons have ssx months from their leaving date {0 exercise ther options

AL 25 March 2006 a total of 54 BI7 UK employees {2005 &2 679) participated in the plan and hold optrons aver 18 & mithion shares {2005 219 million} Options have been
exercised in respect of 32 058 ordinary shares (2005 3 053) during the year Oplions are exercisable between three ang ten years trom the date of the grant of option It

intended that there will be no {urther cptions granted ynder this plan
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33 Share-based payments continued
A reconcil:abion of aplion mevements 1§ shown below

2006 2005
Weighted weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercse
options price oplions price
rmillion pence mellion pence
Qutstanding a1 beginmiag of year 219 366 233 3165
Forfeited (3 3} 365 14 355
QOutstanding at end of year 186 366 219 366
Exercisable at end of year 186 366 219 366

Details of optians at 25 March 2006 are sel oul below

Options outstanding

Exercise pnice 2006 2005

Date of grant Date of expiry pence milion milhen
Z Augusl 1999 1 August 2003 378 16 6 193
Z June 2000 1June 2010 272 2Q 24
186 219

(d} Performance Share Plan{ P5P }

The Performance Share Plan 1s a long term incentsve scheme through which shares are awarded to senior managers on a conditional basis Under the PSP participants
remaining in the Group s employment or leaving dor certain reasons are entitled to receive a grant of options atter a pertgrmance pertod of three years to purchase the shares
awarded to them lor the surn of £1 at any ime during the ten years lollowing the date of grant

The participant s entitiement to receve the grant depends on the Company s Total Shareholger Return ( TSR ) - being the increase in the value of a share including reinvested
dividends compared with a peer group ol 12 companies (namely Ahgld Bogls Carrefour Casino Dixons GUS Kingfisher Leblaw Marks & Spencer Mornisons Nexl and Tesco)
over the three year perlormance period

If the median performance ol the TSR against the comparator groupr is not actueved at the end of the three year performance pernod the enbitlement to receive the grant ol
ophions wiltlapse At median level shares to the value of 30 per cent of salary will he released and the award will be pro rated at every position between the median and first
position in the comparator group The maxmum aflocation far Direclors s a condibional grant of shares equal to 75 per cant of salary No further allocations will be made under
s plan

A reconciliation of the numiier 0f shares conditionally allocated 1s shown helow

HNumber of shares

2006 2005

mihen milion
Outstanding at beginning of year 37 31
Conciticnally allpcated - 20
Forfeited (t 5) (14)
Qutstanding at end of year 22 37

Detads ol shares condiienally aliocated at 25 March 2006 are set out below

Shares conditionally

allocated
2006 2005
Date of conditional allocation million millon
30 May 2002 - 09
22 May 2003 11 13
20 May 2004 11 15
22 37

Condihional awards of shares thal have fuihilled all condilions al the end of the performance period are represented by options granted te participants to purchase the shares
awarded to them for the total sum of £1 Details of the ophioas outstanding at yeas end are set out below

2006 2005
Shares in Shares in
Czerise price respect of respect of
of oplion optons options
Date ai grani Date of expiry pence QOptions granted Qphans granted
29 May 2002} 28 Mav 2012 100 1 1S B57 2 27 705

1 Options qgranteo «n respect of shates condibionally allocated on 26 July 1999
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33 Share-based payments contwnued

{e) J Satnsbury plc Share Plan 2005

4 1ang term incentive plan was introduced in March 2005 as a one off self funded incentive arrangement focused on rewarding those respansible for leading and implementing
the Company s recovery plan The underlying printiple of the plan s ta reward delivery of strong growth n sales and profitability coveeing a lour year period

Under the ptan shares were awarded Lo participants on the conditional basis that the performance targets are achieved within the four year performance periog The levels
of awards are scaled accord:ng to semority and there 1s an apportunity for Executive Directors and ehgible Operating Board members [0 make a persenal invesiment of up to
S0 per cent of salary in the plan

Perlormance 1s measured over a four year period from the hnancial year beginning 27 March 2005 until the financial year ending March 2009 Tne awargs will vest If stretching
sales and earnings pes share { EPS ) targets are achieved as shown in table 1 betow The relevant periormance multipher which s on a shding scale up 10 a3 maximum of five
times will be calculated and apphed to the core award of shares as well as the personalenvestment of shares 1 e shares acquired by Executive Directars and eligible Operating
Board members The total award released willinclude the personal investment shares acquired by the participant

The maximum award will be targeled lowards sales growth of £2 5 bilhon and reguies compound annual grewthin EPS of at least 21 per cent over the four years Sales (inc VAT)
exclude Samsbury s Bank and petrol sates

Further there is an opportumity far partial vesting of up to half the award 1f the accelerated performance targets have been met at the end of year three (1 e financial year
ending March 2008} {see table 2) No awards will vest unless Lhreshold levels of growth in both sales and EPS are achieved

Once performance targets have been achieved oplions will be granted Lo participants remamning in the Group s employment or leawing for certain reasons te acquire the shares
awarded to them at nil cost These opliens will expire within @ year after the end of the four year performance pericd 1e 1n March 2010

Drdends will accrue on any shares which vest and will be released te participanls in the torm of additiona)l shares al the point of vesung

Table 1- Matunity vesting (multiplier apphed to the shares)
4 year EPS growih (compound annual)

Sales growlh in E billion <5% 5% 10% 14% 17% 21%
250 00 10 20 30 45 50
225 00 1Q 15 25 a0 50
200 00 o0 15 20 30 45
175 oo 00 15 20 25 40
150 oo oo 1Q 15 20 30
125 (V] g0 00 10 15 25
100 00 go ©0 o0 10 20

Table 2 - Interim vesting {(multeplier applied to 50% of the shares)

3 year EPS growlh (compound annual)

Sales growth in £ Billian <5% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%
250 00 10 29 30 45 50
225 00 10 15 25 49 50
200 a0 Q0 15 240 30 45
173 00 oo 15 20 25 40
L 50 1]) oo 10 15 20 10
125 00 Qo0 oo 10 15 25
1 00 00 Qo 00 00 10 20

In order to partic:pate n the plan parhicipants agreed to surrender oplions granted to them ender the Company s Executive Share Qplion Plan in 2002 2003 and 2004
Gn 24 March 2005 the Remungration Committee made contitional awards over 32 5 milhon shares (assuming maximum performance multiplier) Lo over 1 000 partreipants
In the plan subject Lo sharehekier approval at the Annuat General Meeting The J Sainsbury ple Share Plan was approved by sharehelders an 13 July 2005

Details of shares conditionally awarded at 25 March 2006 are set out below

Shares

condifionally

awarded

Date of conditional award midion
i3 Juy 200% 70

QOptions to purchase he conditional award of shares were valued using the Black Scholes option pricing model Ne performance congitions were inctuded i the fair value
calcelations The fair value per oplion granted during Lthe year and the assumptions usedn the Calculation are as {ollows

2006
Share price at grant date (pence) 286
Exercise price (pence} -
Lxpecled volatihty (%) 290
Option hife (years) ‘1
Expected dividends {expressed as dividend yield 9) -
Risk free interest rate (%) a3
Fair value per option (pence) 286

The expected volahifiiy 1s based on the standard deviation of the Group s share price for the period /mmediately priar to the date of grant of award over the period identical
to the vesting period of the award adjusted for management s view of future volatilty of the share price
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33 Share-based payments continued

(f} All-Empleyee Share Ownership Plan

In June 2003 under the Ajl Employee $Share Ownership Plan free shares were awarded to UK employees with more than 12 months coniinuous service The free shares are
beng heltd in a trust on behall of participants and will be forfested if participants cease to remain in the Group s emptoyment for a perrod of three years Shares are released
to participants within the first three years for certain reasons Aller the three year peried the shares continue to be held by the trusi far a further hoicing penoed of two years
unless they are released to partiopants upon cessalton of employment with the Group

A reconciiation of shares held in the trust s shown below
Number ol shares

2006 2005

million mtlion

Outstanding at beqinning of year 19 26
Forteited 0 2) 03B
Share consolidation - {0 4)
17 19

Outstanding at end of year

34 Acquisition of subsidiary
On 28 April 2005 the Group acguired 100 per cent of the shares i1 SL Shaw Ltd for a total consideration of £6 rmillign The acguisihon had the fotlowing elfect on the Group s

assels and habihbes

Recogrised Faer value Carrying
values  adjustments amounts
im im £m
Acquiree s nel assets at acquisiion date
Property plant and equipment 4 3 1
Trade payables 48] - (1)
Net identifiable assels and habilites 3 3 -
Goodwill on acquisition
Consideration paid in cash 6

If the acguisition had occurred at the beqinning of the hinancial year the estimated consolidated Group revenue and consodidaied Group prohit would have been £16 062 million
and ES8 mihon respectively for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

35 Shares In subsidiaries
The Company s principal cperating subsidianes are
Share of
ordnary aleiied Country of
capital and registration or
voting nghts  incorporation

Bells Stores Ltd 100% England
Jacksons Stores Lid 100% England
JB Beaumont Ltd 100% Engfand
J5 Insurance Ltd 100% Isle of Man
J5 Information Systems Ltd 100% England
Sainsbury s Bank plc 55% Englang

Samnsbury s Card Services Ltd' 100% England

Sainsbury s Supermarkets Lid 100% England
SL Shaw Ltd 1900% England

Swan Infrastructure Holdings Ltd 100% England

1 Not directly owned by 2 Sainsbury pic

All principal operating substdiaries operale in the countries of thew registration or incorporation and have been included i the cansehdation up to and as at 25 March 2006

Audited financial statements are drawn up to 31 March 2006 for Sanshury s Bank plc

Shares
at cost
Em

Summary of movements
At 27 March 2005 5 764

Investment in subsidiaries 1 463
Acguisibion of subsidiaries 6
Provision tor dirminution in value of investment (8}
At 25 March 2006 7 225
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36 Investment in Jjoint ventures
The holdings directly owned by the Company of the Group s principal joint veniures were

Share of
srdinary Lountry ot
aliptied reqisiration or
Year #nd capial wncorporztion
Hedge End Park Ltd {properly mvestment - UK} 26 March 50% England
Bouligue Sainshury SARL (food retailing - France) 31 December 50% France
Management accounts of the above joint ventures have been used to include the results up to 25 March 2006
The Group s share inits principal joint ventures s detailed below
2006 2005
Em Em
Share of non current assets 2 4
Share ol net current assets 8 [
Shara of net assets 10 10
For the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006 the Group s share of turnover amounted to £5 million (2005 £6 mellion} and the share of profit before tax was End mithon
(2005 E)mullion)
Group share
of post
Shares at acquisition
cost resegves Tatal
£m £m €m
Summary of investment
Group
At 27 March 2005 6 4 10
Share of retained proft - - -
At 25 March 2006 -] 4 10
Company
Al 25 March 2006 and 26 March 2005 6
37 Related party transactions
Group
(a) Key management persannel
The key management personnel of the Group comprise members of the J Sansbury s pic Board of Directors and the Qperating Board
The key management perscnnel campensations are as foliows
2006 2005
Em £m
Shori term employee benelits 8 7
Post employment employee benafits 3 4q
Termination benefits - 4
Share based payments & 1
15 16

Details of transactions in the normal course of business with the key management personnel are provided below For this purpose key management personnelinciude Group

key management persgnnel ang members of their close family

Credit card balances

Saving depnsil a¢Counts

Number of key

Numier of hey

management management

personned EODO persannel EQDO
At 27 March 2005 S 11 4q 487)
Amounts advanced/(receved)} 6 249 3 97)
tnterest earned/{paid) K} 1 4 $1:)]
Amounts {repaid)/withdrawn? & 1252 3 601
At 25 March 2006 4 9 2 (1
At 28 March 2004 E] 10 3 {760)
Amounts advanced/(receved) 6 149 4 324)
Interest earned/{paid) S - 4 23
Amounts {repaidy/withdrawn? 6 (148) 3 620
Al 26 March 2005 9 11 4 (487}

1 Includes exrsting balances of new appantments
2 Includes existing balances of resignations
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37 Related party transactions continued
{b) Transactiens with the H80S5 plc group

Sawnsbury s Bank s a subsudbiary of the Company and has a5 shareholders the Company and Bank of Scottand {part of the HBOS pic group) which held 55 pes cent and
45 per ceni respeclively of the 1ssued share capital

For the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006 companies within the HBOS pic group provided both management and banking services to Sainsbury s Bank Sainsbury s Bank also entered
into hinancial transactions with and earned commission from cempanies withn the HBOS plec group all under normat commercial lerms

2006 2005
im £m
Loans given to and commission received from HBOS ple group
Tolal loans and advances mate during the year 8 961 & 78T
Net interest received in respect of interest rate swaps loans and advances 16 5
Commission income earned 7 6
Services and loans pravided by HB0S plc group
Management and banking services 152) 39
Interest expense paid in respect of subordinated dean capital (3} (2)
Deposits by banks
Short term bovrowing 166 LE¥
Fixed term borrowing {1 007) (22}
Subordinated undated ioan capital® [CH {9)
Net interest pard in respect ol interest rate swaps loans and advances {21} (a4}
(<) Year end balances arsing from transactions with the HBOS plc group
2006 2005
Em Em
Recewables
Current acceunt 7 g
Loans and advances 996 -
Interest recevable 4 N
Commussion receivable ! !
Payables
Management and banking services (1B} (21
interast payable 15) -
Deposits by banks
Shorl term borrowing - (32)
Fixed term borrowing {1 COD (22)
Subordinated habdibies due
Fioating rate subordinated undated lcan capital' (18} {9
Floating rate subordinated dated loan capiial’ (27) (27)

1 The undated suberdinated loan ¢apital shall be repad on such date as the Financial Services Authonly shall agree in writing for such repayment and in any event not less thar live years and ane day Irom the
cates of draw dawn In the evenl of 3 winding up gt Sansbury $ Bank the 1oan is subordinated 1O ordinary unsecured habshilies Infesest (s payable thrge months in arrears al LIBOR plus a margin of § 9 per cenl
per annum lor the duration of the lpan

2 Np repayment of dated subordinated debt prior to st stated maturity may be made without the consent of the Financsal Services Authority In the event of a winding up of Sainsbury s Bank ihe loanis
subordinated Ip orgmary unsacured halviihes Interest 15 payable three months in arreafs at LIBOR plus a8 margin ol O 75 per cent per annum for the gurabon of the lpan

Company

{a) Key management personnel

The key management persannel of the Company comprise members of the J Sansbury s plc Board of Directors The Directors do not recerve any rermuneration from the

Company (2005 £l as their emoluments are berne by subsidianies The Company did not have any transactions with the Drectors during the finangial year (2005 il

{b) Transactions with subsidiaries
The Company enters into leans with its subsiharies al bath fixed and floating rates of inierest on a commercial basis Hence the Company incurs interest expense and earns
nterest mcome on these I0ans and advances The Company also receswed dividend income {remots subsidianes during the financial year

2006 2005
£m fm
Loans and advances qiven to and dividend income received from subsidtanies
Loans and advances given 1399 274
Loans and advances repard by subsidianes (3 104) (422)
Interesi income recerved 10 respect of interest bearing loans and advances 110 26
Dividend income received 270 330
Loans and advances received from subsidiaries
Loans and advances received {3 448) (2 1200
Loans and advances repaid 1 650 330
Interest expense pad in cespect of interedt heaning loans and advances {154} (36)
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37 Related party transactions continued
{c} Year end batances ansing from transactiens with subsidiaries

2006 2005
Een Em
Recewables
Loans and advances due from subsidiaries 1894 3219
Interest receivable 5 5
Payables
Loans and advances due to subsidiarigs (5 856) (3 88%5)
Interest payabie - (19)

38 Operating lease commitments
The Group leases various retail stores offices depols and equipment under non cancellable operating leases The leases have varying terms escalation clauses and
renewed rights

Lang anc buldings Qther leases
2006 2005 2006 2005
Em Em Em Em

Commitments undes non cancellable operating leases payable as follows

Within 1 year 283 277 29 24
Within 2 1o 5 years inclusive 1113 1092 62 37
After 5 years 4817 5018 - 1
6213 6 387 91 82

The Group sublets certain leased properties and the total future mmimum sublease payments o be received under non cancellable subleases ai 25 March 2006 are
E£267 million {2005 £188 milhien)

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments (2005 nil)

39 Capital commitments
During the current hinancial year the Group entered into contracts of £477 mathon (2005 £390 milhon) for future capital expenditure not provided for in the
linancial statements

The Company dees nat have any capilal cammilinents (2005 nil)

40 Contingent habihities and financial commitments

Contingent habtlities

Qperatg lease commitments (note 3B} nclude payments in respect of 26 supermarkel propertres 5010 (16 supermarket properties sofd in March 2000 for £325 milhen and
ten supermarkel proper Lies sold in July 2000 lor £226 mulbon} and leased back to Sainsbury s Supermarkets for a penod of 23 years Under the arrangement the Company
nas provided a residual value guaraniee of £170 milhon fer the 16 supermarket praperties and £39 mithon for the ten supermarket properties at the end of the lease period

In view of the relatively low amount of the guarantees when compared to the present market value of the {reehold interests the Directors believe that the hkelihood of the
guarantees baing invoked s remote therefore no provision has heen recognised in these financial statements

Financial commitments
Fhe Group 1s commiited to make the second tranche payment of £240 mitlien i relation to the addtional one off contribution {0 the defined benelit pension schemes on

19 May 2006 (note 32)

Sainsbury s Bank

The amounts noted below indicate the volume of business outstanding at the balance sheet date wn respect of undrawn commitments to lend on credit cards mortgages and
personal loans They do not reflect the underlying credit or other risks which amounted to E9 mithon (2005 E11 million) as indicated by the risk wewghted amount using the
Financal Services Authority 5 capital adeguacy reguirement Fhe rnisk weighted amount s much lower than the contractual amount since the majority of commitments are
canceltable either at any Lime or up to and including ane year

2006 2005
£m im

Commitments to lend on credit cards marlgages and personal loans ug to ant including one year
Contract amount 3 404 4060
Risk weighted amounl 9 11

4] Subsequent events
Fhere were no subseguent events other than the declaratron of the proposed hinal dividend as set out in note 11a
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Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanation of transition to IFRS
Thisis the Lirst year that the Group ang Company have preseénted ther Hinancial statements under IFRS The last linancial statements under UK GAAP were for the
52 weeks 10 26 March 2005 and the date of transitron to IFRS was 28 March 2004

Reconciiaiions between UK GAAP and IFRS
Set oul below are the UK GAAP Lo IFRS equity reconciiations for the Group and the Company at 28 March 2004 (date of transition) and 26 March 2005 (last inanciat
statements under UK GAAP) and proht reconcihation tor the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005 Subseguent to the IFRS Iransition announcement made on 16 June 2005
(please visit our website www ) sainsbury ¢o uk for more details) further ad;ustments have been made Lo the recongihation as set aut below

Leases with predetermined fixed rental increases (reconCihing item note (ch)

Retirement beneti{ obligations - inctusign of unfunded pension liability {reconciing item note (d)

Cash and cash equivatents (reconciing item note {(m)} and

Revaluation reserve (reconcling item note (n)

Group reconcihations
Reconciliation of equity at 28 March 2004 (date of transitron)

Uk GAAP  Adjustments IFRS
Npte Em Em Em
Non current assets
Properly plant and equipment @ i) o i 8214 (881) 7 333
Intangible assets gy 208 {rd) 134
Investments 1] 30 (10} 20
Amounts due {rom Sainsbury 5 Bank customers 1166 - 1166
9618 {965} B 653
Current assets
Inventories i) 753 (1586) 597
Trage and clher recewables 0] 384 (74) 20
Amounts due frem Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 6% - 969
investments 1] 228 (19 209
Cash and cash equivalents Uy )y 545 (32) 513
2 B89 281) 2 608
Non current assets hed for sale ot - 1232 1232
2 889 951 3840
Total assets 12 507 (14) 12 493
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 1k 0t 2 161) 460 (170D
Amounts due to Sainsbury 5 Bank customers {2,20Q) - (2 2000
Shaort term borrowings {403} - (403}
Taxes payable (115} - 115
Provisians (34} - (34)
4913 460 (4 453)
Non current habilities hetd for sale [T - (493) (493)
4913 33 {4 946)
Net current babilities (2 024) 918 (1 106}
Nan current habihities
Other payables (LIS (25) (21} (46)
Leng term borrowings @ w {2 196} 168 (2 028)
Defesred income tax hability (234y 213 21
Provisions ) e {40} - 140}
Retirement benehit obligations [CT] - (672) 672)
{2 495) 312) 2 807)
Nel assets S 099 359 4 74¢
Equity
Calted up share capital 486 - 486
Share premium accaunt 1438 - 1438
Other reserves m 22 122) -
Retained earmngs 3072 337 2735
Equity shareholders funds 5018 {359) 4 659
Minonty interests 81 - 81
Total equrty 5 099 {359) 4740
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Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued
Reconcifiation of profit for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005

UK GAAP'  Adjusiments FRS
Nole Em Em £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 0] 15 409 (267 15 202
Cast of sales tc) i) {14 722) 178 (14 544)
Gross profit 687 (29 658
Admintstrative expenses @ {m o o (850) 20 (830)
Other income 21 - 21
Operating loss (142} (%) {151}
Finance income ) 33 11 44
finance costs ta) 129 3) (132)
Share of post tax preht from jont ventures 1 - 1
Loss before taxation (237} in 238
Analysed as
Underlying profit before tax fram continuing operabions? 254 (16} 238
Business Review and Translormation operating costs [ {507) 10 a9n
Pralit on sale of properties 21 - 21
Goodwilt amor bisation h) 5) 5 -
(237 {1} 238)
Income tax credit S0 1 51
Loss from continuing operations (187) - {187
Discontinued operations
Prohit attnzutable to discontinued operations 1) (0 252 123 375
Protit tor the financial year 65 123 158
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 61 123 184
Minority interests 4 - a
&5 123 188

1 €4 muinon of interest sncurred by Sainsbury s Bank 1or (he 52 waeks to 26 March 2005 has been reclassilied from cos! Of saies 10 inance \nCOMe/COsts N oraer 10 be conwstent with the treatment wn the
current year This agjusiment does not impact underlying Of statutory profit belore tax

2 Profit before tax from continuing aperations belore any gain or loss on the sale of properhies imparrment of qoodwill inancing lair value movements and one off items that are matenal and infrequent in
nalure In this Inancial year these one off items were the Business Review and Transfarm3lion cosls
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Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued
Reconciliation of equity at 26 March 2005

UK GARP  Adjustments IFRS
Note Im Em im
Non current assets
Property plant and eguipment @ g 4 7154 (78) 7076
Intangible assets Q) (h) 125 78 203
Investments 20 - 20
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank customers 1331 - 1331
B 630 - 8 630
Current assets
Inventories 559 - 559
Trade and olher receivables 319 - 319
Amounlts due from Sansbury s Bank customers and other banks 1227 - 1227
nvestments m 114 {24) 20
Cash and cash equivalents im3 682 24 706
2901 - 2901
Non current assets held lor sale 87 - 87
2988 - 2988
Total assets 11 618 - 11 618
Current babilities
Trade and other payables 03] (2 188) 95 (2 093)
Amaounts gue to Sainsbury ¢ Bank customers and other banks {2 464} - (2 464}
Short term barrowings (354} - (354)
Taxes payable (55) - 155)
Provisions 70} - {7Q)
(5131 95 {5 036y
Net current habilities (2 143) 95 {2 048)
Non current trabihties
Other payables Wl o {4) 27} 30
Amounts due to Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks 22} - 22)
Leng term borrowings @) {1 740} (53} {1 793
Deterred incame tax bability (173} 172 n
Provisions (d) e} (89) 2 an
Retirement denefit obhgations « - (338) {536}
{2 02B) (442} (2 4700
Net assets 4 459 (347} 4112
Equity
Called up share capital 620 - 620
Share prermium account 761 - 761
Capital redempiion reserve S47 - 547
Hher reserves @) iy 19 &8 a7
Retained earnings 2427 (415) 2012
Eguity sharehalders funds 4 374 (347) 4027
Minority interests 85 - as
Total equity 4 45%9 {347) 4112
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Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued

First time adeption of IFRS

IFRS 1 First tme Adoption of Inernational Financial Reparhing Standards allows
companies adopting IFRS lor the farst Lime to take certain exemptrons from the full
requirements of IFRS in the year of transition (1 @ the 92 weeks to 26 March 2005)

Fhe Group has elected to take the {ollowing key exernptions

GHFRS 3 Business combinatsons

The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 Business Comtsnations retrospecively
Lo acguwisitions that took place belare the date of transition As a result the carrying
amount of goodwill in the UK GAAP balance sheet at 27 March 2004 15 brought
torward te the IFRS opening batance sheel without adjustment

(N1AS 12 - Employee benelits - acluarial gains and lgsses
The Group has elected to recognise all cumulative actuarial gains and losses at the
date of transition

{11) 1AS 21 - Cumulative translahion differences

Under IFRS cumutative translation differences ansing on the censohdation of foreign
enbities are required to be recycied through the inceme statement when a foreign
entity 15 50ld as part of the gain or loss an sale IFRS | allaws the Group Lo net record
cumulative translation differences ansing before the date of transition The Group
has elected Lo take this exemption and has brought forward a nil balance in respect
of these translation differences

(v} 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 - Financial instruments

The Group has taken the option to defer the implementation of 1AS 32 and IAS 39
to the financial year beginning 27 March 2005 Therefare binancial instruments
cantinue to be accounted lor and presented in accordance with UK GAAP for the
52 weeks to 26 March 2005

(V) IAS16 - Valuation of properties

The Group has elected {o ireat the revalued amount of properties at 28 March 2004
as deemed cost as at that date and will not revalue properties for accounting purposes
i the future

(1) IFRS 2 - Share based payment

IFRS 1 provides an exemption which allows eatities to anly apply 1FRS 2 Share based
Payment toshare based payment awards granted after 7 November 2002 The
Group has not taken this exemption but has elected to apply IFRS 2 to share aoptions
granted before 7 Novenber 2002 The fair value of those options has been putlished
on gur website www | sainsbury o uk on 26 Apnil 200%

£xplanation of reconciling items between UK GAAP and IFRS - Group

(a) Capitalisation of buiding leases

Under UK GAAP the Group recogmised hinance leases under the recagnition criterra
set out1in $SSAP 21 Although the accounting treatment of finance 'eases remams
largely the same under IFRS the application of JAS 17 Leases resulls in the building
etement of a number of property leases being ciassilied as inance leases

The impact an the Group s financial stataments 1s set out below

The Group s IFRS opeming balance sheet at 28 March 2004 includes additional
property plant and equpment of E37 rillion and addibional finance lease
abhgations of £53 mithen resuliing in a reduction in net assets of £11 mithon
alter deferred tax of £S5 millton

The mawnimpact on the income statement is that the operating lease payment
charged to operating profil under UK GAAP 1s replaced with a depreciation charge
on the finance lease asset and a financing charge on the obligatson The pre tax
impact on the income statement for the 52 weeks to 26 March 200515 a reducltion
n administrative expenses o £2 mill:on and an increase in finance costs of

£3 million Thrs results in a net charge of £1 midlion (£) mulhon alter deferced tax}

The Group s IFRS balance sheet at 26 March 2005 includes additienal praperty
plant and equipment of E36 milion and addilional Linance lease obhgations of

£53 mithon resulting i a reduction in net assets of E12 milhion after deferred tax of
£5 milleon
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{b} Lease incentives

Under UK GAAP rent iree periods were recognised over the peried to the first market
rent review Under 18517 these are amorlised over the lerm of ihe lease The impact
an the Group s fnancial statements 15 set out below

The Groups IFRS epening balance sheet at 28 March 2004 includes addilional |
delerred income of £4 million resulting in a reduction in net assets of £3 midlion
after gelerred tax

The pre tax impact on the income statement for the 52 weeks ta 26 March 2005 s
an increase (< administrative expenses of £2 milhion (E£1 millien after deterred tax)

The Group s IFRS batance sheet at 26 March 2005 includes additional delerred
income af £6 million resulling in a reduction in net assets of £4 milhion after
deferred iax

(€} Leases with predetermined lixed rental increases }
Comments by IFRIC have indicated that under 1FRS 1t 15 necessary to account for |
leases with predetermmed hixed rental Increases on a straight ine basis over the life

ol the lease Under UK CAAP the Group accoeunted for these rental increases in the

year they arose

The impact on the Group s financial statements is set out below

The impact of this change at the date of transitien 28 March 2004 15 an addition of
deferred income of £17 milhion resulting in a reduction in net assets of £12 million
afier deterred tax

The pre fax impact cn the income statement tor the 52 weeks to 26 March 200515
an increase m cost of sates of £4 mulhon (E3 mullion after deferred tax)

The Groups IFRS balance sheet at 26 March 200% includes addibwonal deferred
incame of E21 metion resulting in a reducticon it net assets of £15 mitlion after
deferred tax

(d} Pensions

The Group apphed the provisions of SSAP 24 under UK GAAP and provided detalled
disciosure under FRS 17 in accounting for pensions Under IFRS the Groups batance
sheet reflects the assets and hatmhties of the Group s defined benefit pension
schemes As allowet in the amendment to 31A% 19 the Group has elected to recognise
all cumulative actuarial gans and losses through the statement of recognised income
and expense

The impact on the Group s financial statements 1s set out below

The Group s apening balance sheel at 2B March 2004 reflects the habihities ot |
the delined benelit pension schemes with a tolal gross deficit of £715 million This

liability represents a gross delicit of £665 miliign relating te the UK defined benefit

pension schemes and £50 million relating to the US supermarkels business Shaw s

The gross deficit relating to the UK defined henehit pension schemes of

£665 million s shown together with £7 milhon of untfunded pension Labiities
previously recorded within provisions under UK GAAP The associated deferred
incorme tax asset of £202 million is shown within deferred mcome tax hability
on the transition balance sheet

The net pension deficit relating to Shaw s of £30 millton {(E50 million gross dehicit
before deferred tax of E20 mullion  calculated at the US corporate tax rate ol

40 per cent) has been transferred as part of the sale of Shaw s and has been
included uncer Non current habilities hetd for sale 1n the IFRS balance sheet at
28 March 2004 (note (D)

The income statement adjustment for the 52 weeks lo 26 March 2005 1sa

small increase in cost of sales of £2 million and a reduction in finance costs

of ENmillion resulting in a net credit of £9 millian (E& milbon after deferred tax)
The annual charge through the income statement 1s lower under 1AS 19 than under
SSAP 24 because the S5AP 24 charge included additional contributicns to amortise
the E161 million actuanal deficst identified sn March 2003 The calculation of the

145 19 iIncome stalement charge does nol inctude these contributions

in addiblon the net pensson dehicit ©f £30 million relating Lo Shaw s has been
transferred as part of the sale of Shaw s with the ellect of increasing the reported
gamn onsale Thasis recorded as an increase in the Profit attributable to discontinued
operations in the income statement for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005
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42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued
The Group s IFRS balance sheet at 26 March 2005 reflects the gross defieut
of £527 million retating to the UK delined benefit pensien schemes and £9 million
of unfunded pension liabilities previousty recorded within provisions under
UK GAAP The associated oeferred incorme tax asset of £161 milhion s shown
separately within deferred income tax hatihty

The gross actuarial gain of £128 m:lhon and 1ts associated defedred tax impact of
£38 millien {net actuanal gan of £90 mulhign} has been recogrised in the statement
of recogrised inceme and expense for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005

The following table summarises the movement in the pension deficit described above

£m
Gross defined benefit pension deficit at 28 March 2004 (715)
Shaw s pensigns settlements 50
665
Unfunded pension hability previousty recorded within provisions 7
Tatal gross pension deficit at 28 March 2004 (672)
Current service cost 77
Past service cost 8y
Gain due to curtat'ments 1
Total service costs and curtadments (84}
Finance income 11
Contributions 81
Gross acluarial gains 128
Total gross pension dehcit at 26 March 2005 {536)
Ceferred income tax asset 161
Net pension geficit at 26 March 2005 375)

(e) Othes employee beneflts

Under UK GAAP no provision was made for fong service awards Under 1AS19 the
costs of long service awards are accrued over the periad Lhe service is arovided by
the employee

The impact on the Group s finangial statements 1s set out belew

A provision for long service awards ts included in the operming IFRS batance sheet
al 28 March 2004 to the value of £7 milion (£5 million after delerred tax)

Theres noincome statement charge inrespect of this provision for the 52 weeks
to 26 March 2005 and the provision fer leng service awards remains at £7 million
(£S5 million after deferred tax) in the Groups IFRS balance sheet al 26 March 2005

(1) Share based payments

iIFRS 2 Share based Payment requires that an expense for share based payments
including SAYE schemes be recogaised in the financial statemants based on ther
{air vatue al the date of grant The expense 1s recognised over the vesting period of
the share based payment scheme

The additional pre tax charge ansing irom the adoption of IFRS 2 on the Group s
come statement lor the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005 1s £8 million {cost of sales

£5 mithon admunistrative expenses £3 million) resulting in 3 net charge of £7 milhon
after deferred tax The adjustment s comparatively low because the executive share
options granted since 2002 are unlikely to vest and as a result there 1s no charge
refating Lo these awards

(g) Software capitahisalion

Under UK GAAP soflware was included within tanqible ficed assets Under IFRS
software 1s rectassified Irom tangible hxed assets and recorded within
wlangible assets

The baiance sheet reclassification amounlts to £86 million at date of transition
28 March 2004 and £74 million at 26 March 2005 There 1s no tncome
statemenl impact

(hy Goodwill

Previously goodwill on acquisitions was capitahsed and amortised over 1ts usetul
economic bie Under IFRS amaortisation 1s no longer charged instead goodwill is
tested lor tmpairment annually and again where ingicators are deemed 10 exist
Gaodwith 15 carnied at cest less accumulated impairment losses

The impact en the Group s financial statements is set out below

The goodwill amortisation charge for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005 under

UK GAAP of £5 milion (including £1 millson of goodw!ll amertisabion relating to
Shaw s} reverses in the IFRS hnancial statements Naimpairment ¢harge relating to
acquired goodwill has been recognised as at 26 March 2005 |

Tha impact on the Group s IFRS balance sheet at 26 March 200515 to increase the
goodwiil balance by £4 million resulting in an increase in net assets of E4 million

{1 Goodwilt - Sale of US supermarkets business Shaws

Under UK GAAP goodwilf previously set ofl against reserves was recycled on the sale
of the entity to which it related However this recycimg 1s not permitted under IFRS
As aresult the geodwill recycted upon disposal of the US supermarkels business
Shaw s 1s reversed resultingn anincrease of £86 million te the gain on sale This s
recorded as anncrease n the Prohl attributable te discontinued gperations on the
face of the income statement for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005

{(p Imparment of non financial assels

Under tFRS the Group reviews the carrying amounts of i1s tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there s any indication that those assels are wmpaired

11 any suchndicabion exsts the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated in
orger 1o determine the evtent ¢f the imparrment loss (it any) Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the Group estrmales
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit { CGU ) to which the asset
betongs For tangible and intangible assets excluding geodwill the CGU 15 deemed

to be each trading stere For goodwill the CGU 15 deemed to be each retail chain of
stores acquired

The impact on the Group s [inancial statements s set cut below

As at Lhe gpening balance sheet date 28 March 2004 27 stores were deemed
tobe impaired resulting in an impairment loss of £51 milhon (£44 milhon after
deferred tax) {or property plant and equipment This total includes the 13 stores
that the Group announced woult be Closed as part of the Business Review

A similar /mpairment review was performed lor the 82 weeks ta 26 March 2005
and no further imparment was deemed necessary However as a result of ihe
above IFRS impairment adjustment at transition date £11 muliga (E9 muithon

aiter deferred tax) ol UK GAAP depreciation charges and wrnite down costs retating
to those impaired stores 1s reversed for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005

The impact on the Group s IFRS balance sheet at 26 March 2005 1s an imparrment
lass of £40 muthon (£35 eulhen after deferred tax) for properly plant and eguipment

The followrng table summanises the adjustments made to the opening
mparrment vatue

Em
IFRS impairment at 28 March 2004 51) :
Reversal of UK GAAP geprecialion and additions on impaired stares 1
Reversal of the Oclober 2004 Business Review costs retating to the \
write down ¢f those stores impaired under IFRS These costs were
treated as exceplicnal items under UK GAAP 10
11
IFRS imparment at 26 March 2005 4
Delerred tax 5
Reduclion v net assels at 26 March 2005 (35}
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42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued

{k} Dividends

Under UK GAAP dividends were recognised in the pertod Lo wiich they relate
tFRS reguires that dividends be recognised as a habiity when they are declared
(1e approved by shareholders or in the case of interun dividends when pad)

Accordingly the accrued final dividends of £218 mitlion and £95 milhon are reversed
n the balance sheets at 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005 respectively The tinal
dividend of £218 million is recognssed directly as an appropriation of retained
earnings in the balance shee{ at 26 March 2005

() Discontinued operations

Under IFRS assets and liabilities of disposal groups are shown separately onihe
balance sheet This has the effect of having a single ine Non current assets held
for sale represent the total assets of disposal groups and a §ingle hne Non current
habilities held for sale represent the total babilities of disposal groups

Simptarly the results of discontinued operations are shown in the income statement
separately from continuing operations This has the effect of having one tine
representing the trading profit of discontinued aperations and any gain or lgss on
sale Thisis are presentalion and there 1s 10 1mpact on the total Group profat atlter
tax as presented under UK GAAP

The change in presentalion on the Group § IFRS financial statements s sel aut beiow

At the date of transiion 28 March 2004 the Group held a dispoesal group relating
e the US supermarkets business Shaw s As aresult the assets and habilities

of Shaw s are excluded from the Group s assels and habihities and are shown
separately inthe balance sheet The joiowing table summanses the change

mn presentabion n the balance sheet at 28 March 2004

Em
Property plant and equipment 781
intangible assels 160
Investments 10
Inventories 156
Trade and other recenables 74
Cash and cash eguivalents 51
Total assets 1232
Represented by
Non current assets held for sale 1232
Trade and other payables (242)
Long term borrowings 221)
(463)
Net pension scheme deficit {note (d}) (30}
Total habuities {493)
Represented by
Non current habilities held for sale {493)
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The resulls of Shaw s have been excluded from the Group s Income statement
for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005 as foliows

Em
Revenue 207
Cost of sales {189)
Gross protil 18
Admunesirative expenses 18)
Qperating orofit i0
Analysed as
Underlying profit before tax irom continuing aperations 11
Gocdwill amertisation 98]

10
Income {ax expense (3}
Protit from discontinued operatrons 7
Met pensian scheme defici (note (d)) 30
Goodwilt  sale of Shaw s (note (4}) 86
Total adjusiment to prolt attribulable to disconlinued operations 123

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
The defimition of cash and cash equivalents under IFRS resulted in certain current
assets bengreciassified from investments 1o cash equivalents

The balance sheet reclassificatron amounts to £19 million at date of transition
28 March 2004 and £24 mithion at 26 March 2005 Therg 1S no income
statement impact

{n) Revaluation feserve

Under IFRS deferredtax s accounted for on the basis of Larable temporary
dilferences belween the tax base and accounting base of assets and habdiles
As atesult an addihiondl delerred lax habiity of E7 medlion anising from the
revaluatron reserve of £22 million has been recegnised in the IFRS balante
sheets at 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005

In addition the Group has elected to treat the revalved amount of properties as
deemed cosl 3t date of iransibion 28 March 2004 and wilk not ¢evalue properties for
accounting purposesn the future As aresult the revaluabion reserve of £22 mithon
under UK GAAP has been iransferred directly to retained earntngs in the Groups
IFRS balance sheets al 2B March 2004 and 26 March 2005




Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanation of transition to IFRS continued
Company reconciliations
Recenciliation of equity at 28 March 2004 (date of transition)

UK GAAP  Agyustments IFRS
Note Em Em Em
Non current assets
Property plant and equipment 361 - 361
Investments @ 8 109 (3191 4918
Other recewvables ia) - 357 357
8 470 (2 834) S 636
Current assets
Trade and other receivables ta) o} 14 2 608 2622
Cash ang cash equvalents 159 - 159
173 2 608 278t
Total assets 8643 (226) 8417
Current hatihties
Trade and olher payables &) 810} 218 {592)
Shorl term borrowings (206} - (206)
Taxes payable (27} - 27
Provisions (t4) - (14)
(1 057) 218 (839)
Net current habihities (884) 2826 1942
Non current hiabiities
Other payables {1 509} - {1 509}
Long term borrowings {1 868} - {1 868}
Provisions (15) - (15)
(3 392) - (3 392)
Net assels 4194 8) 4 186
Equity
Cailed up share capstal 486 - 486
Share premwm account 1438 - 1438
Retamed earmngs 2270 (8 2262
Total equity 4194 [£:3] a4 186
Recancitiation of profit for the 52 weeks to 26 March 2005
Hote £m
Prohit atter tax under UK GAAP 284
Dividend income
pnor year dividend declared n current year i} 312
current year dividend declared post year engd (4] (250)
Foreign exchange dillerences 1) 4
Protit after tax under IFRS 350
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Notes to the financial statements continued

42 Explanatien of transition to IFRS contrnued
Reconciltation of equity at 26 March 2005

UK GAAP  Adjusteents IFRS
Note £Em £m £m
Non current assets
Property plant and equipment EE] - 330
Investments ) 9122 3 352) 5770
Other recewvables @) - 168 368
9 452 (2 984) 6 468
Current assets
Trade and other receivables ta) 1 (0 29 2 856 2 885
Cash and cash equivalents 317 - 317
346 2 856 3202
Total assets 9798 (128 9670
LCurrent habiities
Trade and other payables w 2 578) o5 (2 483)
Short term borrowings 283) - (283)
Taxes payable {291 - 29
Provisians (13} - (13)
(2 903) 95 {2 80B)
Net current habilities (2 557) 2951 394
Non-current habihties
Qther payables (1 501} - (1501
Long term borrowings (1 704) - (1 7048)
Provisions (33) - 33y
(3238 - (3 238
Net assets 3657 (33} 31624
Equity
Called up share capiial 5620 - 620
Share premium account 761 - 761
Capital redemplion reserve 547 - 547
Retained earmings 1729 (33 1696
Total equity 3 657 {33 3624

Explanation of reconciing items between UK GAAP and IFRS - Company

(a) Foreign equity investments

Under UK GAAP where loreign currency barrowings have been used to finance foreign equity investments the exchange differences ansing on transiation of the foreign
equity investments and refated forergn currency borrowings were taken to reserves Under IFRS investments in foreign subsidiaries are held at hustorical cost and exchange
differences ansing en translation of foregn currency borrowings are taken to the income statement in the individual financial statements of the Cempany The impact of this
change n treatment 1s o increase investments by £37 milhon in 1he balance sheet at 26 March 2005 and increase profit after tax of £4 mihonin the income statement far the
52 weeks te 26 March 2005

In addition there has been a change n presentation of investments as a result of which advances to subsidiaries are no tonger presented as part of investments but classiled
as receivabies under IFRS There 1s na impact on net assets in ihe balance sheets at 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005 from this change i presentation

{b) Own shares held by ESOP trusts

Under UK GAAP the assets and tabilities of the ESOP trusts were aggregated with the assets and habiities of the Company as the Company s the spensoring entity of the
{rusts Under IFRS the ESOP trusls are only consghdated at the Group level and would not be aggregated within the Company s individual tinancial statements Thus the awn
shares held by the ESQP trusts are not deducted from the Company s equity The impacl of this change in ireatment i1s to increase net assets by £86 mullkon and £85 milhon in
ihe balance sheets al 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005 respectvely

€y Dwidend income

Under IFRS the Company recagmses dividend imcame from its subsidianies only when the dividend has been declared Accordingly dvidend receivable of £312 mithon and
E£250 rmillson are reversed in the balance sheeis at 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005 respectively The impaci on the income statement for the 52 weeks o 26 March 2005
15 toincrease profal aller tax by £62 million

{d) Dmwidends

IFRS requires that dividends be recogmsed as a habihity when they are declared {1e approved by shareholders or in the case ol interim dividends when paid) Accordingly the
accrued hinal dividends of £218 mithon and £95 million are reversed in the balance sheets at 28 March 2004 and 26 March 2005 respectively The linal dividend of £218 milhian
s recoomised drectly as an appropriaton of retained earnings in the balance sheet at 26 March 2005

Explanation of matenial adjustments to the Group and Company cash flow statements

Income taxes and interest pad are classitied as part of operating cash flows under IFR5S but were included in separate categories under UK GAAP Equity dividends pawd are
classified as part of linancing cash flows under IFRS but were shown as a separate ine tem under UK GAAP A cash llaw statement is presenied for the Company unger IFRS
whereas it was not required under UK GAAP There are no other matenal tifferences between the cash ftow statement presented under IFR5 and the cash flow statement
presented under UK GAAP
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Notes to the financial statements continued

43 First-time adoption of JAS 32 and I1AS 39

The Group has adopted 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation and 1AS 39 Financial Insiruments Recogmition and Measurement with efiect from
27 March 2005 The Group has taken the exemption avalable in IFRS 1 Fust ime Adoplion of International Financial Reperting Standards nol Lo restale comparatives
tor both LAS 32 and 1AS 39

The adjustments to the opeming balance sheetis at 27 March 2005 are as follows

Group
Restated
IFRS IFRS
27 March 1A5 32 1aS 39 27 March
2005 adustments adjustments 2005
£m Em £m £m
Non-curreat assets
Property plant and equipment 7076 - - 7076
Intangible assets 203 - - 203
Investments 20 (10) - 10
Availlable for sale financial assels - 10 a5 95
Amounts due from Sainsbury s Bank custemers 1331 - - 1331
Derivative linancial instrurments - - 154 154
8 630 - 23¢9 8 B85%
Current assets
Inventories 559 - - 559
Trade and other receivables 319 - (20) 299
Amounts due from Sainsbury § Bank customers and other banks 1227 - (2) 1225
Avallable for sale financral assets - 20 - 90
Denvative financial instruments - - 7 7
Investments 40 {30) - -
Cash and cash equivalents 706 103 - 809
2901 103 (15 298¢
Nor current assets held fer sale ar - - a7
24988 103 (15} 3076
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (2 093) - &8 (2 025)
Amounts due Lo Sainsbury s Bank customers and other banks (2 464) - - 2 464)
Short term borrowings (354 {236) (10) (6CO)
Derivative hnancial instruments - - (36) (36)
Taxes payable (55} - - {55}
Provisions (70 - - {7TO)
{5 036) (236} 22 {5 250}
Non current habilities
Other payables 3N - - (31}
Amounts due to Sainsbury 5 Bank customers and ather banks (22) - - (22}
Long term borrowings (1 793) - (181) (1974)
Derivative linancial instrumenls - - )] 3
Deferred income tax hability 1) - (7} (8)
Provisions 87) - - 87)
Retirement benefit obligations (536) - - (538)
(2 470} - (121} (2 661)
Net assets 4112 {133) 55 4034
Equity
Called up share capstal 620 (133) - 487
Share premivm account 761 1 - 762
Capital regemption reserve 547 - - 547
Other reserves 87 - 71 158
Relamed earnings 2012 (L} (1e 1995
Eguity shareholders funds 4027 {133) 55 3949
Minority interests 85 - - 85
Total equity 4112 (133 55 4 034
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Notes to the financial statements continued

43 First-time adoption of 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 continued

Company
Restated
RS IFRS
2T March 1A% 32 1AS 39 2T March
2005  adustments  adjustments 2005
£m Em £m fm
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 30 - - 3o
Investments S 770 - - S 770
Other recevables 368 - - 368
Derivative finantial instruments - - i52 152
Deterred income Ltax asset - - 7 7
6 468 - 159 6627
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 2 885 - (23} 2862
Derivative {inancial instruments - - 6 6
Cash and cash egquwvalents ny - - N7
3202 - {(n 3185
Current habihiies
Trade and other payables 2 a83) - 68 {2415)
Shert term borrowings {283} (133} 9 {425)
Denwvative financial Instruments - - (35) (3%}
Taxes payable (29} - - 29
Provisions (13} - - {13)
(2 808) {133} 24 (2917
Non current habiities
Other payables (1501 - - (1501}
Long term borrewings {1 704) - (180) (1 884)
Derrvative financial instruments - - {2} 2)
Provisions (33) - - 30
(3 238) - (182) (3420}
Net assets 3 624 (133) (16) 3475
Eguity
Called up share capital 820 (133) - 487
Share premium account 761 1 - 762
Capilal redemption reserve 547 - - 547
Retained earaings 1 696 (1 e 1 679
Total equity 1624 (133) (16} 3475

Under 1AS 39 all of the Group s and Company § derivative hinancial instruments are measured at fair value and recegnised on the balance sheet Where Lhe inslruments are parl
of a gualifying hedge relatronship the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s adjusted by the change in far value that reflects the designated hedged risk

The Group and Company choosé not to hedge account for certamn interest rate and cross currency swaps Inthese cases the difference between Lthe prevtously reperied
carrying vatue and the fair value of the derivative financial instrument has been recogrised directly 1 opeaing fetained earmings The difference between the previously
reported carrying value and the fair value of the hedged item that reflects 1he designated hedged rish has alsa been recognised directly in epening retained earnings and
will be fully amertised through the income statement by maturity

A portion of the Group s and Campany s interest rate swaps do not qualify as hecging insteuments under 185 39 At the date of lransition the difference between the previously
reported carrying value and the 1air value of these swaps was £23 mitlion (E16 mellion alter deferred tax) and has been recogmsed directly :n opening retained earnings
Movements in the fair value of these instruments are recognised in the income slatement

In addibion on adoption of 1AS 3% an avaitable for sale {inanciat assel of EBS mithon relating Lo the Group s benehicial interest in a property investment pool has been
recogmised with the corresponding credit made to reserves This asset will be held al farr value with any tarr value movemenis Laken Lo reserves

The majaaity of the Group s bank accounts are pooled in an oftset arrangement for the purpose of charging interest Under 1AS 32 financral assets and tinancial habiities
must be separately disclosed The effect of grossing up the Group bank accounts at 27 March 2005 15 Lo increase overdralts and cash at bank by E103 million

Under 1AS 32 the Company must present the B shares which have previously been included as parl ol equity as a curvent habibty Dividends paid on the B shares are
recagrised in the income stalément as part of Linance costs The carrying value of the B share capital at 27 March 2005 was £133 millron
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Five year financial record

IFRS UK GAAP
2006 2005 2005 2004 2003 2002
Em Em im Em £m Em
Financial results
Revenue? 17 317 16 573 16573 18 239 18 144 18 206
Revenue (ng VAT) - continwng operations 17 317 16 364 16 364 15 517 15 147 15025
uUnderiying operating proiit
Sainsbury s Supermarkets 352 308 az1 564 572 505
Sainsbury s Bank (10} 17 13 26 22 22
342 325 334 390 594 527
Underlying net interest payable’ (75) 88) (92) (60) (60) {49}
Joint ventures - 1 1 - 3 n
Underlying profit trom continuing opesations* 267 238 243 530 537 477
INLTESTE DN Drevious year (Yo) 122 nfa
Underlying profit from discontinued operations - 11 11 145 158 150
Underlying profit before tax® 267 249 254 675 695 627
Increase/(decrease) on previpus year (%) 72 nfa (62 4) (29 108 142
Earnings per share
Basic {pence} 38 41 35 207 237 191
(Decreasel/increase an previous year (%) 17 3) afa 83 1) (127) 241 EX NN
Underlying (pence) 105 813 90 234 24 2 215
Increasef(decrease) on previous year (%) 265 nfa {61 5} 33 126 14 4
Proposed dividend per shara® (pence) a 0o T 80 7 80 15 69 15 58 14 84
Retail statistics for UK {ood retaiing
Number of outlets at financral year end
Sainsbury s Supermarkets®
over 40 000 sq [t sales area 166 158 158 157 152 121
25001 - 40000 sq ft sales area 168 176 176 1463 162 184
15 000 - 25 Q00 sq 11 sales area 88 79 79 77 79 84
under 15 000 sq ft sajes area 330 314 a4 186 105 74
752 727 727 583 498 463
Sales area (000 sq ity
Sainsbury s Supermarkets 16 737 16 370 16 370 15 570 15 199 14 349
Hel INCrease on previous year
Sansbury s Supermarkels (%} 22 51 51 24 59 44
New Sainsbury s Supermarkels gpenings 34 36 36 35 39 25
Sainsbury s Supermarkets sales intensity Gne VATH
Per square Toot (£ per week) 16 70 156 38 16 38 16 66 1712 17 54

1 Revenue in 2003 has been restated tor [he change 1 accounting policy W accordance with FRS 5 (Appicabion Note G}

2 Includes VAT at Sansbury s Supermarkels and sales tax at Shaw s Supermarkelis

3 Underlying nel interest payable 15 before the aitects of fnancing lair value mgvements and debl restructunng (osts

4 JFRS  Profit before tax frem continuing operations belore any gawn ar less on the safe of progerbies wngawrment of gqoodwill Hnancng tar value movements and ane off wems that are matenat aod wireguent
in nature In the current bnanoal year these one off items were the Business Review osts iT inscurcing Costs and debt resteuctuning costs 10 the poor hinanaial year these one off ilems were the
Business Review and Transformation costs

5 UK GAAP  Ungtertying prolit betore 1ax 15 stated betore exceptional items ol £42 mahion in 2002 15 millkon in 2003 £54 mitign m 2004 and £234 mihan v 2005 ang belore amortisalon of goodwill
o1 £14 ralhen in 2002 £13 mdlion in 2003 £11 milion in 2004 and £5 mullion 1n 2005

& Total proposed dividend n félabion Lo the inangal vear

7 tnciuges all convenience steres

B Excluding petrot and restated ta nclude 145 18 adjustment
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Additional sharehoider information

End of year information at 25 March 2006

Number of shareholders 140 920{2005 147 262)

Number of shares missue 1 710 516 638 (2005 1 702 005 329)

By size of holding

Shareholders % Shares %
2006 2005 2006 2005
500 and under 64 84 61 93 065 068
501 to 1 000 13 31 14 04 0 81 Q90
100110 10 QOO 20 35 22 33 4 20 4 88
10 001 1o 100 000 103 121 Z 24 274
100 001 to 1 000 000 034 0 36 953 10 54
Over 1 000 000 013 013 82 57 80 26
100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00

By category of shareholder

Shareholders % Shares %
2006 2005 2006 2005
Indwvidual and other shareholders 94 86 G2 95 3117 35 84
Insurance Companies Q 05 007 003 020
Banks and Homnees 461 & 49 54 82 6000
Investment Trusts 004 0 04 001 ¢ a2
Pension Funds 002 002 026 048
Other Corporate Bodies 042 0 43 1371 346
100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00

Annual General Meeting ("AGM"')

The AGM will be held at # O0am on Wednesday 12 July 2006 at The Queen
Elizabeth Il Conference Cenire Broad Sanctuary Westminster London
SWIP 3EE The Notice of the Meeling and the proxy card for the meeting
are enclosed with this Report

Company website

J Sainsbury plc inteqim and annual reports and results announcements are
available via the miternet on the wepsite (www) sainsbury co uk) As weltas
providing share price data and financial history the site also provides
background information about the Company requlatory and news
releases and current 1ssues Shareholders can receive emal notification of
results and press announcements as they are released by regestering on
the page called Ernail news service In the Investor section of the website

Registrars

For information about the AGM shareholdings dividends and to report
changes to personal details shareholders should contact Computershare
Investor Services PLC PO Box 82 The Pawilions Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 TNH

Telephone Q870 702 0106 (www computershare com}
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Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP™)

The Company has a PRIP which altows shareholders to reinvest their

cash dividends in the Company s shares bought in the market through

a specially arranged share dealing service No new shares are allotted
under this plan and some 33 843 shareholders participats in it Full details
of the plan and its charges together with mandate forms are avadable
frgm the Registrars

Key dates far the final gividend are as follows

Last date tor return or revocation of plan mandates 30 June 2006

Plap shares purchased for participants 21 July 2006

Plan share certificates issued 3 August 2006

Individual Savings Account (“ISA”)

A corporate 1SA 15 avatlable from The Share Centre Ltd and offers a tax
efficient way of holding shares in the Company Both a Maxi and Mim
ISA are available For further informatron contact The Share Centre
PO Box 2000 Oxford Road Aylesbury Buckinghamshire HP218ZB
Telephone 01296 414141 ¢r freephone 0BO00 282812 and

quote Samnsbury s

Low cost share dealing service

The Company oifers a low cost share dealing service for J Sainsbury plc
ordinary shares through The Share Centre Ltd For further information
contact The Share Centre PO Box 2000 Oxford Road Aylesbury
Buckinghamshire HP21 87B

Telephone 01296 414141 or freephone 08000 282812 and

quote Sainsburys




Additional shareholder information continued

Tax information - Capitalt Gains Tax ("CGT*")

For CGT purposes the market value of ordinary shares on 31 March 1982
adjusted for all capital adpustments was 9199 gence and B Shares

10 941 pence

Share capital consolidation

The original base cost of shares apporiioned between ordinary shares of
28, pence and B Shares s made by reference 1o the market value of each
class of shares on the first day for which a market value i1s quoted after
the new holding comes into existence The market value for CGT purposes
of any share or secunity quoted on the Stock Exchange Daily Qfficial List 1s
generally the lower of the two quotations on any day plus one quarter of
the difference between the values

Cn Monday 19 July 2004 the values were determined as follows

New ardinary shares 257 50 pence
B Shares 35 pence

Deferred shares

The 320050 073 deferred shares created on 19 July 2004 were redeemed
and cancelled bry the Company at the close of business on 12 May 2005

for a total consideration of one pence in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Return of Canttal circularsssued to shareholders in

June 2004

Irvestor relations

Forinvestor enguirigs please contact Lynda Ashton Head of Investor
Relations J %ainsbury plc Store Suppori Centre 33 Holborn London
ECIN 2HT Tetephone/Fax 020 7695 7162

Email lynda ashton@sainsburys co uk

American Depostitary Receipts ("ADRs")
The company has a sponsored Level | ADR programme for which
The Bank of New York acts as deposiltary

The ADRs are traded on the over the counter (OTC) market in the US under
the symbol JSYNSY where one ADR 1s equal to four ordinary shares

All engquiries relating {0 ADRs should be addressed to

The Bank of New York Investor Relations, PO Box 11258
Church Street Station Mew York MY 10286 1258 Toll Free
Telephone # for domestic callers t 888 BNY ADRS
International caflers can call +1 610 382 7836

Emall shareowners®bankofny com

General contact detatls
An audio tape of the Annual Review and Summary Financial Statement |
can be obtained by calling Q1435 B62 737

Annual Reports Interim Reports and information on Corporate
Responsibility are all avallable on the Internet (www ) sainsbury co k)
and by calhng 0800 015 4330

Share price information 1s avallabte on the Company s website nthe
hinancial press and the Cityline service operaied by the Financial Times
{Telephone 0906 003 3904)

For general enguines about Sainsbury s Bank call 0500 405 060

For any customer enquiries please contact our Customer Careline by
cdlhing 0800 636 262
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Electronic communications for shareholders
The Company has set up a facility for shareholders to 1ake advantage ol
electronic communications

it you wouid like to
check the balance and current value of your shareholding and view your
dividend hustory
reqister your ematl adaress so that future shareholder tnformation can
be sent to you electronically
submit your vote online prior {o a general meeting

Log on to (www J-sainsbury co uk) and complete the following steps

1 click on Investors

2 chickon Shareholder Services

3 chck on ' Computershare

4 enter the required informatian and click an subirut
You will need your 11 character sharehalder reference number located
on your latest tax voucher

5 chick on Electrontc Shareholder Communicaticn and register online

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers L LP
1 Embankment Place

Landon WC2N 6RH

Registered office

J Samshury plc

33 Holbarn

Londan ECIN 2HT
Registered number 185647

Solicitors Stockbrokers
Linklaters uBs

One Silk Street | Finsbury Avenue
London EC2Y BHO London EC2M 2PP

Hoare Govett Ltd
250 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4AA
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Financial calendar 2006/07

Dividend and interest payments

Ordinary dividend

Ex drividend date

Record dale

Final dividend payabte
Interim dwvidend payable

24 May 2006
26 May 2006
21 July 2006
January 2007

B Shares

Last date for Registrars Lo recewve July B Share
redemplibn notices irecerd gate)

Redempbion date

Interest payment dale

30 June 2006
18 July 2006
18 July 2006

Last date lar Reqistrars to recewve January B Share
redemption notices (record date)

Redemption date

Interest payment daie

2 January 2007
18 January 2007
18 January 2007

Interest payments

89% Irredeemable Unsecured Laan Stock

1 March/! September

Other dates

Annval General Meeting

12 July 2006

Interim results announced

15 November 2006

Intenim report air¢ulaled

November 2006




Glossary

Active Kids' - Qur nationwide scheme to help inspire
school children to take more exercise and to eat more
healthly The scheme was launched for the second time
in February 2006 and s open Lo ali nursery primary
and secondary schools in the UK

www sainsburys co ukfactivekids

ADR - American Oepositary Receipt - The over the
counter traded US security

AGM - Annual General Meeting - This year the AGM
will be held on Wednesday 12 July 2006 at The Queen
Elizabeth Il Cenference Centre Broad Sanctuary
Westminster London SWIP 3EE€ at 11 00am

B shares - Preference B shares issued on 12 July 2004
as part of the Return of Capital scheme in 2004/05

Basics - Sainsbury s core sub brand range of
products featuring circa 50Q lines

BGtY - Be Good to Yourself - Sainsbury s healthier
alternative sub brand range of products {eaturing circa
500 products Products fall into one of three categonies
those with less than 3% fat those with less calones
salt and saturated fat than standard hines or plus
products that are fortitied with added ingredients
(ncluding pre biotics pro biobics and Omeqga 3)

Business Review The Groups review which Justin
Kung announced on 19 Octobier 2004 catled Makung
Sainsbury s Great Again

Category review - The re ranging and simplification of
ranges 1o ensure the best choice of products 1sin place
and displayved approprrately in store

Company J Sainsbury pl¢

CR - Corporate responsibility - The need to act
respons bty in managing the impact on a range

of stakeholders - cuslomers colleagues investors
supphers the community and the enviranment

Debt restructuring - Gn 24 March 2006 the Group
rarsed new long lerm financing secured on 127 of
1ts supermarkets

Deflation - Percentage reduction in price of
products sold

Dividend cover - Underlying profit after tax fram
continwing aperatiens attributable to equity sharehalders
divided by total dividends declared during the year

DRIP - Dividend Reinvestment Plan - Allows
sharenolders to reinvest their cash dividend in shares
of the Company through & specially arranged share
dealing service

EPS - Earnings per share - Earnings attributable to
ardinary shareholders divided by the weighted average
number of ardinary shares in 15sue during the year
excluding those held by ESOP Trusts which are treated
as cancelled

Easter adjustment - Like for like sales are impacted
by the timing of the Good Friday trading week {nane in
2005/06 and two in 2004/05)

ESOP Trusts - Employee Share Ownership Plan Trusts

Farrtrade - The Fairtrade mark 1s an independent
consumer label that guarantees a faw deal for
marginahised workers and smalt scale Jarmersin
developing countries Producers receive a mimmum
price that cavers the cost of production and an extra
prermum that s invested in the local community
www fairtrade org uk

Fair value - The amount for which an asset could be
exchanged or a habihty settied between knowledgeatile
willing parties in an arm s length transaction

FSA - Food Standards Agency

GDAs - Guidehne Dardy Amounis

Gearing - Net debt divided by total equity
Group - The Company and its subsidianes
tAS - International Accounting Standard

IFRIC International Financial Reporting
interpretations Committee

Income statement - Formerly known as the profil
and loss account under UK GAAP

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standardis)
1GD - Institute of Grocery Distnibution
ISA - Individual Savings Account

Kids - Sainsbury s children s sub range brand
fealuring 100 products Sainsbury s was the firsg
retailer to provide GDAs for chuidren aged five to ten
years on packaging

Like-for-Irke sales - The measure of year on year same
store sales growth

LTIP - Long Term Incentive Plan

QOrganic - Organic lariming protats the use of artilicial
fertiisers pesticides growth regulators and additives
in ivestock feed The International Federation of
Organic Agriculture Movements (IFOAM) accredits
nationa! organic certifying bedies

Pipeline - Sites which the Group has an interest in
developing in the fuiure

Revenue - Sales through retail outlets and in the
case of Sainsbury s Bank in{erast recevabie fees
and commissions

ROCE - Return On Capital Employed
RPI - Retail Price index

Sainsbury s SO arganic - Sainsbury s organic sub
brand range of preducts featuring circa 300 products

SORIE - Statement of recognised income and expense

'TtD' - Taste the Difference’ - Sansbury s premium
sub brand range of products featuring circa 900 hines

TSR - Total Shareholder Return - The growth in value
of a shareholding over a specihied period assuming
that dividends are reinvested to purchase additionat
units of 1he stack

Try Somettung New Today The markeling campaign
in support of Making Sainsbury s Great Again

TU  Sainsbury s own label clothing range

UK GAAP - UK Generally Accepted Accaunting
Principles

Underlying basic earnings per share - Proht after
tax from continuing operations attrigutable (o equity
holders before any gain ar foss on the sale of
properties impairment ¢f goodwill financing fair value
movements and one off itemns that are material and
infreguent in pature divided by the weighted average
number al ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year
excluding those held by the ESOP Trusts which are
treated as cancelled

Underlying profit before tax from continuing
operations - Profit before tax trom conhinuing
aperatians hefore any gain or loss on the sale of
propérties impairment of goodwill financng far
value movements and one off items that are material
and inirequent 1n nature

Underlying net debt Net debt belore 1AS 32 and
145 39 adjustments

Underlying operating proht/{loss) - Underlying
profil/{loss) before tax trom continuing operations
before finance income and finance costs

Wheel of Health' - Symbaol on 1 300 Samnsbury s
own frand products providing customers with
accurate and easy to readlabeliing featuring five
key colour caded nutrients

Design by sasdesign co uk Printed by royle carporale pnint We would tike to thank the ten photagraphers featured on page 1 for iheir energy and enthusiasm in heiping us Allustrate thes repart Other photography by

James Bell Chrs Moyse and Dean Belcher

Fhis repart 13 grinted on paper frgm elemental chlonne free pulps These have been made using matnly evcalyplus hibre from fully sustainable commercial forests 10 Portugal Spain and Chile In addidion the malt
recycles ali its own paper wasle and Lhis larms up to 30 per cent of the total fibre content The mull aperates under the stnictest environmental standards and holds 150 14001 accreditation for its environmental

management systems
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Active Kids - Qur nationwide scheme Lo help inspire
school children to take more exercise and to eat more
healthily The scheme was launched for the second ime
in February 2006 and 15 open to all nursery primary
and secondary schools w the UK

www sainsburys co ukfactivelkids

ADR - American Depositary Receipt - The over the
counter traded US security

AGM - Annual General Meeting - Thes year the AGM
will be held en Wednesday 12 July 2006 at The Queen
Ehzabeth Il Conference Centre Broad Sanctuary
Westmunster London SW1P 3EL at 11 00am

B Shares - Preference B Shares issued on 12 July 2004
as part of the Return of Capital scheme in 2004/05

Basics  Sawsbury s core sub brand range of
products featuring circa SO0 hnas

‘BGtY' - Be Good to Yourself - Sainshury s healthier
alternative sub brand range of products featuring cir¢ca
500 products Products fall nto one of Lhree categories
1nose with less than 3% fat those withless calories
salt and saturated {at than standard ines or plus
producis that are fortified with added ingredients
(ncluding pre tictics pro biotics and Omega 3}

Business Review - The Group s review which Justin
King annaunced on 19 October 2004 called Making
Sainsbury s Great Again

Category revtew The re ranqing and simphfication ol
ranges Lo ensure the best choice of products s a place
and displayed apgrapnaltely in stere

Company - J Sainsbury plc

CR - Corporate responsibility The need to act
responsibly in managing the impagt on a range

of stakeholders customers colleagues investors
supphers the communiiy and the envirenment

Debt restructuring - On 24 Mareh 2006 the Group
raised new long term hnanang secured on 127 of
its supermarkets

Deflation - Percentage reduction in price of
products sold

Dividend cover - Underlying profit after tax from
continuning operatigns attributable o equity shareholders
divided by total devidends declared during the year

DRIP = Dividend Reinvestment Plan - Allows
shareholders to reiavest their cash dwvidend in shares
of the Company through a specially arranged share
dealing service

EPS - Earnings per share - £arnings atirbutable to
ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 155ue during the year
excluding thase held by ESOP Trusts which are treated
as cancelled

Easter adjustment - Like lor ike sales are impacted
by the iming of the Good Friday trading week (none in
2005/06 and two in 2004/05)

E50P Trusts - Employee Share Ownershig Plan Trusts

Farrtrade - The Farrtrade mark 1s an independent
Lonsumer label thal guasantees a farr deal for
marqinahsed workers and small scale larmers in
developing countries Producers recerve a minimum
phice that covers the cost of production and an extra
premum that s invested in the local community
www farirade org uk

Faur valye - The amount for wiuch an asset could be
exchanged or a hatnhiy setited between knowleédgeable
willing parties in an arm s length transaction

FSA - Food Standards Agency

GODAs - Guidehne Daily Amounts

Gearing Net debt divided by total equity
Group - The Company and its subsid:aries
1AS - International Accountng Standard

IFRIC - international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee

tncome statement - Formerly known as (he profit
and 10ss account under UK GAAP

IFRS - International Financial Reposting Standard(s)
1GD  tnstitute of Grocery Bistrdbuton
1S4 - Individual Savings Account

Kids Sainsbury s children s sub brand range
featuring Q0 products Sainsbury s was the lirst
retaller to provide GDAs tor children aged five to ten
years on packaging

Like-for-like sales ¢ The measure of year on year same
stare sales growth

LTIP - Long Term incentive Plan

Organic - OQrgamic farming protibits the use of artificial
fertiisers pesticides growth regulaters and additrves
in hvestock feed The International Federat:on of
Organic Agriculture Movements {IFQAM) accredits
nalienal organtc ceriilying bades

Plpeline - Sites which the Group has an intesest in
developing in the future

Revenue - Sales through retal autiets and n the
case of Sainsbury 5 Bank interest receivable fees
and commissions

ROCE Return On Capital Employed
RPI - Retal Price Ingex

Sainshury s SO arganic’ - Sainshury s argamit sub
brand range of preducts teaturing circa 300 products

SORIE - Statement of recognised income and expense

TtD' - 'Taste the Difference’ - Sainsbury s premium
sub brand range of products featuring circa 900 hines

TSR - Tota) shareholder return - The growinia value
of a shareholding over a specified period assuming
that gividends are resnvested (o purchase acdittanal
units of the stock

Try Something New Today - The market:ng campaign
in suppori of Making Sainsbury s Great Again

TU' - Samnsbury s own latel clothing range

UK GAAP - UK Generaily Accepled Accounting
Principles

Underlying basic earnings per share Profi after
tax from conlinuing operations attributable te equity
holders before any gam or loss on the sale of
properties impairment of goodwill financing far value
movements and one off items that are matenal and
nirequent 1n nature divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year
excluding these held by the ESOP Trusts which are
treated as cancelled

Underlying profit before tax from continuing
operations - Profit before tax Irom gontinuimg
operations tefore any gain or |oss on the sale of
properties imparment of gocdwill financing fair
value movements and ane off items that are mater:al
and inirequent in nature

Underlying net debt Net debt before JAS 32 and
1AS 39 adjustments

Underlying operating profit/{loss) - Underlying
prolit/{loss) betore tax from continying operatians
kretore finance income and finance casts

Wheel of Health - Symbol on1 300 Sainsbury 5
own brand producis providing customers with
accurate and easy to read iabelling fealuring five
key cofour coded nutrients

Dessgn by sasdesign couk Printed by covie corpasate print We would ke Lo thank the ten photographers featured on page | for their energy and enthusiasm i helping s dlustrate Lhis report Other phatograpty by

James Bell Grace Pattison Chris Movse anc Dean Belcher

This répart s printed on paper from elemental chioring free pulps These have been made wsing manly eucalyolus hbre from fulty susiainable commercial lorests i Portugal Spain and Chile In adoilion the mill
fecyctes alb s Own paper wasie and 15 106ms up Lo 30 per cent of 1ne tolal hie Lonlent The min operates undes tne sinclest environmenlal standards and holds 150 14001 accreditation Tor o5 envirgnmental

management systems
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“In last year's review | said 'lots of little things can make for big change
Since then we've been working hard to improve hundreds of things
every day that, added together, are giving customers a much better
shopping experience.

“How are we doing? We've won back customers, we've increased sales
and we've grown market share We'll tell you more about our performance
over the following pages, but we also wanted to show you what we're
doing | gave ten photographers one roll of film each and asked them to
capture Sainsbury’s in action on one day onour journey In this Review
you can see the results - theirs and ours.” Justin King, Chief Executive

The pholegraphers briefing at Sainsbury s Store Support Centre Longon the day before the shoot Back row left taright  Anders Hald lain Crockart
James Bell Slater King Charhe Fawell Nick Dawe Front row left to nght Mick Dawid Victoria Mightingale Justin Xing Stuarl Frankhn Matt Stuart




Group performance

Market share by region (%)

Total market
share 14 7%
Source THS

Colleagues

153,000 colleagues

Continuing operations 2006 2005
Sales (iInc VAT) E17,317m  £16 364m
Sales (ex VAT) £16,06tm  £15 202m
Underlying operating proht? £342m £325m
Underlying profit before tax’ £26Tm £E238m
Profit/tloss) before tax £104m £(238)m
Profit/(loss) after tax £58m £(187)m
Underlying basic earnings per share? 10 S0p 8 30p
Basic earnings/{losses) per share 3 80p (17 40p
Proposed dividend per shares 8 00p 7 80p

32% 68% 58% 42%
fulltime part time female  male
Store estate

000sgit +a0 2540 B25 15 Total
Convemence - - - 297 297
Supermarkets 166" 168 88 33 455
Total stores 166' 168 88 330 752

Our businesses

J Sainsbury plc comprises Samsbury s Supermarkets convenience

stores an internet based home delivery shopping service and Sainsbury s
Bank Sainsbury s stands for great products at far prices The Group
continually improves and develops its product ranges and 1s committed
te giving customers an ever improving shopping experience It aims to
ensure that all celleagues have opportunities to develop their abilities
and are well rewarded for their contribution to the business At the end
of the 2005/06 financial year, Sainsbury s employed 153,000 people

Sainsbury's Supermarkets s Britain's longest standing major food retaiting
chain Alarge Sainsbury s store offers around 30 000 products 50 per
cent of which are Samsbury's own brand products including fresh produce
Inaddition to a wide range of quality food and grocery products many
stores also offer a range of complementary non food products and servicas

Sainsbury’s Bank, owned by J Sainsbury plc and HBOS, aims to make finance
easier to understand and manage It offers excellent value products with
extra benefits, delivered in a simple and accessible way The current product
range includes savings and loan products, credit cards and a number of
insurance products

Sainsbury's Onling 1s the Group s internet based home delivery shopping
service which currently operates from 97 stores In addition to food and
grocery products the service also offers over 250 000 books CDs DVDs
videos and computer games Flowers wine qifts kitchen apphances and
electricals are also available onlhne

Includes 26 stores over 59000 sq 1t

Underlying operating profit underlying profit before tax frem continuing operations before finance income
ang linance costs

Underlying profit befare tax from conbimuaing operations peefit pefore tax from continuing operalions before
any gain of loss on the sale of properties imparment of gocdwill finanaing fawr value movements and one
off items thal are matenal and infrequent inpalure Inthe currenl knancial year these one off items were
the Business Review (0s1$ 1T insourcing costs and debl restructunng costs In the prior financial year these
one ofl iems were the Business Review and Translormation costs

Underlying basic earmings per share prafit after tax from cantinuing operations attributable to equity
hgolders before any gain or loss on the sale ol properhes impawrment af goadwill Hinancing fair value
movements and one oif items that are matenal and nireguent n nature dimded by the weighted average
aumber of ordinary shares in sssue during the year exchughing those held by the ESOP Trusts which are
treated as cancelled

Praposed dividend per share total proposed dwidend per share in relabion to the financial year

Ry -

I w

[0}
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Chairman's statement
Philip Hampton

This has been a strong year of recovery for Sainsbury's
with a continued focus on the implementation of the plans
outhned in October 2004 Qur performance in the last
year has increased confidence in Sainsbury’s prospects
among customers, colleagues and | believe, shareholders

Our underiying profit for the year was £267 milhon® The
Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 5 85 pence per
share, an increase of 3% per cent This will take the full year
dividend to 8 00 pence per share anincrease of 2 6 per
cent compared to tast year, covered | 3 times by earnings
The Board does not wish o see the dividend eroded In

real terms and the increase broadly equals inflationin the
year However we continue to expect to rebuilld dividend
cover to at least 15 times

The key to recovery I1s to increase sales We are on track to
hit our terget of £2 5 bilhion additional sales in our recovery
peniod As we move forward we expect to see financial
rewards to shareholders ansing from improved sales
performance and cur continued focus on cost reductions

The Board 1s determined ta work towards a successful
frnancial recovery while maintaining the ethical approach
and commitment to high business standards that are a
fundamental part of Sainsbury s heritage There are arquably
few business sectors where customer demands for

value and quakity have to be so constanily balanced with
thewr concerns for heatth, the environment and the focal
community Pages 24 and 25 detail our approach to this

as does Jusiin King s operating review

In March 2006 we completed a major refinancing raising
£2 07 bithon This provided cost effective long-term finance
by recognising the value in our property portfoho At the
same bime we retain ownership of these valuable assets In
conjunction with the retinancing we agreed with Sainsbury’s
pension schemes {rustees that some of the new funds
raised would be used to make a one off contributron of
£350 mihion into the pension schemes Annual contributions
by Sainsbury’s into the schemes will also be increased by
£18 milhon te £38 midhon per annum Qur defined benefit
schemes rematn in place ior existing members but to provide
amore balanced sharing of risk and cost between members
and the Company changes such as increased contributions
and controls on future benefits are being introduced to
improve the funding of the schemes and mcrease security
of benefits Colleague contributions for those in the defined
benelit schemes will increase from September 2006 with
options to maintawn current contribution fevels or move

to career average or a new scale of retirement benefit

Last year we intreduced a long term incentive plan
specifically to support the recovery plan launched in
Octeber 2004 It was a one time arrangement and no
further incentives can be awarded from it

At our AGM in July we will be preposing a new incentive
framework for arrangements to be put in place over the
next ten years, starting with the 2006/07 financial year it
will build on last year's plan applying to around 1,000 senior
managers n order to retain and motivate key tatent beyond
the 2008/09 mitestone set last year We will also propose

a new deferred honus plan for top managers where the
proposed measure 1s based on TSR The plan is closely
ahgned with UK best practice and offers strong incentives
for top performance and no rewards for faillure Detalls

are set out later in this report

Bridget Macaskill will be stepping down as a Non-Executive
Director at our AGM In July and June de Moller retired

from the Board in September 2005 | would like to take
this opgortumty ot thanking them for their hard work

and commitment over the past few years especially their
help inthe introduction of recovery initiatives

This year we have again strengthened the Board with
sigmficant additional knowledge and diversity of experience
In August 2005, Darren Shapland joined the executive team
as Cheef Financial Officer and John McAdam was appeinted
Senmor Indepaendent Director In September 2005 In May
2006 we welcomed Anna Ford as a Nan-Executive Director

The Competition Commission has announced that it s to
conduct an investigation into the UK grocery market

We have established 2 dedicated team to deal with this
to ensure it will not distract us from our cantinued
commitment to serve customers in the best possible way

The many activities that have taken place this year give
encouragmg signs that our recovery plan s well on course
Once agamn there has been great change for colleagues

but there is a real sense now around the business that
Sainsbury s has renewed vigour and amiition This view

ts also being echoed by many stakeholders and | would ike
to thank them, as | did last year for their continued support
and the part they are playing in our recovery plan

JM !4 ,—_\!ﬂk b

Philip Hampten Chairman

J Sainsbury plc Annual Review and Summary Financial Statement 2006
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Chief Executive's operating review

Justin King

We're now serving 16 millton customers
each week which 1315 million more than
this time last year Competition between
retallers 1s intense, so this 1s a big step
in the nght direction

This year we increased sales (iInc VAT) by S 8 per cent
to £17,317 mulhen and we increased hke-for hke sales
hy 37 per cent, delwering a fifth consecutive quarter
of hke for-like sales growth We also increased our
market share These results are the clearest measure
I can think of to show that customers are responding
to the changes we're making

If we exclude revenue from our petrol and banking
businesses, we achieved total sales growth of £722
rmillion Thisos a sohd start towards achieving an
extra £2 5 billion in sales - the goal we announced in
October 2004 in our Making Sainsbury’s Great Agamn
recavery plan

| wanted to show you some examples of the many
things we've done to improve our offer, so | asked ten
photographers to go out and look at our business in
action onjust one day - 19 April 2006 | briefed them
to each provide one picture capturing an aspect of
Sainsbury's and to tell us a little about their experience
of our business

The first picture was taken at 2 30am at our Moertown
store in Leeds Like the majority of our supermarkets,

this store now has a night shift in operation to replenish
shelves ready for the morning Back in 2004 avalabiiity

Thinking on cur feet

These handsets give colleagues accurate real bme
information abeut stock and sales wherevers they
areinthe store Theresuli fasier decssion making
fewer emply shelves less wastage

J Sainsbury plc Annuat Review and Summary Financial Statement 2006

was cited as our number one performance I1ssug, but
we've improved significantly Our might shift colleagues
are the unsung heroes of this change Together with
our new store processes, they've helped reduce the
gaps on our shelves by 75 per cent, and our avallability
15 now back in line with other supermarkets

We're now working on the other 25 per cent as we want
to improve even further In March 2006, for example,
we completed the roll-out of a new hand-held stock
and sales system This provides up-to the minute sales
and supply data to colleagues on the shop flocr, helping
them to monitor and respond to stock levels faster

At the same time we have a more accurate picture of
the stock we have versus the stock we need and this
has helped reduce our wastage and therefore cost

We ve also made considerable investments in pricing
this year, and it 15 now very compeliiive across ali
ranges Great food at fair prices i1s a strong tradition
at Sainsbury’s, and our aim to generate £1 4 bilhon
extra sales from core grocery products is dependent
on getting the right balance of price and guality

Grocery deflation (the percentage reductionin price
of products sold) of 15 per cent last year was largely
the result of the 8500 price reductions we made, and
underhines how competitive we have become on price
We now highhight price reductions under the ‘Ways

to save’ logo, hke the one in the picture opposite, which
we launched it August 2005 This reinforces our
competitiveness by helping customers to identify offers,
promotions and ‘price-checked’ products - those that
are the same price or cheaper than competitors



2.30am Night shift, Moortown store, Leeds

“Everyone here said the same thing - the night shift has made the store much
more efficient and customers love it You just have to look at the shelves,
they said more empty spaces at night, more full shelves in the morning "

Photographer Matt Stuart




7 20am The bakery, Fosse Park store, Leicester
"It may be early but hundreds of trays of hot bread, buns and doughnuts
are whizzing around, all of it baked here in the store Delicious aromas
waft into the aisles, drawing in the customers And me”

Photographer Nick David




Passion for food remains at the heart

of our brand We understand that quality
food, and fresh and seasonal products,
are as important to customers as fair
prices That's why sales of our food
products have outpaced the market
over the past year

We would say that, but there's growing recognition for
our commitment to quahty At the industry's leading
retal Quahty Food and Drink Awards last December,
30 Sainsbury s products were short-listed, the most
from any retailer Every nomination i the fresh
produce category was a Sainsbury's product We won
nine category awards, and for the third year running
were given the overall award for quality

Our bakery departments demaonstrate what our focus
on food means in practice We bake fresh bread
throughout the day Infact by the time the photograph
opposite was taken at 7 20am the bakery team at our
Fosse Park store in Leicester had already been in action
for over two hours

We encountered a growing problem this year as we
expanded our bakery departments - bakery skills are
dying out in the UK Cur response was to launch an
apprenticeship scheme for new recruits to develop
the required expertise and skills The scheme 1s being
piloted in ten stores in the North East of England

We've strengthened our product quahty and innovation
team constderably this year, and introduced new
training and development for store colleagues In

Salad days

We ve started to wash and ninse bagged satads in
natura! spring water Customers Lell us they prefer
their [cogd 1o be prepared with the minimum of fuss
Using spring water 1s a simgle and natural way tQ wash
the satad and a first far any supermarket in the UK

subjects such as nutnition We also run food ‘master
classes’ on everything from Thal cookery to onions
and British cheese to chocolate The classes provide
an opportunity for product developers to learn

mere about individual ingredients so that they can
improve the taste and vanety of the products we sell

We're obsessed with ingredients and have developed
¢lear and exacting product standards for all ranges,
together with a new tracking system that ensures these
are adhered to At depots we've improved the way we
check the quality of products before accepting them
into our supply chain, and customers are now giving
us ther highest rating for healthy, fresh and tasty food
since we set out on our recovery programme

This year we improved or introduced arcund 3,000
food products, and we re-ranged and simphfied every
product category to ensure the best choice of products
15 1n place for customers

‘Basics’, our fastest growing own-brand range, appeals
to everyone and covers many different products It has
generated incremental sales, and research shows that
around 50 per cent of customers buy from both
‘Basics” and our premium range ‘Taste the Difference’

New brand standards, such as only using free-range
eggs and Bntish-sourced chicken and pork, and the
removal of hydrogenated vegetable ouls, have been
applied to ‘Taste the Difference’ products this year
Hydrogenated vegetable ails, or more precisely trans
fatty acids sometimes contained in them, have been
assocrated with health issues such as heart disease
They will be removed from all Sainsbury's products
by January 2007 and we will be the first major
supermarket to achieve this
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Health and vitality are at the heart of what
we offer In January we updated our 'Be
Good to Yourself' range, evolving It from
a ‘diet’ brand to a broader health brand

The new 'Be Good to Yourself' range provides customers
with low fat diet products as well as healthier options,
and 'plus’ meals with added ingredients such as
prebiotics, probiotics and Omega 3 There are around
500 products in the range, of which 100 were new this
year Many of these were the first product of their kind
in any UK supermarket

What we've done with bread shows that you can offer
healthy choices without affecting taste We tnvested
£2 million to produce a bread with higher fibre and 15
per cent less salt It tasted just the same as our existing
best-selling bread, but with healthuer ingredients

And we sell it to customers at the same price as before,
despite the significant investment we've made We
worry about what goes into our products so our
customers don't have to

In February we introduced our ‘Kids' range and became
the first retailer to provide Guidetine Daily Amounts
{GDAs) for children aged five to ten years on packaging
We're now rolling out children’s GDAs across other
ranges because customers tell us they welcome help
in making healthy food chaices far thew children,

and many parents want their chitdren to eat the same
meals as them

This year we re-launched around 300 organic products
under the 'Sainsbury’s SO organic’ brand, which sets
very high organic standards Our larger stores carry

How much is enough?

in February we hecame the {irst UK supermarket to
include Guideline Daly Amounts (GDAs) for children
aged five to ten years on our product packaging

Now parents can judge the cantent of their childrens
food rather than rely on guesswork

J Sansbury pic Annual Review and Summary Financial Statement 2006

our full range of over 700 Sainsbury's and branded
organic products and sales are up 20 per cent,
with particularly good sales in fresh food areas

In the UK rnising demand for organic milk currently
outstrips supply, so we are working with farmers
ta cover the costs invalved in conversion, as weli as
offering 12-month supply contracts once the milk

15 OFganic

Our commitment to sourcing products from the UK
whenever we can inspired us to find a local sofution
to the supply issue, rather than simply import organic
milk from abread We are the only supermarket that
has done this So in May 2006 we achteved another
market first by selhing milk frem British farms - ke
Chalder Farm, shown here - that are “in conversion

to organic standards We call it ‘Farm Promise’ and

It means we pay a premium to cover all the extra
costs involved in conversion

In February we launched 'Active Kids' for the second
consecubive year This provides schoois with activity
equipment and expenences in return for vouchers
earned in store Last year the scheme attracted

80 per cent of all UK pnimary and secondary schools,
and we donated equipment worth mare than £17 million
Cn average, each school received around £700 of
rewards, a substantial contribution given that the
annual primary school budget for such equipment

1s estimated at around £200

Over 30,000 schools and nurseries have registered
to take part In ‘Active Kids' in 2006 Around 95 per
cent of our customers are aware of the scheme and
beheve it 1s providing a valuable contribution for the
local community




11.40am Converting to organic, Chalder Farm, Chichester
“There's clearly an excellent understanding between Alison,

from Sainsbury’s, and Chris, the farmer Both seem interested

In the long-term And the cows seemed pretty interested too "

Photographer Nick Dawe




1215pm Active kids, Fleetdown Junior School, Dartford
"Arecipe for active kids take one school, choose from
over 30,000 Add £700 worth of activity equipment,

mix with 12 excited school children, photograph and
enjoy, immedately!"

Photographer lain Crockart




1.55pm Food Standards Agency, London

“What was obvious from the meeting between Erica from Sainsbury’s
and the FSA was a shared desire to make food labelling as ciear and honest
for customers as possibble There 1s something about this photograph that
captures the way the two organisations are working together”

Photographer James Bell
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We're leading standards in UK food
labelling and have really improved our
understanding of what people want
and what's important to them We're
listening to customers and responding

We are the only large-scale supermarket chain that
places its priority on food Our focus on fresh food
really sets us apart, as does the way we help customers
to understand more about the food they buy and the
choices they have We're proud of the work we do in
this area and our customers rate Sainsbury's approach
to healthy eating above that of every one of our
competitors

Good, healthy food s part of our DNA at Sainsbury's
We've cared aboul food quality 1ssues ever since
Sainshury’s opened its very first store in 1869, and
we've gone further than any other supermarket in
communicating with customers about the food they
huy and eat

There 15 a clear trend of customers wanting more
information aboul what they eat, and we'li continue
to innovate and lead in this area

Here's an example of these cammitments in action

In January 2005 we led the industry on nutritional
labelling by introducing a muttiple traffic hight system
called the "Wheel of Health’' This was deveioped
following extensive consumer research, together with
input from the Food Standards Agency (FSA) It was
reviewed after six months and receved a huge vote

On your marks, get set

Providing a very clear colour code for the salt

1al salurated fats tolal sugars and calonies ina
praduct 1s much more helplul than bringing
information atready on the back te the front of

the pack Using green amber and red)s a bold and
open way to help customers make the right choice
tor themseldves Il shows we care more aboud our
customers than sales of an individual product

of approval from customers, who found it easy to
understand and helpful when deciding which products
to buy The traffic hght colours of green, amber and
red were universally understood The ‘Wheel of Health'
1s now on over 1,300 of our products and we continue
to add more

Research conductedin April 2006 found that around
80 per cent of customers have noticed the labelling
and believe it influences what they buy Products
with greens and ambers on the ‘Wheel of Health" are
generally showing positive sales trends in comparison
to simular products with ambers and reds

We are convinced that colour coding the salt, fat,
saturated fats, totaf sugars and calories in a serving of
each product in grams goes much further in helping
customers than simply moving GDA infermation
from the back of packaging to the front Taking the
bold step of putting red’ on a product shows you
care more about your customers than short-term
sales Our approach was endorsed by the FSA when
it announced its recommendations for nutritional
labeling in March 2006 We continue to share our
research and findings with the FSA

We are also receiving external recognition for our
commiiments to the wellbeing of colleagues In
March Sainsbury’s was voted London's Healthest
Large Employer as part of the BBC's Big Challenge
Healthworks mitiative, a nationwide search to find
the healthiest employers across the UK We were
commended for the health inthiatives we run for
colleagues throughout the UK
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3 52pm Trying something new, Brighton Beach, Sussex

"Someone shouts ‘Action’” and suddenly the enfire beach area
comes alive It's a great British scene - the pier, the people, and
Jamie Oliver being passionate about spinach in an ice cream
van as he encourages people to try something new”

Photographer Stuart Frankhin




Our new branding, 'Try Something New
Today', 1s much more than a slogan
The spirit and success of the campaign
has inspired our entire business, and
customers love it too

The idea for ‘Try Something New Today' came about
because we wanted to encourage people to visit

their local store to expenence the improvements

we had made The insight behind the campaign was
that although an average supermarket stocks around
30,000 products, customers tend to purchase from
arcund the same 150 products each week and often
don t notice what's going on around them in the store

We tested thisidea by reworking research originally
carried out by Harvard University We dressed someone
in a gonilla suit and sent them into store We then
asked customers if they had noticed anything unusual
whie doing thewr shepping The vast majority had not
and the concept of ‘sleep-shopping’ was born

So Try Something New Today" aims to inspire cusiomers
to think beyond their normat range of products

The campaign provides simple ways to make small

but significant changes to the food we buy and eat

The campaign has been incredibly well recewed by
colleagues and customers

Our advertising, featuring Jamie Oliver, has publicised
the campaign to an even wider audience, and sales

of whole nutmeg increased from 1400 jars to 6,000

a week after Jamie used 1t as seasoning for pasta

Fresh deas

We ve applied the thinking behing Try Something
New Today tothe way we work Far example we now
have an email iree day 1n our Store Suppert Centre
to encourage colleagues to get up lrom their desks
and communicate in persan

J Sansbury plc Annuat Review and Summary Financial Statement 2006

Colleagues now get to try products and recipes so they
can expenence them first hand and recommend 1deas
to custamers Mare than seven million customers are
collecting our ‘tip cards’, and we've given out more
than 100 milhon cards so far

Clearly, the relationshup between colleagues and
custorners can make an enormous difference and we
take it very serously Every store colleague received
new customer service training last autumn

My Board colleagues and | also prloted a two day
training course focused on embedding new ways to
lead our business, and helped to then dehver that
training to 1000 of our managers from stores and
central teams They nturn, are delivering that training
to a further 9,000 managers

We try to be innovative with trarming and development,
and our Scan S¢hool 1s an example of that The school
1s actually two specially fitted double decker buses
that visit our stores to train our training colleagues

Colleagues have to go no further than the store car
park to recetve the training The buses have travelled
around the country so that 90,000 colleagues at
around 500 stores can give customers a faster and
friendher checkout service

We track how engaged with our goal and values
colleagues are and marked improvements have
been achieved since September 2005 {'m delighted
that 117,000 colleagues will receive ashare of a

£52 mulhon bonus pot - ajust reward for the huge
effort they have made this year




4.47pm Scan bus colleague training, Coldhams Lane, Cambridge
"Colleagues from the store were inside the bus, busily learning the

best ways to work with the store technology What a great idea

to take the school ta the students, rather than the other way round

Simple, but clever”

Photographer Anders Hald




514pm Every customer counts, Castle Lane West, Dorset

“Sainsbury's has a lot more customers now than a year ago and
two things really stood out Every time | asked someone if | could
photograph them they were excited to take part And everyone
at Sainsbury’s talks about customers, not consumers | think both
thingssayalot"”

Phatographer Victoria Nightingale




Research shows a marked improvement
In customer satisfaction Thisis the
result of the many changes we are
making every day

In addition to our core offer we've also been working
on non-food ranges which currently account for
around ten per cent of our total sales We concentrate
on things customers now want to find in a supermarket
Iike greetings cards, DVDs and clothes and accessories

Qur target 1s to generate £700 million of additional
sales from non-food products The focus this year was
to make the space already dedicated to these products
waork harder and we tested new products, fixtures

and layouts in 20 stores

The resuits were pleasing and we're now introducing
more space for non-food products as stores are
extended and reformatted, and we estimate that
around 50 stores will be altered in thus way over the
next 12 months

‘TU', our own label clothing range has been incredibly
successtul this year, with sales up by more than 40
per cent As part of our refurbishment and extension
programme we plan to introduce 'TU into around

40 more stores in 2006 and extend the current TU'
offer in around 60 stores

We have also added 41 pharmacies during the year
taking the total number in our stores to 169 Intotal

In fashion

Our TU range of adult and children s clothing
and accessaries Is now availalle in 202 stores
It s very poputar with customers and sates are
up over 40 per cent this year

we grew sales of non-food items by eight per cent
which was ahead of the market

Our Bank 1s an important part of our customer offer but
it had a difiicult year, making an underlying operating
loss of £10 milhon due to additional charges for bad
debt The debt relates largely to loans made two and
three years ago when the Bank was taking on lots of
new customers seeking loans Samnsbury’s Bank has
been particularly affected because the type of products
in its offer were those most likely to be affected as the
consumer credit environment worsened this year The
position 1s now stabihisimg and we have put processes
In place to tighten our credit policy and assoctated

risk controls

On a more positive note, customer numbers are growing
and accounts were up eight per cent to 2 5 million and
we contmue Lo grow the part of the business for which
We receive Commssion

Tim Pile stepped down as Chief Executive of the Bank
In March 2006 and we appointed Rob Walker as our
new Chief Executive in May 2006 We believe that the
supermarket banking modetf 1s robust and the move
to more commission-based products 1s appropriate
for long-term growth and profitabihity

Together with our partner, HBOS, we re committed

to the Bank and on worling together to returnit to
profitability Our target 1s for the Bank to breakeven in
the 2006/07 financial year and return to profitability
In 2007/08
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Working with local communities s key

to our search for new stores It's not just
what we sell but how and where we sell it
that's important We want to ensure our
stores complement the local environment

The store environment affects everything from the
customer’s experience to the efficiency with which we
can manage stock, so upgrading stores s an expensive
but entical acbivity In October we earmarked 131
stores for investment and by the end of March 2006
we had refurbished 37 of these Ten stores were
extended and 14 new stores were opened including
nine Safeway stores purchased from Mornisons By the
end of 2005 we had 455 supermarkets in our portfolio

We were able to refurbish and re-open the new Safeway
stores in time for Christmas trading In the 14 stores
we acquired from Morrisons earlier in 2005 sales

are up, on average by around 20 per cent, which
demanstrates the appeal of Satnsbury s when we
introduce our brand to new locations

We're now pursuing new sites for supermarkels under
the leadership of Peter Baguley wha joined in August
2005 as Property Director Early indications from
counclls and developers are encouraging We believe
our commitments to food, quality and the wider
community are nelping 1o set us apart from other
large retailers when seeking and developing sites In
Mardenhead, pictured oppostie, we are building a new
55 000 sq {t store as part of the overall regeneration
of the town centre

Qur focus on food sets us apart

We believe our commitments Lo food quality and
the wider cammunity help to set us apart from other
farge retailers when seeking and developing sites
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We now have 297 convenience stores trading under
the brands Sainsbury’s Local, Sainsbury's @ Bells
and Sainsbury's @ Jacksons Last year we opened
20 stores, refurtnshed 34 Sainsbury s Locals and
60 'Sainshury’s @' stores

We achieved another good year inour convenience
stores and expect this part of our business to generate
£400 mulhon of the £2 5 biflion of addittonal sales

set out in our recovery plan

Refurbished and converted stores are generating
substantial sales increases, and we're iImproving our
existing stores and integrating acquisitrons as quickly
and effectively as we can Customers particularly
value our {resh food offer and sales of these products
following store conversions have increased by around
100 per cent

Customers are alse mare satisfied with our online home
delivery service, where our investment i enhancements
has improved sales by more than 25 per cent We put
expansion plans on hold white we fixed the basics

of the operation, and we re-launched the website In
September 2005 The service, now fully integrated
with our stores, has much better product availability

We carried out hittle marketing activity for the online
service this year, yet managed to attract many new
customers We think this demonstrates the power

of word of mouth, with customers responding to our
improved service by recommending us to friends

At the start of 2006 we added new post codes to
our delivery areas and we plan to extend the service
to a further 200,000 households this year




6 10pm Maidenhead town centre regeneration

"The thing s, you can't hide a development It's right bang in the
middle of the community and everyone knows what's being built
People here seemed pleased 1t was going to be a Sainsbury's ™

Photographer Charlie Fawell
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We've made big changes in the supply
chain, reorganistng processes to ensure
we get the nght products to the right
stores at the right time

Ultimately, our recovery 1s dependent on how we

perform here n the engine room of the business
What goes oninside somewhere like our Hams Hall

depot makes an enormous difference to our customers’

experience, and 5o to the Sainsbury’s brand and
ultimately to our financial performance | hope the
photograph here gets across a flavour of the energy
and momentum behind the scenes at Sainsbury s

Getting the supply chain right has required decisive
action We transferred our operation at Charlton to

a thurd party operator, closed our depots at Northfleet
and Rotherham and recrganised cur Basingstoke and
St Albans depets into multi-purpose facilities, providing
chilled, ambient and fresh products to stores We have
used our Buntingford facihty to provide additional
capacity at Chnistmas for the past two years, but

will now keep it open to help us keep pace with sales
growth We worked successfully to win support for
our actions from colleagues and unions

Cur Waltham Point and Hams Hall depots are now
processing an average of two million cases a week,
significantly up on 2004/05

The many changes we've made have saved the
business substantial ameounts of money We identified
£400 milhon of cost reductions tn October 2004 and
delivered more than £110 milhon this year, pnimarily
in the areas of stock loss and central costs We expect
to dehwver a further £175 million savings in the current
year bringing the cumulative total to £285 million
and stretching our original target to £440 mithon

Dehverning a profit

Al the start of 2006 new post codes were added
ta the area served by our anline home delivery
operation as more and more people recommens
the service {o family ard friends
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In January 2006 Roger Burnley joined us as Supply
Chain Director and Lawrence Christensen moved into
a part-time consulting role Roger will now concentrate
onh consolidating the numerous changes already made
Replenishment orders are being dehvered faster and
in a store-friendly way, with products already sorted
according to the aisles in which they are found in store,
and we're working with suppliers to help us improve
avallabihty even further and reduce costs

We completed the insourcing of IT systems and the
transfer of 470 caolleagues, all assets and third party
contracts back into Sainsbury’s in April, just six months
after announcing our decision to terminate our contract
with Accenture We expect to recoup the costs
involved in ending this outsourcing agreement within
the next two years

It's appropriate we finish this review by showing our
supply chain as this 1s where the Sainsbury s day
really starts and ends At 10 37pm we're working on
tomorrow's deliveries - and the day after that - to
replenish our stores for another very busy 24 hours
within Sainsbury’s

We've made hundreds of small changes as | menticned
at the beginning here in the supply chainand
throughout the entire business, and we re beginning
to see the effect of these changes

Qur recovery 1s on track, but we're not complacent
We know we have to keep tmproving things for
customers, increasing sales and reducing costs as we
continue to work on Making Sainsbury s Great Again

T Wi
\J 5\

Justin King Chief Executive




9 47pm Hams Hail depot, near Birmingham

"What I'll never forget is the si1ze of the place It's an amazing
operation I'd never thought about the scale of a supermarket
distribution system before Extracrdinary”

Photographer Slater Xing
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Our commitment to the communities in which we operate

Corporate responsibility isn't new for us When we opened our first store iIn 1869 the
guiding principle was to offer good quality products to everyone, including those who
had never had access to healthy and safe food before Today, our commitment to the
communities in which we operate i1s still every bit as important and the five principles
below underpin our activities Customers trust us to take care of their concerns, and
that sets us apart from competitors as you will have seen in this Review

n many areas we already lead our industry, but we're committed to innovating and
setting even higher standards We've provided some examples of our activities but our
full corporate responsibility report can be found at www j-sainsbury co uk/cr

The Best for Food and Health

Cur goalis to provide customers with healthy,
safe, fresh and tasty products We want to
make healthy eating easier, enjoyable and more
affordable for everyone

The quality of the mmformation we provide 1s an
important part of this commitment We work closely
with orgamsations such as the Food Standards Agency
to develop clear and honest labelling We also help
customers balance therr diet by providing a wide
range of food choices and help people learn more
about ingredients, cooking and nutrition

Sourcing with Integrity

We've a long tradition of working with supphers
to source, produce and provide excellent food for
customers Our suppliers are partners - we rely
on them and respect their expertise

We've been working with some of our supphers for
decades Successful relatronships are based on open
dialogue and a shared understanding of customers’
concerns and changing tastes and needs We also
demand high ethical standards

Respect for our environment

Ten years ago we were the first major British
food retailer to publish a comprehensive report
cn our environmental performance We've built
on that commitment, reporting regulariy on
what we do

The envirenment 1sintegrated into our commercial
decision-making and we always work to minimise

any potentially adverse effects of our aperations
We're as committed to investing in improving impacts
such as emissions and energy use, as we are about
more tangible things ke carrier bags and packaging
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Making a Positive Difference

to your Community

We believe we're part of your community, not
apart from it That belief goes back almost 140
years when we had just one shop located right
in the heart of the local area

We've been involved n all sorts of community
inifiatives, from encouraging customers to *Grin and
share it!" during wartime rationing to today's ‘Active
Kids" scheme and our investment in charitable
activities Our policy s to consult the local community
when we apen a store, and to keep talking to local
people once it's built

A Great Place to Work

Sainsbury's isn't Just a collection of stores, it's a
group of committed, hard-working people - the
colleagues who provide the products, services,

advice and help customers need

Colleagues are more than employees, they're members
of the wider community, they are customers, and nine
out of ten hve wathin a mile of their store Many are
atso shareholders We're committed to providing a

safe healthy and productive working environment

We want colleagues to benefit from their time at work
and provide arange of trasning and development
opportunities

This year, donations to charitable orgarusations

and other community projects totalled £5 6 milhion

In addition, we made significant contributions to other
community-related initratives and our ‘Active Kids'
scheme donated £12 5 mithon (at cost) to schools
Sainsbury’s colleagues, customers and suppliers
raised £3 25 mullion for charities such as Home-Start
and the Children's Society, through events supported
by Samnsbury's




Taste of Success supported by the Department for
Education & Skills teaches children about food and
nutrition It in¢ludes awards teacher training sessions
and an interactive website We provided more than
£100 000 in funding in 2005/06 We re re branding the
scheme Active Kids Get Cocking ta combine healthy
eating with the healthy ifestyle concept of Active Kids

We've donaled food since 1998 to chanties such as the
Salvation Army FareShare and Food For All The food
1s sate edible and nutritious beyondits display by
date but within its use by date By March 2006 270
stores were denating surplus food This year we gim
tohink ali supermarkets with acharity

We led the industry in January 2005 with our Wheel

of Health  a multiple traffic ight nutritional Iabelling
systern Developed after extensive research and fellowing
input from the Foods Standards Agency around 80 per
cent of customers have noticed Lhe labelling and believe
itinfluences whal they buy

Were a long standing supporler of the Fairtrade mark and
the UK s leading Fairtrade supermarket We ve introduced
many new products such as the UK s first Fairtrade

haby food In February we placed the UK s single largest
Farrtrade cotton order for 200 000 T shirts to support
Sport Relef

Cur new healthy apple stamp s Lthe symbol of health
at Sainshury s A sales increase of almost 15 per cent
for products carrying the apple stamp ind:cates the
underlying concept of encouraging healthier chaices
has worked 10 2005/06

Active Kids provides schools with activity equipment

in return for vouchers earned in store (n 2005 we attracted
80 per cent of all UK pnimary and secondary schools and
daonated activity equipment worth aver E17 millign The
2006 scheme has over 30 000 schools and nurseries

now registered

We ve supported Comic Rehef s Red Nose Day since
1999 and now also support Sport Relief as part of a
Six year deal which runs until 2011 Money raised helps
poor and disadvantaged people in the UK and some
of the poorest counties in the world to help make
long term changes to their ives

Last year customers recycled around 100 millign
plastic bags through our recycling collection points
They also buy 120 000 of our Bag for Life each week
saving an estimated 50 milhon standard bags a year
In 140 stores we re trialing fully compostable GM free
wrap on organic apples and potatoes the first of its
kind in the UK

In a market first we started selling muk from British
farms converting to erganic standards in May 2006
Demand for crganic milk outstrips UK supply so we re
working with farmers to cover additional associated
costs dunng conversion and offering 12 month supply
contracts ence the milk 1s organic

We ve invested extensively in energy efhiciency
projects for many years and have trialled state of the
art recychng banks in six London sites which recycle
products such as COs and clothes as well as plastic
and gtass We re now rollingthem out to arcund

50 stores this year

We bave industry leading fish sustainability plans
supported by the Marine Conservaticn Society
(MCS} which ncluded the removal of skate

and huss in February 2006 We were also

first to sell Marine Stewardship Council (MSC}
approved cod one of the most endangered hish species

We sold over £6 billion ¢f British products in our

stores |ast year and encouraging focal producersis a
key part of our sourcing strategy Buying from smalfer
supphers can stimulate local econormes and we currently
stock 3 500 1ocally produced products

Our Local Heroes awards recognise calleagues who
donate ime and effort {o good causes oulside work
and donated £250 000» 2005/06 We match funds
raised with betwaen E200 and £500 Colleagues who
volunteer m their own time receive E200 for their
charity or community group

Talkback s ourinternal colleague feedback survey
which now aperates on a rotling basis It prowides us
with a rnonthly snapshot of colleague engagement
across all areas of our business We have seen marked
improvements inthe scores we have achieved during
the past 12 monihs
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J Sainsbury plc: Board of Directors

Phiip Hampton
Chairman

Appemnted 19 July 2004 Phihp Hampton was
Group Finance Director of Lloyds TS8 Group pic
(2002 2004) Group Finance Director of BT
Group plc (2000 2002) Group Finance Director
of the BG Greup plc (formerly British Gas pl¢)
(1995 2000} Group Minance Director of British
Steel plc (1990 1995) Executive director of
Lazards (1981 19%0) Non Executive Director

of RMC Group plc (2002 2005) He led the
Hampton Review for HM Treasury Currently
aMNon Executive Director of Belgacom {the
Belgian tetecom group) since 2004 Age 52

Jamie Dundas %~
Non Executive Director

Appeinted 1 September 2000 Formerly

Chief Executive of MEPC pic which he joined
as hinance Director in 1997 and prior to that
Finance Director of the Hong Keng Arport
Authority (1992 1996) Non Execubve Director
of Standard Chartered PLC and Drax Group plc
Charrman of Macmillan Cancer Reliel Age 55

Bob Stack -o
Nan-Executive Cirector

Appointed 1 January 2005 Joined Cadbury
Beveragesin the USn 1990 and joined the
Cadbury Schweppes pic Board in May 1596
as Group Hurnan Resources Director In
March 2000 he was appeinted Chief Human
Resources Officer and tock on responsibility
for communication and external affairsin
addition te HR Age 55

Life President
Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

Justin King
Chief Executive

Appointed 29 March 2004 Chairman of the
Operating Board and Directer of Sainsbury s
Bank plc Formerly Director of Food Marks &
Spencer From 1994 2001 held semor positions
at ASDA/Wal Martin Trading HR and Retal
Previously Managing Direclor of Haagen Dazs
UK Early career with Mars Confectionery and
Pepsi International Age 44

Gary Hughes &%
Non Executive Director

Appainted ) January 2005 Chief Execubive
of CMP Information - a division of United
Business Media plc Formerly Group Finance
Director of Emap plc Group Finance Director
of SMG plc Deputy Finance Director of Forte
plc and prior to this held a number of semor
management positions with Guinness pic in
the UK andin North America Age 44

Dr John McAdam G
Senior Independent Director

Appointed 1 September 2005 Currently Chief
Executive 0f ICI plc having joined Unilever as
amanagement trainee in 1974 where he held
anumber of semor positions in Birds Eye Walls
Quest anc Umchema before the sale of the
Specialty Chemical Businesses to IC1in 1997
He 15 also a member of the Universily of Surray
Business Advisory Beard and the University

of Cambndge Chemistry Advisory Board
Formesly Non Executive Director of Severn
Trent pfc (2000 2003) Age 58
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Darren Shapland
Chief Ftnancial Officer

Appointed t August 2005 Fermerly Group
Ftnance Dwrector of Carpetright plc (2002 2005)
and Finance Director of Superdrug Stores

plc (2000 2002) Between 1988 2000 carried
oul a number of pasitions at Arcadha pic
{tormerly Burton Group) including Joint
Managing Director Arcadia Home Shopping
Finance Director of Arcadia brands Finance
Director Top Shop/Top Man {Burton Group)
and Director of Supply Chain Programme
(Burton Group) Age 39

Bridget Macaskill ¢ =
Non Executive Director

Appainted 1 February 2002 Currently a
Dwrector of the Federal Natienal Mortgage
Association and a Non Executive Director
of Prudential plc since 2003 Formerly
Chairman and Chiet Executive Offrcer of
Oppenheimerfunds and Non Executive
Director of Prudential pic (1999 2001) and
Hillsdown Holdings plc (1989 1991) Age 57

Anna ford 1o
Non Executive Director

Appointed 2 May 2006 Retwed fram the BBC
m Apnl 2006 atter 30 years of service
Shehas been a trustee of the Royal Botanicat
Gardens in Kew London (s Chancellor of
Manchester University a Fellow of the Roval
Geographical Sociely and an Honorary
Bencher of Middle Temple Age 62

Key to Committee Members

< Nomination Committee

* Audit Committee

<+ Remuneration Committee

G % * Denotes Chawrman of Committee

Note Gary Hughes became Chairman of the Aucht
Committee on (0 May 2006 taking over from Jarme Dundas




The Operating Board is responsible for the day-to-day running of the business
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer are also part of this team

Mike Coupe

Jrading Director appointed to the Operating
Board in Cctober 2004 Joned Sainsbury s
{rom Big Food Group where he was a 8aard
Director of Big Food Group plc and Managing
Directar of Iceland Food Steres Previously
worked for both Asda and Tesco plc

Gwyn Burr

Customer Services Director Joined the
Operating Board in 2004 Gwyn has over
20 years business experrence including
five with Nestle Rowntree and over 13 with
ASDA/Wal Mart At Asda she hgld various
Beard level positians across Own Brand
Marketing Customer Service and Retal

Darren Shapland See page 26

Justin King See page 26

Tirn Fallowfield

Company Secretary since 2001 Tim joined
from Exel plc (formerly NFC pl¢) the global
logistics company where he was Company
Secretary and Head ¢f Legal Services (1994 -
2001 Prior to this worked at Clifford Chance
and s a guahfied sehcitor

Imelda Walsh

HR Director since October 2001 and appainted
to the Gperating Board when it was formed

n May 2004 Before this was amember of

the Board of Sainsbury s Supermarkets Lid
from March 2003 Prior to joining Samsbury s
worked as the HR Director for Barclays Retail
Financial Services Previous roles within the
Barclays Group Included Group Employee Policy
and Planning Director HR Director Corporate
Banking and Group HR Development Director
Previcusly worked for Coca Cola and
Schweppes Beverages

Ken McMeikan

Retait Cirector appointed to the Operating
Board in February 2005 Kenjoined Samsbury s
from Tesco pic where he worked for 14 years

He was appointed Chief Executive for Tesco
Japan baving previously been appointed

Chief Executive of Admin Stores following

Its acquisition by Tesco Before joining Tesco

he warked {or Sears pic for four years

Reger Burnley

Supply Chain Director appeinted to the
Operating Board in March 2006 Rager

was previously Supply Chain Director at
Matalan He spent his early career inretail
management and buying at B&Q before joining
ASDA/Wal Mart where he held a number

of pasitions before becoming Supply Chan
Cirectar 1in 2001

Phato taken at the Food Centre at Sainsbury s Store Support Centre Longen where the Operating Board carries cut reqular sampling of producls
From left to nght Mike Coupe Gwyn Burr Darren Shapland Jushin King Tim Fallowfield Imelda Walsb Ken McMeikan and Roger Burnley




Summary financial statement
Summary Directors’ report

The Board

The Board 1s chaired by Prilp Hamaten wno was appointed
Chatrman on 19 July 2004 At 16 May 2006 the Board
censisted of two Execubive Directors and six Non-Executive
Directers in addition to the Chairman Dr John McAdam
Chief Executive of ICI plc, was appointed Senior Independent
Director on 15eptember 2005 Darren Shapland was appointed
to the Beard as Chuef Financial Officer on 1 August 2005
replacing Roger Matthews who retired from the Board on

24 June 2005 June de Maller retired from the Board with
effect from 1 September 2005 Anna Ford joined the Board
on 2 May 2006 Bridget Macaskill will retire from the Board
after this year s Annual General Meeting { AGM ¥

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 26

Corporate governance

During the year the Company has comphed with the provisions
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the Code )
except that at the start of the year there was a vacancy s
the role of Senior Independent Director which was filled when
John McAdam was appointed on 1 September 2005

Theres a clear division of responsibihties between the
Chairman and Chief Executive which 1s set out in writing and
has zeen approved by the Board The Chairman satisfied the
independence criterna of the Code on his appaintment and all
of the Non Executive Directors who have served duning the
year are constdered independent according to the principles
of the Code During the year the Board has undertaken

a tormal evatuation of its performance and effectiveness,
anc of 1its Commuttees and individual Directors

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the

Audit and Remuneration Committees each of which consists
exclusively of independent Non Executive Directors and

to the Nominatien Commitiee which ts chatred by Philp
Hampton and comprises each of the Non Executive Direciors
The Committees terms of reference are available on the
Company s website (www ) sainsbury co uk/gavernance)

Performance and dividend

A review of the performance of the Cempany and its principal
operating subsidiaries during the year 15 set out on pages

29 to 34 of the Annual Report and Financial Stalements

The Directers recommend the payment of a finai dividend
of 5 85 pence per share (2005 5 65 pence) making a
total dividend for the year of 8 00 pence per share
(2005 780 pence) Subject to shareholders approving
this recommendation at the AGM the dividend will be
paid on 21 July 2006 to shareholders on the register

at the close of business on 26 May 2006
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held at 11 00am on Wednesday 12 July
2006 at The Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre, Broad
Sanctuary Westminster London SWIP 3EE The Nolice of
Meeting and the proxy card are enclosed with this Review

Remuneration policy
The Remuneration report s set out on pages 41to 49 of the
Annual Repert and Financial Statements

It 1s the intention of the Committee that Executive and
Operating Board Directors remuneration should be
competitive bothin terms of base salary and total
remunéeration taking into account the indiwdual Director s
role performance and experience This approach i1s designed
to promote the Company's short and long-term success
through securing high calibre executive talent Basic salary
1s targeted around the median of the market with an
opportumty to earn above median levels of total reward in
return far exceplional perfermance A significant propertion
of the total remuneration package 1s performance related
aligning management 5 and sharehelders interests

The Commutiee determined at the bme of the Business Review
in October 2004 that new long term incentive arrangements
were required in order {o address the lack of effective
incentives in place for all management levels including
supermarket store managers and o incentivise the
management team to deliver the major sales led recovery

In 2005 shareholders approved the J Sainsbury plc Share
Plan 2005 which provided for the grant of a single cycle
incentive specifically designed to daive the delivery of the
recovery stralegy During the consultation with shareholders
and :nstilutions on the design of this plan the Committee
incicated its intention to carry out a more general review of
remuneration arrangements during 2005/06 with the aim of
tarmulating a longer term mcentive strategy for the future

The total remuneration review conducted with the assistance
of Deloitte and Touche LLP assessed the competitiveness of
the Company s existing executive remuneration arrangements
agamnst UK retaill companies of a similar size A secondary
benchmarking group comprising around 50 FTSE 100
companies (excluding financial services companies) of a
similar size to Sainsbury sin terms of market capitalisation
was used as an additional reference of market practice

This analysis included all elermnents of remuneration including
pensiens The review showed that total remuneration levels
for Executive Directors were below median aganst all
comparator groups and it was concluded that the existing
long term incentive arrangements (the Executive Share
Option Plan and Perfermance Share Plan) were no longer
aligned to the Company s palicy to provide competitive levels
of reward to attract retan and motivate high calibre executive
talent Nc further grants will be made under these plans

As aresult the Commitiee formulated a new ncentive
framework (the Value Buillder framework) which supports
the business strategy over the medium ta longer term and

15 consistent with current best practice




The Commuittee agreed that the new incentive strategy should
be based upon a number of key principles so as to

build on the sales ted turnaround by embedding key
measuras af financial and captal efficiency,

support strong performance of the core business and
delivery of shareholder value by generating quality
earnings, growing profits and generating cash for future
investments andfor return to shareholders

provide a common focus for the top 1000 managers
(fram Chief Executive to supermarket store managers)
on cnbical business measures

retain and motivate talent far the longer term, and

provide compehitive reward opportunihies for delivering
exceplional perfarmance

The new incentive framework which will be put to shareholders
at the 2006 AGM consists of two elements, a deferred annual

b

onus plan with a performance related share match and a

long termncentive pian These plans have been formulated
following consulation with around 20 major shareholders the
Association of Bribish Insurers and the National Assaciation of
Pension Funds

The remuneralion of the Direclors for the year was as follows

The key terms of these plans are in ine with best practice and
have been designed to safeguard against rewards for faifure

Full details of each ptan are set out in the Natice of Annual

General Meeting accompanying this review

Performance graph

The graph below shows the Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR )

performance of an investment of £100.1n J Sainsbury plc

shares over the last ive years compared with an equivalent
investment in the FTSE 100 Index This has been selected to

provide an estabhshed and broad based index

Cash
payment Pension Total'? Tatan?
Salary/fees Bonus’ on joining Benefits® supplement™® 2006 2005
Mote EQOO EDOO EQGQ EQOD EQOO EOCD EOQQ
Justin King 1 700 590 - 32 149 1,471 1131
Darren Shapiand z8 261 180 120 10 48 619 -
Philip Hampton 395 - - 3 - 398 274
Jamie Dundas 55 - - - - 55 a7
Gary Hughes k] 45 - - - - a5 11
Bridget Macaskill 45 - - - - 45 37
John McAdam a 31 - - - - 31 -
Bob Stack 55 - - - - 55 13
Directors who have
left the Company
during the year
Roger Matthews 5 148 - - 5 - 153 590
June de Maller 5 20 - - - - 20 37
1 Highesi paid Director 9 Benefits :nclude company car benetits and medical insyrance
2 Appointed lo the Beard on | August 2005 10 Justin King and Darren Shapland are rembers of the Executrve Stakeholder Pension
3 Gary Hughes [ees were pad to Emap plc until 25 May 2005 Pian They receive a cash pensian supplement equal 1o 235 per cent (in the case of
Justin King) and 20 per cent {in the case of Darren Shapland) of the amount by
4 Appoinfed to the Board on | September 2005 9
s cap (20051
5 Previously disclosed in1ast year s rel nt agreed wi
6 Leit the Board on 1 September 2005 Sir Peter Davis n 2004 the Company made penodic payments [o him in 2005706
T Includes performance bonuses earned in 1he penod under review bul not paid wn iew of salary until 31 July 2005 totaling £ 166 667
n the tinancial year 12 The totals for 2004705 and 2005706 de not include deguctions made from basa
8 Aspreviousty disclosed Darren Shapland received a payment of £120 000 as salary for Saving Maney and Reducing Tax { SMART } pensians

he gave up valuable s worth appr ly £300 000 arising from
the Carpetright Execobive Incentive Plans when he jined the Cempany He also
recerved restricted shares tathe value ol €180 000 see page 31

13 The aggregate remuneration and compensahion el the Directors for the year
was E2 9 million (2004405 £6 7 millon)
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Summary financial statement
Summary Directors’ report continued

Options over ordinary shares
Derectars options under the Company s Executive Share Gptron Scheme and Savings Related Share Option Scheme are
summarised below

Total Granted Exercised Lapsed Tatal
26 March during the dunng the during the 26 March
2005 year year year 2006
Executive Share Option Plan
Roger Matthews 1 388,666 - - 331,661 1,057,005
Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Justin King - 6,969 - - 6,969

Justin King surrendered 1,007,607 options granted to him under the Executive Share Option Plan when he joined the
J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005

The aptigns outstanding under the Company s Executive Share Optien Plan and Savings Related Share Ophion Scheme are
exeraisable al prices between 23100 pence and 42700 pence

Performance Share Plan
Under the Plan shares conditionally allocated to individuals are released to them in the farm of apttans i the periormance
condition 1s met at the end of the three year performance period The condibional allocations for 2003 and 2004 are shown below

Conditionad Conditional

award award

22 May 2003 20 May 2004

Justin King - 184,762
Roger Matthews 90,820 47 613

The abave {gures for 2003 and 2004 shaw the maxnmum award that would be released provided that the Company actieves Tirsl pesition within the comparator group af

the end o! Lthe three~year performance period The comparator group compnses 12 othes compames Shares to the value ol 30 per cent ol salary will be releases at median
pertarmance Awards will be pro rated at every posihon between the median and hirst position in the comparator group The condbional awards far Roges Matthews show the
awaros tollowing pro rdting Since the end of the hinandidl year it has been conlinmed lhat as aresult af the TSR caiculation lor 1he 2003 allocdtion 45 410 will be teleased to
Roger Matthews on 17 May 2006

On oining the Company Justin King received a cash equivatenl award which will be pro raled on a time basis aver the perlormance penod asaf he had recerved a condihional
award under the grant made in May 2003 Based on performance and pro raled bime he will recerve a cash amount inrespect ol 65 789 shares at the end of May 2006

J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005
The table below shows the awards which would be refeased if the Company achieves maxmum vesting

Date of Core share Persenal Maximum First erercrse Last exercise

granl award investment share award' dale? date

Justin King 24 03 05 237 508 118 754 1 662 556 1405 08 230310
Darren Shapland 010805 102 558 70,224 793 686 14 05 08 230310

The maximum share award exclugtes the personal investment shares acquired by Justin King and Darren Shaplang which must be held for the duralion al the plan 1 assumes
{ull vesting

Depending on perfarmance parhal vesiing may occur following the Prelwminary Resulls annguncement n 2008

The maxumym award s targeted towards sales grawih of £2 5 bilhen and compound annual growth m EFS of at least 21 per tent over a four year peried Veshing will be
calculated by applyw) a perfofmance multipler to the core award and personat avestment this 1s on a shaing scale irom O 5 himes lo 3 1imes and is pictted in 3 mairix lormat
The J Samshury pkc Share Plan s a mil cost oplion plan

w N

IS
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Restricted Share Plans

As previously disclosed both Justin King and Darren Shapland gave up valuable entitlements arising from the Marks and Spencer
Executive Incentive plans and Carpetright Executive Incentive Plans respectively when they joined the Company The Committee
agreed to compensate them for these lost entitlemenis but rather than making a ¢ash payment, awards of resiricted shares
were made As the awards compensate them for lost entitlements there are no performance conditions Shares will be released

on the vesting dates if they remain employees of the Company on the relevant dates

The awards will vest before the release datesf their service contracts are terminated by the Company other than for cause

in the event of death or on a change of control unless the awards are replaced by the acquining company If they feave

employment for any other reason the awards wili be forfeited

Nehignal
gams on
release at
Number of Number MNumber 286 00 pence
restricted pate af Date of of shares of shares per share Vesting
shares award release released lapsed £000 date
Justin King 191 204 27 03 04 010605 191,204 - 546 8 -
TQ 746 27 03 04 - - - - 01 06 06
Justin King retained 112 B1Q shares arising out af the 2005 release the remainder was used to fund the iInceme tax and nabional insurance charge relabng to the release
MNobional
Number of Number Number gains on
restricted (ate ot Date of ol shares of shares refease Vesting
shares award releasa refeased lapsed £000 date
Darren Shapland 32 200 01 G806 - - - - 01 08 0a
32,200 01 08 05 - - - - 010807

In the period from 26 March 2005 to 25 March 2006 the highest mid markel price of the Company s shares was 335 00 pence
and the lowest mid market price was 27175 pence and as at 25 March 2006 was 33075 pence

Directors’ interests

Directors interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and shares held in trust on hehall of Directors are as follows

Ordmary shares® *

26 March 25 March 16 May
2005 2006 2006*

Justin King - 231,915 231,984
Phitip Hampton - 25,000 25,000
Darren Shapland - 51,243 51,243
Jamie Dundas 1,050 1,050 1,050
Gary Hughes - 15,100 15,100
Bridget Macaskill 2 187 2,187 2,187
John Mcadam - 1,000 1,000
Bob Slack 2 BOgs 2,800 2,800

1 The above table has not been audited

2 Qrdmary shares are benehoist holdings which include the Directars personal holdings and thase of their spouses and minor children They also include the beneficial snlerests

n shares which are held in trust under the Sainsbury 5 Share Purchase Plan

3 The Executive Oirectors are polential beneliciaries of 1he Company s employee benelit trusts which are used to sahisty awards under the Company s emplovee share plans

and are therefore treated as interested in the 22 8 milhan shares (2004705 24 7 mdhion) held by the Tiustees
4 The Company s Fegrster of Directers interests contains full details of Dreclors interests shareholdings and opligns over ordinary shares of the Company
S Heldn the form ol 700 American Depasitary Receipts
6 inclydes shares purchased undes the Sainsbury s Share Purchase Plan between 25 March 2006 and 16 May 2006
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Summary financial statement
Summary financtal review

Summary Group income statement for the 52 weeks te 25 March 2006

2006 2005
Em £m
Continumng operations
Revenue 16,061 15,202
Operating profit/{ioss) 229 (151
Finance income 30 44
Finance costs {155} (132)
Share aof post tax profit from joint ventures - 1
Profit/{loss) before taxation 104 (238)
Analysed as
underlying profit before tax from continuing operations? 267 238
Business Review and Transformation operating costs {51} (497
IT insour<ing {63} -
Profit on sale of properties 1 21
Financing fair value movements {12) -
Debt restruclunng costs 138) -
104 (238)
Income tax (expense)/credit (46} 51
Profit/{loss} from continuing operations 58 (187
Discontinued operations
Profit attributable o discontinued operations - 375
Profit for the financial year 58 1858
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 64 184
Minorily interests (6) 4
58 188
Earnings/{losses) per share pence pence
Basic 38 41
Diluted 38 41
From centinuing operations
Basic EX:] (17 4)
Diluted 38 (17 4)

1 Prolit betore Lax from conbinuing operations belare any gain or loss on I he sale of preperties ymparrment of geodwill Linanting fair value mevemenls and one ofl items that are
matenal and infrequentin nature Inthecurrent hinancial year these one oft stems were the Business Review costs IT insourcing costs and debt restructurng costs In the prior
financial yedr these one off items were the Business Review and Trans!ormation costs
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Income statement

Sates (iInc VAT) from continuing operations increased by 5 8 per cent to £17 317 milhon (2004/05 £16 364 mitlion) Underlying
profit before tax from continting operations improved 12 2 per cent to £267 milhon (2004/05 £238 mithon) Profit before tax
from continuing operations was £104 milhion (2004/05 £238 million loss)

Sales and underlying operating profit were as lollows

2006 2005 %
Continuing operations Em £m change
Sales {inc VAT)
Retailling - Supermarkets and Convenience 16,987 16,076 57
Financral services - Sainsbury s Bank 330 288 146
Total sales (inc VAT} 17,317 16 364 58
Underlying operating profit from continuing operations?
Retailing - Supermarkels and Convenience 352 308 143
Financial services - Samsbury s Bank {10) 17 {158 8)
Total underlying aperating protit from continuing operations 342 325 52

1 Underlying prolit before tax frem continuing operations before finance income and linance costs

Retailing

Saltes (inc VAT) increased by 57 per cent to £16 987 muthon (2004/05 £16 076 milion) and 6 1 per cent on an Easter adjusted
basis with significant contributions fram like for like growth new space and petrol Easter adjusted like for like sales excluding
petrol were up 37 per cent with strong performances delivered within food, non-food and Convemence The positive sales
growth during the year was achieved with increased volumes being offset by grecery price deflation of 15 per cent as aresult
of continued investment in the customer offer

Sales (inc VAT) pefore petrol and Sainsbury s Bank increased £722 milhon This s a key indicator of underlying supermarket
perfermance and the sales measure used within the J Sainsbury plc Share Plan 2005 This performance 1s an important first step
towards the commitment to grow these sales by £2 5 billrgn as part of the Making Sainsbury's Great Again recavery plan

New space provided a significant centribution to sales growth during the year with 367,000 square feet of floor space added
anincrease of 2 2 per cent of which O 6 per cent was from extensions During the yvear 14 new supermarkets including a further
rine Safeway branded stores purchased frem Morrisons and 20 new convenience stores were opened, five of which related to the
acguisition of SL Shaw Ltd The Group made further investment through the completion of nine extensions 28 refurbishments
and one downsize In the supermarket estate and 94 refurbishments and conversions of convenience stores

Underfying retailing operating profit increased to £352 million (2004/05 £308 million) Higher sales volumes and cost
efficiencies helped mitigate the impact of investment in price and increased store labour costs as improved pricing and service
remain core t¢ mantaiming focus on what 1s right for the customer

Gross margin during the year continued to reflect the commitrent to invest £400 million in the customer offer (in bath price
and qualityy cuthred in the Making Sainsbury s Great Again plan This helped dnive the sales led recovery by ensuring that
Sainsbury s continues to offer great food at fair prices

In 2005/06 the operating efficiencies which underpin the Maling Sainsbury's Great Again plan began to emerge Sigmificant
improvements were noted in the overall level of stock loss which given that it coinaded with improved availability within stores
was even mare significant Following the completion of the Store Support Centre reorgamsation further savings were also
realised within the Group s central costs

In the second hall of the year the Group started to see the early benefits of process efficiency in store and supply chain coming
through in lower costs The Groupis an track to deliver the target cost savings identified as part of the recovery plan and plans
are n place to deliver the expected level of savings in 2006/07 However the Group remains sensitive te increasing external
cost pressures on the retail industry, principally relating to increases in rent rates and general wage pressures Addibonally,
the Group s ftxed energy contract 1s due to expire in October 2006 This will add an estimated £55 million to energy costs in
the secand half of 2006/07 and an additional £20 million in the first half of 2007/08

Financial services - Sainsbury's Bank

Sainsbury s Bank increased totat income by 14 & per cent to £330 milhon (2004/05 £288 million) continwing 1o expand its
customer base through Lhe sale of its core products personal [oans, savings accounts, credit cards and general and life insurance
Customer atcounts grew Dy 8 3 per cent during the year and net eperating income was up by 14 3 per cent to £215 milion
primanly driven by an increase in fee and commission income as the Group looks to expand and increase revenue streams
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Summary financial statement
Summary financial review continued

During a more challenging year for the financial services industry, Sainsbury s Bank delivered an underlying operating loss of
£10 rmilhon (2304/05 £17 million profit) This was driven by provisions for bad and doubtful debts which increased 1n the year to
£106 milhon (20G4/05 £64 million) The increase reflects the high volume of business written in 2003 and 2004 which, inked to
a more indebled economic environment and with weaker levels of consumer confidence has required additional provisions to be
made Steps have been taken during the year to tighten credit policy on unsecured lending and significant progress has been
made in credit management of Sainsbury s Bank s lending portfolio

The prior year comparative has been restated (o reflect a reclassification of interest expense from aoperating profit inta finance
costs to ensure it 15 consistent with the treatment for the year ending 25 March 2006 The impact of ths reclassification s to
ncrease Sainshury s Bank 2004705 untderlying operatimng profit and the Group s linante Costs by £4 roilhon

Underlying net finance costs

Underlying net finance costs (net finance costs pre financing fair value movements and debt restructuring costs) decreased by
£13 million te £75 million (2004/05 £88 milhon) with a £27 milhion reduction in underlying finance costs being offset by iower
finance income of £14 million

Firance income fell due to a reduction in interest receivable in the year as in the prior year interest was earned from the cash
proceeds realised from the disposat of Shaw s Supermarkets in the first half This was partially offset by anincrease i the net
return on pensionable assets recognised in the year Underlying finance costs were down as aresult of lower average net debt
during the second half of the year improved working capital management and migher capitalised interest reflecting an increase
inexpenditure on leng term new developments

Debt restructuring costs

On 24 March 2006 the Group repurchased all its outstanding unsecured bonds totalling £17 bithen with the proceeds from
anissue of £2 1bulion of secured debt {the debt restructuring) The long term financing arrangement has been secured over
127 freehold and leasehold supermarkels and 1s repayabte over 12 and 25 year terms This transaction has enabled the Group
to borrow at lower interest rates and provides a Hexible hinancing platierm for the future Interest savings of £12 million are
expected in 2006/G7 although no benefit has been realised within 2005/06 The one off charge associated with the debl
restructuring was £38 million

IT Insourcing costs

Qun 28 Apnil 2006 the Graup successfully campleted the migraton of 1T serwvices previously provided by Accenture as annaunced
an 27 October 2005 This involved the transfer of all assets third party contracts and approxmately 476 colleagues back inte
the Group resulting in a one off charge duning the year of £63 milhon which future cost savings are expecied to pay back in less
than two years

Business Review and Transformation costs

Busrness Review costs of £51 million were incurred duning the year in hne with guidance at the last year end This represents the
linal tranche of costs bringing the total eperating charges assecciated with the Business Review and Transformation over the two
years to £548 miilion

Profit on sale of properties

Surplus assets were sold in the year generatimg Lota) cash proceeds of £164 mithon (2004/05 £266 mithon) and an overall
profit en sale aof £1 million (20C34/05 £21 miliien) This)s aresult of aligning the asset base to the future needs of the busmess
by disposing of trading and non trading assets that were deemed surplus te requirements The Group will continue to dispose
of surplus assets but expect proceeds to return to more madest levels of around £50 million

Financing fair value movements

The Group does not use derivalives for speculative purposes However certain swaps while prowviding effective economic hedges
do not quahfy for hedge accounting under IAS 39 and changes n the fair value of non quahfying derivative instruments are
recognised in the income statement These are non cash and inherently volatile mavements and are {therefore excluded from
the definition of underlying profit Fair value movements for the year resulted in a £12 mill:on loss of which £4 milion relates

to the Bank

The Group took the option to defer the smplementation of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 to the 2005/06 year end and these standards
are not apphed to the results of the prior year

Taxation
The income tax charge was £46 mitlion (2004/05 credit of E51 mullion) with an underlying rate of 35 5 per cent
(2004/05 374 per cent) and an effective rate of 44 2 per cenl (2004/05 21 4 per cent)
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Earnings per share and dividends

Underlying basic earnings per share from continuing aperations increased from 8 3 pence to 10 5 pence Basic earnings per
share from continuing operations increased to 3 8 pence (2004/05 17 4 pence loss) as the previous year was impacied by the
higher level of one off costs

A final dividend of 5 85 pence per share 15 proposed {2004/05 5 65 pence) and will be paid on 21 July 2006 te sharehalders

on the Reqister of Members at the close of business on 26 May 2006 The total proposed dividend for the year s 8 00 pence
{2004/05 780 pence) Underlying dividend cover increased in the year to 13 times (2004/05 11times) As outhned in 2004705
1t remains the medium term objective to restore dividend cover (calculated as undertying post tax earnings divided by dividends)
to at least 15 times

Summary cash flow statement for the 52 weeks to 25 March 2006

2006 2005

£m £m

Operating cash flows 780 946
Net interest (156) (83)
Taxation 3 7
Cash flow before appropriations 627 792
Purchase of fixed assets/operations {561) 823)
Sale of fixed asselfoperations 151 1383
Bond buy back costs {22) -
Proceeds from issue of shares 22 5
Drvidends paid {(131) 1254)
B share dividends paid - {113)
Repayment of short term borrowings {299 (130}
Increase/{repayment) of long term borrowings 364 (176)
Capital redemption {9) (549)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 142 135
{Increase)/decraase m debi (65} 106
Loans and finance leases disposed with subsidiaries - 230
Movement i underlying net debt' 77 671
Closing 1AS 32 and 1AS 39 adjustments (51) -
Foreign exchange adjustments - (2
Movement 1n net debt 26 647
Opening nel debt {1,441) (2 c88)
Closing net debt {1,415) (1441

1 Underlying net debt net debt before 1S 32 and 145 39 adjusiments

On an underlying basis Group net debt has improved by £77 milhon with E41 million atiributable to Retailing and £36 million
te Financial services The improvement in Retalhng is despite the impaci to net debt resuiting from the £110 million pension
contribution made during the year and the unwinding of the benefit noted in 2004/05 as a result of Easter falling at the year
end This reflects closer management of working caprtat and underlying profit growth

This performance highlights that the Group has achieved the objective of pasitive cash flow 1n 2005/06 which 1s ahead of
the expectation set out within the Making Sainsbury s Greal Again plan The Group 1s working towards a cash neutral position
1n 2006/07, betore the additional one off pension contribution of £24C million and the £93 mithon cash impact of 2005/06
one aff iItems
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Summary financial review continued

Summary Group balance sheet at 25 March 2006

2006 2005

Em Em

Non current assels 8,902 8,630
Current assets 3,845 2988
Total assels 12,747 11618
Current liabilities 4,810) (5,036)
Net current rabiitres {965) (2 048)
Nen current liabilities (3,972) (2,470)
Net assets 3,965 4,112
Equity shareholders funds 3,886 4 027
Minority interests 79 85
Total equity 3,965 4112

Shareheliders funds decreased by £141 milion inthe year to £3 886 million, with geaning increasing to 36 per cent
(2004/05 35 per cent)

Pensions

At the time of the debt refinancing the Group made a commitment to make a one off contribution of £350 rmiilion inte the
Group s defined henefit pension schemes ENO miliion of this was pard into the scheme on 24 March 2006 with a further
£24C mullon in May 2006 In additien the Group has agreed to increase annual contribubions by £18 million to £38 mullion
from March 2007 These contributions along with the £350 milhicn one off contribution are expecied to fund the reported
deficit calculated under (AS 19 as at 8 October 2005 over the next eight years

An actuarial valuation of the UK defined benefit pension schemes as at 29 March 2003 indicated a deficit of E161 million the
next actearial valuation is currently in progress At the 25 March 2006 the I1AS 19 deficit (after deferred tax)1s £431 million
(2004/05 £375 million) The increase in the 1AS 19 deficit s pnimarnily a result of bond yields falling 1impacling Lthe discount
rate by 60 basis points during the year parhally offset by the one off contribution of £110 miliion and the rise in the value

of nvestments duning the same penod

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure reduced 10 the year to £525 million (2004/05 £901 milion which included the acguisition of stores from
Mornsons) down on the £550 million previousty forecast

Retal capital expenditure excluding the acquisition and development of Safeway/Mornisens slores and the acquisttion of
subsidiaries was £479 mithon (2004/05 £457 millien) an increase of £22 million on the prior year This capital expenditure
inciuded E£133 million (2004/05 £128 millon) on new stores £53 million (2004/05 £51 million) an extensions and £193 million
(2004/05 £109 milion) on refurbishments which includes 28 of the 131 stores that have received hmited investment for a
number of years Further expenditure of £100 milhon (2004/05 £169 million) was incurred 1n relation to IT investments supply
chain and central projects

Capital expenditure in 2006/C7 1s expected to increase to hetween £650 muhon and £700 million as a result of the carry over
fram the prior year additional extensions the extra refurbishments to be completed as part of the Making Sainsbury s Great
Again plan and the development of the new store pipeline

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internabtional Financial Reparting Standards ( IFRS )

and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ( IFRIC ) interpretations and with those parts of the Companies

Act 1985 applicable to companies reparting under IFRS

These are the Groups first consohdated financial statements under IFRS and therefore IFRS | Furst time Adoption of
International Finangial Reporting Standards has been applied Overall there are no matenal differences belween underlying
profit on an iFRS or UK GAAP basis and the impact of the IFRS adjustments to underlying profit belore tax are consistent with
guidance given on 16 November 2005

Docnn

Darren Shapland
Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditors’ report

We have examined the Annual Review and Summary
Financeat Statement of J Sainsbury pic

Respective responsibilities of Directors

and Auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparning the Annual
Review and Summary Financial Statement 1n accordance
with applhicable law Our responsibility is to report to you

our opinien on the consistency of the Summary Financial
Statement within the Annual Review and Summary Financial
Statement with the Annual Report and Financial Statements,
the Report of the Directors and the Remuneratien report
andits comphance with the relevant requirements of Section
251 of the Companies Act 1985 and the requlations made
thereunder We alsc read the other information contained
Inthe Annual Review and Summary Financial Statement and
consider the implications for our report If we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies
with the Summary Financial Statement

This statement including the opinion has bean prepared
for and only for the Company $ members as a body in
accordance with Section 251 0f the Companies Act 1985
and for no other purpose We do not in giving this opinion
accept or assume responsibility fer any other purpose or to
any aother person to whom this statement 1s shown or into
whose hands it may come, save where expressly agreed by
our prnior cansent in writing

Shareholder information

End of year information at 25 March 2006

Number of shareholders 140 920 (2005 147 262)

Basts of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Bulletin
1999/6 The Auditors statement on the supwmary hnancial
statement 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board for

use :n the Umited Kingdom

Opinion

In our opinion the Annual Review and Summary Financial
Statement i1s consistent with the Annual Report and
Financtal $tatements, the Report of the Directors and
the Remuneration report of J Sainsbury plc for the year
ended 25 March 2006 and complies with the apphcable
requirements of Section 251 of the Companies Act 1985,
and the regulations made thereunder

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
an

ay 2006

f\cu..rcdu\mof-.(}-ofus e

The maintenance and integrity of the J Samnsbury plc website is the responstbiity
ol the Directors the work carried out by the Auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and accardingly the Auditors accept no
respansibiity for any changes that may have occurred to the hinancial statements
since they were imihially presenied on the website

2 Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissermination
of financia! statements may differ from legssiation in other junsdichons

-

Number of shares in 1ssue 1 710 516 638 (2005 1 702 005 325)

By size of holding

Shareholders % Shares %
2006 2005 2006 2005
500 and under 64 84 61 93 0 65 0 68
501 to 1 000 13 31 14 04 081 G 90
1 001 to 10 000 20 35 2233 420 4 B8
10 001 to 100 000 103 i21 224 274
100 001 to 1 Q00 000 034 0 36 953 10 52
Over I 000 DGO 013 013 82 57 80 25
100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00
By category of shareholder
Sharehalders % Shares %
2006 2005 2006 2005
Individual and other shareholders 94 86 82 95 3117 3584
Insurance Companies 005 007 003 020
Banks and Nominees 461 6 49 54 82 60 00
Investment Trusts 004 004 oot 002
Pension Funds 002 g o2 026 0 48
Other Cerporate Bodies a42 043 1371 346
100 00 100 00 100 00 100 00
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Shareholder information continued

Annual General Meeting ("AGM™)

The AGM will be held at 1i 00am on Wednesday 12 July 2006
at The Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary
Westrinster Loncon SW1P 3EE The Natice of the Meeting and
the proxy card for the meeting are enclosed with this Review

Company website

4 Sainsbury plcnterim and annual reports and results
announcements are available via the internet on our Company
website at (www sainsburys co uk) As well as providing

share price data and financial history the site also provides
background information about the Company regulatory and
news releases and current issues Shareholders can receive
emall notification of results and press anncuncements as they
are released by reqistering on the page called Email news
service in the Investor section of the website

Registrars

For information about the AGM, shareholdings dividends and
toreport changes to personal details shareholders should
contact Computershare Investor Services PLC PO Box 82
The Pavilions Bridgwater Road Bristol BSS9 7NH

Telephone 0870 702 0106 (www computershare com)

Dividend Reinvestment Plan {“DRIP")

The Company has a DRIP which allows shareholders to
reinvest thewr cash dividends in the Company s shares bought
Inthe market through a specially arranged share dealing
service No new shares are allotted under this plan and some
33 B43 shareholders particpate 1n 1t Full details of the plan
and its charges together with mandate forms are avallable
from the Registrars

Key cates for the final dividend are as follows

Last date for return or revecation

of plan mandates 30 June 2006

Ptan shares purchased ltar participants 21 July 2006

Plan share certificates 1ssued 3 August 2006

Individual Savings Account ("ISA")

A corporate 154)s avallable from The Share Centre Ltd and
ofters a tax efficient way of holding shares in the Company
Both a Maxi and Mini ISA are available For further information
contact The Share Centre PO Box 2000, Oxford Road
Aytesbury, Buckinghamshire HP21 828

Telephone 01296 414141 or free phone 0BOCO 282812

and quote Sainsbury §'
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Low cost share dealing service

The Company offers a low cost share dealing service for

J Sainsbury plc ordinary shares through The Share Centre Ltd
Far further information contact The Share Centre PO Box
2000 Oxford Road, Aylesbury Buckinghamshire HP218ZB
Telephone 01296 414141 or free phone 08000 282812 and
quote Sainsburys

Tax mfermation - Capital Gains Tax (“CGT")
For CGT purposes, the market value of ordinary shares
on 31 March 1982 adjusted for all capital adjustments was
9199 pence and 8 Shares 10 941 pence

Share capital consolidation

The onginal base cost of shares apportioned between ordinary
shares of 284 pence and B Shares i1s made by reference to the
market value of each class of shares on the first day for which
a market value 1s quoted after the new holding comes into
existence The market value for CGT purposes of any share

or security quoted an the Stock Exchange Dally Gtficial List 1s
generally the lower of the two quatations on any day plus ane
quarter of the difference between the values

On Monday 12 July 2004 the values were determined as follows

New ordinary shares 257 50 pence
B Shares 35 pence

Deferred shares

The 320 050 073 deferred shares created on 19 July 2004
were redeemed and cancelled by the Company at the close

of business on 13 May 2005 for a total consideration of ane
pence m accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Return of Capital circular 1ssued to shareholders in June 2004

Investor relations

Forinvestor enquiries ptease contact Lynda Ashton, Head

of Investor Relations J Sainsbury plc Store Suppert Centre
33 Holborn London ECtN 2HT Telephong/Fax 020 7695 7162
Emall lynda ashton@®sainsburys co vk

American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs")
The Company has a spensored Level | ADR programme for
which The Bank of New York acts as depositary

The ADRs are traded cn the over the counter ( OTC ) market
inthe US under the symbgl JSYNSY where one ADR s equal
to four ordinary shares

All enguiries relating to ADRs should be addressed to

The Bank of New York Investor Relabions PO Box 11258
Church Street Station, New York NY 10286 1258

Toll Free Tetephone # for domestic callers 1 888-BNY ADRS
International callers can call +1 610 382 7836

Email shareowners®bankofny com




Electronic communications for shareholders
The Cgmpany has set up a faciily for shareholders Lo take
advantage of electronic communications

If you would like to
check the balance and current value of your shareholding
and view your dividend history
reqister your email address so that future shareholder
information can be sent to you electromically
submit your vote online prior to a general meeting

Log on to (www j-sainsbury co uk) and complete the

following steps

1 click on fnvestors”

2 chick on ‘Shareholder Services

3 click on Computershare

4 enter the required information and chck an submit
You will need your 11 character shareholder reference
number located on your latest tax voucher

5 chek on Electronic Shareholder Communication
and register onbne

Registered office Auditors

4 Sainsbury plc PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
33 Holborn 1Embankment Place

London ECIN 2HT London WC2N 6RH
Registered number 185647

Sohcitors Stockbrokers
Linklaters UBS

Cne Silk Street tFinsbury Avenue
London EC2Y BHQ London EC2M 2PP

Hoare Govetl Lid
250 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4A4

Financial calendar 2006/07

Dividend and interest payments

Ordinary dividend

Ex diwidend date 24 May 2005
Record date 26 May 2006
final dividend payable 21 July 2006

tnternim dividénd payable January 2007

B Shares

Last date for Registrars to receive July B Share

redemption notices (record date) 30 June 2006
Redemption date 18 July 2006
Interest payment date 18 July 2006

Last date for Registrars to receive January B Share

redemption nolices (record date) 2 January 2007
Redemption date 18 January 2007
Interest payment date 18 January 2007

Interest payments

8% Irredeemable Unsecured Loan Slock 1 March/1 September

Other dates

Annual General Meeting 12 July 2006

Internim results announced 15 November 2006

Interim report circulated November 2006
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Glossary

‘Active Kids' - Our nationwide
scheme 1o help inspire school children
to take more exercise and to eat more
healthily The scheme was launched
for the second time in February 2006
and s open {o all nursery primary
and secondary schools iy the UK
www samsburys co uk/activekids

ADR - American Depositary
Receipt The over the counter
traded US security

AGM - Annual General Meeting

This year the AGM will be held on
Wednesday 12 July 2006 at The
Queen Ehzabeth Il Conference
Centre, Broad Sanctuary Westminster,
London SWiP 3EE at 1100am

B shares - Prefarence B shares
1ssued on 12 July 2004 as part of the
Return of Capital schemne in 2004/05

‘Basics’ - Sainsbury s core sub brand
range of preducts featuring circa
500 lines

'‘BGLY’ - ‘Be Good to Yourself'
Sainsbury s healthier alternative

sub brand range of products featuring
circa 500 products Products fall

into one of three categories those
with less than 3% fat those with less
calories salt and saturated fat than
standard tines, ar 'plus products that
are fortified with added tngredients
(ncluding prebigtics probiotics

and Omega 3)

Business Review - The Groups
review which Justin King announced
on 19 October 2004 cailed Making
Sainsbury s Great Again

Category review - The re ranging
and stmphiication of ranges to ensure
the best choice of products 1sin place
and displayed appropriately in stare

Company - J Sainsbury plc

CR - Corporate responsibility
The need {o act responsibly in
managing the impact on a range

of stakeholders - customers
colleagues, investors, suppliers, the
commurity and the envirenment

Debt restructuring - On 24 March
2006 the Group raised new long-term
financing secured on 127 of its
supermarkets

Detlation - Percentage reduction
in price of products sold

Envidend cover - Underlying profit
after tax from continuing operations
atinbutable to equily shareholders
divided by total dividends declared
during the year

DRIP - Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Allows shareholders to remvest

their cash dwidend in shares of the
Company thraugh a specially
arranged share dealing service

EPS - Earnings per share

£arnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares
inissue during the year excluding
those held by ESOP Trusts, which

are treated as cancelled
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Easter adjustment - Like-for-like
sales are impacted by the timing of
the Good Friday trading week (none
11 2005/06 and two 1n 2004/05}

ESOP Trusts - Employee Share
Ownership Plan Trusts

Fairtrade - The Fairtrade mark s

an mndependent consumer label that
guarantees a fair deal for marginahsed
workers and small scale farmers

In developing countries Producers
receive a minimum price that covers
the cost of preduction and an exira
premium that 1s iInvested in the loca!
community www fairrtrade org uk

Fair value - The amount for which
an asset could be exchanged

or a hability settied, between
knowledgeable willing parties

In an arm s fength transaction

FSA - Food Standards Agency
GDAs - Guideline Daily Amounts

Gearing - Net debt divided by
totalequity

Group - The Company and its
subsidiaries

tAS - International Accounting
Standard

IFRIC - International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commtittee

Income statement - Formerly known
as the profit and loss account under
UK GAAP




IFRS - International Financial
Reporting Standard(s)

IGD - Institute of Grocery Distributien
ISA - Individual Savings Account

'Kids’ - Sainsbury’s children's sub-

range brand featuring 100 products
Sainsbury’s was the first retailer to
provide GDAs for children aged five
to ten years on packaging

Ltke-for-hike sales - The measure of
year on year same store sales growth

LTIP - Long-Term incentive Plan

Orqanic - Orgamc farming prohibits
the use of artificial fertilisers,
pesticides, growth regulators

and additives tn livestock feed

The International Federation of
Qrganic Agricutture Movements
(IFOAM) accredits national organic
cerbifying bodies

Pipeline - Sites which the Group has
an interest in developing in the future

Revenue - Sales through retail
outlets and, in the case of Sainsbury s
Bank, interest recevable, fees

and commissions

ROCE - Return Cn Capital Employed
RPI - Retail Price Index

‘Sainsbury’s S0 crganic’ -
Samnsbury’s organic sub-brand
range of products, featuring circa
300 products

SORIE - Statement of recognised
Income and expense

'TtD' - ‘Taste the Difference’
Sainsbury’s premium sub-brand range
of products featuring circa 900 lines

TSR - Total Shareholder Return
The growth 1n value of a shareholding
over a specified period, assuming
that dividends are reinvested to
purchase additronal units of the stock

‘Try Something New Today’ -
The marketing campaign i support
of Making Sainsbury s Great Again

‘TU’ - Sainsbury's own label
clothing range

UK GAAP - UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles

Underlying basic earnings per share -
Profit after tax from continuing
operations attributable to equity
holders before any gatn or 10ss on

the sale of properties, imparment

of goodwill, financing fair value
movements and one off items that
are material and mfrequent in nature,
divided by the weighied average
number of ordinary shares inissue
dunng the year, excluding those held
by the ESOP Trusts, which are treated
as cancelled

Underlying profit before tax from
continuing operations - Profit before
tax from conbinuing operations
before any gain or loss on the sale

of properlies, impairment of goodwill,
financing far value movements

and one off itens that are matenal
and infrequent in pature

Underlying net debt - Nel debt before
1AS 32 and |AS 39 adjustments

Underlying operating profit/(loss) -
Underlying profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations before
hinance income and finance costs

'Wheel of Health' - Symbol on 1,300
Sainsbury's own-brand products
providing customers with accurate
and easy to read labelling featuring
five key colour coded nutrients
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